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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®|E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Mason Financial
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), we would like to present to the
shareholders, the results and prospects of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016
(the “Year”).

The Year signified a fresh start for the Group. With a new management
on board on 8 September 2016, followed by a change in its strategic
shareholding spearheaded by this new management, the Group
embarked on a new exciting chapter of growth. The new management
team reinvented the Group with its unique “Finance + Enterprise”
business strategy, and positioned ourselves as a health and wealth
solution partner, to propel the Group into becoming a leading global
financial conglomerate with global asset allocation capabilities at its
core.

Within four months after the implementation of the new strategy,
the Group had completed a series of acquisitions leveraging on
its investment expertise, strategic vision and excellent execution
capability. To highlight a few achievements, we introduced Hui
Wing Mau, the chairman of Shimao Property Holdings Limited, as
the Group’s strategic shareholder, who has and will continue to
render support to the Group’s further development. We have also
established a healthcare/mother-infant-children ecosystem through
rapid acquisitions including the acquisition of AYD Holdings Limited,
the largest mother-care specialty retail chain in south China with a
current network of over 1,000 stores and over 7 million members,
the acquisition of Reproductive HealthCare Limited and Victory “Art”
Laboratory Limited, one of the biggest in-vitro fertilization medical
centers in Hong Kong with over 10 years of operating history, and
the acquisition of DiagCor Technology Limited, the largest molecular
diagnostic lab in Hong Kong that also owns the first and only foreign
held independent clinical lab in China. We have expanded our financial
sector to include mortgage business through the acquisition of Hong
Kong Mortgage Solutions Ltd specializing in high-end private property
mortgages with mortgage-backed securities and asset-backed
securities product manufacturing capability. Funding wise, we have
completed a rights issue exercise and raised approximately HK$2.84
billion to support the Group’s rapid expansion. After rights issue
exercise the net assets of the Company is approximately HK$6.39
billion based on the net assets as at 31 December 2016. As a matter
of fact, we have successfully achieved our funding goal, allowing for
accelerated growth.

The series of completed transactions were a validation of our
effectiveness and efficiency in implementing the “Finance + Enterprise”
strategy, and realizing our vision to become a trusted health and wealth
solution partner to the Group’s valuable clients.
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On the “Finance” front, we have strategically positioned ourselves as
a leading financial group through a series of acquisitions including
the acquisition of financial brokerage and related business from
GuocoCapital Limited, GuocoCapital Futures Limited and GuocoCapital
Bullion Limited (collectively, the “GuocoCapital”), which helped us
obtain the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) licenses
No. 1, 2, 4 and 6. We also made headway into the China market by
taking a 15% equity position and becoming one of the two largest
shareholders in Shengang Securities, the first joint-venture, full-line
licensed securities company in China. The Group, therefore, was able
to map out its presence as an integrated financial platform with a full
spectrum of products/services and strong product development and
distribution capabilities.

On the “Enterprise” side, riding on the successful acquisitions
mentioned above, we will continue to embrace the opportunities
in the “mother-infant-children” market in China and Emerging Asia.
We will also concentrate on related opportunities — especially in
the premium medical services (IVF/Paediatrics/Gynaecology) and life
science services (Molecular Diagnostics/Precision Medicine) sectors
— which have strong cash flows, good margins, and sustainable
growth potential.

OUTLOOK

The outlook for global economic growth remains subdued. Against the
backdrop of continued sluggish growth in developed countries and
rising political instability from a number of fronts, the world economy
will continue to be in a stage of profound adjustments. The road to
recovery remains bumpy.

Mindful of our goal to attain a total asset-under-management of
USD30 billion and a sizable capital base, the Group intends to fully
utilize its extensive capital market resources and new management’s
experience to execute an aggressive merger and acquisition (M&A)
strategy on both the enterprise and finance front. The strategy aims to
establish the Group in such way that the financial services sector and
the enterprise sector are synergistic and complementary to each other,
thus supporting stable and sustainable development of the Group.

For the financial segment, we will continue our cooperation with leading
global asset management companies, private banks and insurance
companies to eventually develop our own asset management, private
bank, and insurance platforms so that we will possess distribution
channels and the capability to develop financial products for Chinese
financial institutions to access the global markets. Eventually, we
hope to realize our vision of becoming a “one-stop service provider
for the global financial market” that covers investment opportunities
and distribution channels in Greater China, Japan, US, Europe, Asia
Pacific and Middle East.
2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®|E

For the enterprise segment, we will continue to invest in and sponsor
successful entrepreneurs in healthcare and “mother-infant-children”
related industries through acquisitions and organic growth.

Though the current economic turbulence has given rise to global
uncertainties and instabilities, we are confident that our unique
“Enterprise + Finance” strategy and positioning as a health and wealth
solution partner will give us an edge and enable the Group to act
responsively and flexibly in the face of challenges and opportunities.
As such, the Group is poised for a fast and strong growth.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, we would like to express our heartfelt gratitude
to our management team and all of our colleagues for their unwavering
support and commitment. We could not have achieved the many
milestones mentioned in our announcements and notices, without their
dedication, diligence and determination in transforming the Group into
what the Board has envisioned.

Our people are our most valuable asset and the main force driving
our success today and beyond. Our sincere gratitude also goes to
our clients, business partners and shareholders for their continuous
support and confidence in the Group.

Tong Tang, Joseph
Joint Chairman

Ko Po Ming
Joint Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Year (2015: nil).

RESULTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a
total revenue of approximately HK$67 million (2015: HK$167 million).
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to net loss from the sale
of investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$75 million for the Year. Loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company was approximately HK$472 million (2015: profit attributable
to equity holders HK$357 million). The loss was largely due to the net
fair value loss on investments held for trading, impairment loss on the
Group’s goodwill arising from its investments and the provision for
doubtful debts from the margin clients.

MARKET REVIEW

In 2016, the world economies witnessed several headwinds, including
the “Brexit” vote, the US presidential election, and the US Federal
Reserve’s rate hike. All of these incidents and heightened concerns on
increased uncertainties in the global economy have destabilized the
financial markets, impacting the financial services industry as a whole.

The local stock market underwent a correction at the start of the year,
reflecting an increased global financial volatility upon the bleaker global
outlook and an intensified divergence in monetary policy stances
among major central banks. During the second and the third quarters
of 2016, the local stock market was largely buoyant alongside with the
removal of overhangs and rallies in major overseas markets. At the
end of 2016, the Hang Seng Index closed at 22,001 index points, an
increase of 0.4% compared to the close of 2015, while the average
daily turnover of the Hong Kong stock market was greatly reduced
by 36.6% to HK$66.9 billion. Fueling the market was the official
commencement in December 2016 of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, which has allowed individual investors in Hong Kong to
directly buy stocks listed in Shenzhen and vice versa. With Renminbi
depreciated by nearly 7% against US dollar in 2016, the expectation
of US interest rate hikes on the rise and looming concerns over a
weakened Chinese economy. Chinese investors, including mutual
funds and major insurers, have been steadily weighting their offshore
portfolio, particularly into Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE N wE DT

Looking at the primary market, although the number of newly listed
companies in Hong Kong dropped by 8.7% from 138 in 2015 to
126 in 2016, causing an intensified competition in the corporate
finance market, the overall trend of the Hong Kong stock market has
signaled a gradual recovery from the market meltdown in mid-2015.
The gradual market recovery created an array of opportunities for
securities brokerage and margin financing businesses.

China’s healthcare and medical sector continued to grow exponentially
in 2016. Increasing health consciousness in China especially in the
tier-one cities including Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou, boosted
the demand in healthcare and medical services. The de-regulation
of the one-child system and the implementation of two-child policy
create growth opportunities in the healthcare services and child care
sectors. In August 2016, the Political Bureau of the Communist Party
of China Central Committee reviewed and approved the “Healthy
China 2030” plan, which focuses on promoting healthy lifestyles,
strengthening health services, improving preventative medicine and
developing health-related industries.

The Group believes that mother-infant-children care has the greatest
growth prospect within the medical and healthcare sector, especially
with the introduction of the two-child policy in China. In 2016, the
number of newborn babies in China hit a record high since 2000,
reaching approximately 17.86 million. Also, there was an increasing
demand for quality in-vitro fertilization (IVF) treatment from Mainland
China.

As for the property mortgage market, demand was curbed by a series
of regulatory measures. Land Registry data revealed that mortgage
loan applications for completed and not-yet-completed flats dropped
by 13.0% and 38.5%, respectively. This could be attributed to the
lingering impact of the tightening measures for property mortgage
loans implemented by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority in 2015,
which imposed a lower loan-to-value (LTV) ratio and a lower debt-
servicing ratio (DSR) on borrowers. In addition, in November 2016,
the Hong Kong government raised the property stamp duty for non
first-time buyers of residential properties to 15 per cent, the impact
of which may be felt well into 2017, due to the lagged effect of
regulations on the economy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

2016 was a pivotal year for the Group. It was a year when the Group
embraced its new leadership, executed new strategies and adopted
a new identity.

During the Year, the Company formed a new management team and
strengthened its financial position through the participation of a new
strategic investor, which laid the foundation for the acceleration of the
Group’s transformation. In April, Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph was formally
appointed as the Chairman of the Company and became the single
largest shareholder of the Company in May. In September, Mr. Ko
Po Ming, the former CEO of CMBC International Holdings Limited,
and Mr. Chang Tat Joel, the co-founder of AID Partners, joined the
Company as the CEO and COOQ, respectively to lead the Company’s
transformation into an international financial conglomerate. Moreover,
the Company was privileged to have Mr. Hui Wing Mau, the founder
of Shimao Group, participate as a strategic investor of the Company
in September. Mr. Hui subscribed for new shares of the Company
representing approximately 16.7% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that time thereof, for approximately HK$737 million
and became the Company’s second largest shareholder.

Under the leadership of the new management team, the Group
formulated a clear and differentiated growth strategy to develop its
finance (the “Finance”) segment and its enterprise (the “Enterprise”)
segment in parallel and explore the potential synergies within.
Upholding the “Enterprise + Finance” strategy, and following the
roadmap towards becoming a health and wealth solution partner of
our clients, the Group achieved rapid expansion by way of acquisitions
through which an integrated financial platform and an all-round mother-
infant-children ecosystem are gradually coming to shape as planned.

More recently in February 2017, the Group completed its rights
issue exercise raising approximately HK$2.84 billion with an
oversubscription rate of approximately 77.1%, unleashing its capability
for accelerating the “Enterprise + Finance” Strategy. The rights issue
was firmly supported by the Company’s major shareholders and core
management team. The successful result not only strengthened the
Company’s equity base and enhanced its financial strength, but also
demonstrated the shareholders’ steadfast trust in the Company’s new
development strategies. After rights issue exercise, the net assets
of the Company is approximately HK$6.39 billion based on the net
assets as at 31 December 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s consolidated revenue for the Year was approximately
HK$67 million (2015: HK$167 million) representing a decrease of
approximately 59.9% as compared to last year. The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to the net loss from the sale of investments
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$75 million for
the Year.

Financial Services Business
Trading of investments

Trading of investments recorded a negative revenue of HK$42 million
(2015: revenue of HK$150 million). The significant drop in revenue was
mainly due to the realised loss of investment in securities.

Provision of financial brokerage and related services

From February 2016, following the completion of the acquisition of
GuocoCapital Limited, GuocoCapital Futures Limited and GuocoCapital
Bullion Limited (collectively, the “GuocoCapital”), which are companies
holding SFC licenses Types No. 1, 2, 4, and 6 for dealings in regulated
activities, the Group became engaged in the provision of securities
brokerage, commodities brokerage, securities margin financing,
corporate finance advisory, bullion trading and private equity services.

In June, the Group further enhanced its financial services platform
through the acquisition of an asset management and wealth
management company, Enerchine Investment Management Limited
which holds SFC licenses Types No. 4 and 9 regulated activities.
Through the acquisition, a team of experienced professionals
specialized in asset management and wealth management, came on
board to spearhead the Group’s business in these areas.

The revenue generated from the provision of financial brokerage and
related services after the acquisitions till 31 December 2016, was
approximately HK$61 million (2015: HK$Nil). As at 31 December
2016, allowance for doubtful debts amounted to HK$98 million (2015:
HK$Nil) was provided for several margin clients due to a significant
drop in the market values of these margin clients’ stock portfolio
which resulted either from the significant drop in their share prices
or trading suspension, during the Year. Due to the allowance for
doubtful debts and the decrease in the total brokerage income of its
existing customers, which impacted the valuation of the business,
an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$68 million was made as at 31
December 2016.
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In addition, the commencement of operations of the Group’s joint-
stock subsidiary, Shengang Securities in Shanghai on 18 October 2016
marked the entry of the Group into the China market. Being the first
Sino-Hong Kong joint-stock securities company established under the
supplemental framework of Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), Shengang Securities provided a
channel for the Group’s future investment flows both domestically
and globally. It also complemented the Group’s asset management
and wealth management businesses, enabling it to offer mainland
investors a wide array of quality financial products from overseas.
This investment was classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
During the Year, an impairment loss of HK$51 million (2015: HK$Nil)
was recognized in profit and loss due to the depreciation of Renminbi
(“BRMB”) as at 31 December 2016.

Provision of financing services (mortgage and loans business)

During the third quarter of 2016, the business for Mason Resources
Finance Limited (the “MRF”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
which is engaged in leveraged and acquisition finance activities, picked
up significantly and its major loan transactions were as follows:

On 27 October 2016, MRF entered into a facility agreement with an
independent third party borrower (the “First Borrower”), pursuant to
which it agreed to provide a term loan in the amount up to HK$350
million to the First Borrower (the “First Loan”) at an initial interest of
7% per annum on top of the prime rate quoted by HSBC and thereafter
at 5% per annum on top of the prime rate quoted by HSBC upon the
execution of a deed and a corporate guarantee from its sole ultimate
beneficial owner. Besides the deed and corporate guarantee, the
facility was also secured by way of a legal charge over certain listed
assets of the First Borrower’s in favour of the MRF. The facility was
for a term of 12 months, subject to extension. The facility was drawn
down on 27 October 2016.

On 4 November 2016, MRF entered into a facility agreement with a
borrower (an independent third party), pursuant to which it agreed to
provide a term loan in the amount up to HK$280 million to the borrower
at a rate of 7% per annum on top of the prime rate quoted by HSBC,
for a term of 12 months, subject to extension. The facility was secured
by way of legal charge over certain listed assets of the borrower’s in
favour of MRF. The facility was drawn down on 7 November 2016.
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On 30 December 2016, MRF entered into a facility agreement with
another borrower (whose holding company has certain indirect
shareholding in the First Borrower), pursuant to which it agreed to
provide a term loan in the amount up to US$8.25 million to the borrower
at a rate of 1.5% per month for a term of 2 months. The facility was
secured by a personal guarantee provided by the ultimate beneficial
owner of the borrower in favour of the MRF. Due to the association
with the First Borrower, the provision of the loan was subject to
aggregation with the First Loan under the Listing Rules. The facility
was drawn down on 30 December 2016.

The total interest income earned from the provision of the loan facilities
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$21 million (2015:
HK$15 million).

Moreover, the acquisition of Hong Kong Mortgage Solutions Limited
(the “HKMS”) on 7 October 2016 enabled the Group to participate in
the mortgage loan and securitization business in Hong Kong. HKMS
is principally engaged in the provision of first legal-charge mortgage
loans on residential properties in Hong Kong, targeting customers
who will use their properties for owner-occupied purpose. It has
become a platform for the future expansion of the Group’s lending
and financing businesses. As at 31 December 2016, an investment
by HKMS in a mortgage loan portfolio was classified as available-for-
sale financial assets.

Mother-infant-children and Healthcare Business

To capitalize on the growing demands for products and services
in the mother-infant-children demographic in Greater China and
reproductive healthcare services in the local market, the Group built
its enterprise segment in the fourth quarter of 2016, focusing primarily
on the mother-infant-children and medical sectors. On the back of
its extensive network in China and experience in capital markets, the
Group actively expanded its investments along the value chain through
M&As, thus building an all-round mother-infant-children ecosystem
and an overall business position. It also set up a medical and biotech
investment platform, which will provide high-end, high quality medical
services to clients and medical institutions in the greater China area.
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On 1 November 2016, the Group completed its acquisition of a
55.02% stake in a group of leading private assisted reproductive
service providers in Hong Kong focusing on the provision of IVF
services (the “IVF Group”). The IVF Group has a team of professional
medical specialists and embryologists and is one of Hong Kong’s
largest private medical group practices providing infertility treatment,
prenatal diagnostics, urology, obstetrics and gynecology services.
This investment marked the Group’s entry into Hong Kong’s premium
medical services sector and its first move towards building its
Enterprise Sector. The revenue generated by the premium medical
services group for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$24
million (2015: HK$ nil).

The Group also decided to make an entry into the downstream end
of the mother-infant-children industry chain by acquiring a 55% stake
in Aiyingdao Zhuhai Business Chain Limited (“Aiyingdao”), a regional
mother-and-baby retail chain in China for a investment of RMB409
million and a loan of RMB141 million on 31 December 2016. Aiyingdao
is a leading mother-and-baby product franchisor in Southern China
with a current regional network of over 1,000 corporate and franchise
retail stores and over 7 million members. No revenue has yet been
generated from this business for the year ended 31 December 2016
since it was acquired on the last day of the financial year.

Furthermore, after year end, the Group also acquired a group of
companies which are engaged in the provision of molecular diagnostic
services. The group is a global leader in flow-through hybridization
technology, offering a range of products, solutions and services related
to RND and DNA analysis.

With the complementary ecosystem in this sector, the Company
believes that the reproductive healthcare business, the retail business
and the genetic testing business (which was acquired after year-
end),will create immense synergies.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no secured bank loans (2015:
approximately HK$296 million carrying interest rates of 1.5% to 3.25%
above the bank’s cost of funds for relevant currency per annum and
containing a repayment on demand clause, which is repayable within
one year according to the repayment schedule of the loan facility and
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars).
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As most of the Group’s transactions and bank balances were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars, the Group
has continued to closely track and manage its exposure to fluctuations
in these foreign exchange rates to minimise the foreign exchange risks.
The Group did not have any financial instruments used for hedging
purpose during the year.

During the Year, the Company issued two fixed coupon notes with
principal amounts of HK$100 million and HK$200 million to two third-
party investors, respectively. Both notes carried interest of 8% per
annum which were paid with the principals on the maturity date in
February 2017.

At the end of the Year, there were two outstanding unsecured bonds
with principal amount of HK$10 million each which were issued in
2014 to two third-party investors. The bonds are interest-bearing at
5% per annum payable annually in arrears and repayable in 2021.
During the Year, the Company issued 3,072,880,000 new shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.24 per new share raising equity capital in
the sum of HK$737 million.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total equity amounted to
approximately HK$3,553 million (including non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$297 million), a decrease of 12.4% as compared
with approximately HK$4,055 million as at 31 December 2015. The
Group had net current assets of approximately HK$1,773 million
including bank balances and cash of approximately HK$674 million as
compared to approximately HK$3,210 million including bank balances
and cash of approximately HK$445 million as at 31 December 2015.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no bank loan outstanding (31
December 2015: approximately HK$296 million). As at 31 December
2016, the Group therefore maintained a nil gearing ratio (2015: nil) as
computed on the basis of net borrowings to total equity and with a
current ratio of 2 times (2015: 11 times).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, bank deposits of RMB20 million (equivalent
to HK$23 million) were pledged to a bank for bills payables (2015:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and bank balances
of approximately HK$2,898 million were pledged to certain financial
institutions and securities brokers to secure certain margin facilities and
loan facilities amounted to approximately HK$329 million and HK$500
million respectively granted to the Group of which approximately
HK$296 million was utilised at the end of the Year).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital expenditure
commitments contracted but not provided for of approximately
HK$148 million (2015: HK$ nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 21 September 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with
a group of co-Promoters (consisting of 13 investors) to form a joint-
stock company in Shanghai (namely, Shengang Securities Company
Limited), which will be principally engaged in securities related business
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The Group’s shareholding
interest in Shengang Securities Company Limited was 15% and it paid
a capital contribution of RMB525 million. On 10 October 2016, the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) formally granted
a license to the joint-stock company and it officially commenced
business in (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone in China. The license
granted by the CSRC allows Shengang Securities Company Limited to
engage in securities broking, securities underwriting and sponsoring,
securities trading and securities asset management related businesses
in the PRC.

On 25 November 2015, the Group entered into an agreement to
acquire the entire issued share capital of GuocoCapital Limited,
GuocoCapital Futures Limited and GuocoCapital Bullion Limited
(which were subsequently renamed as Mason Securities Limited,
Mason Futures Limited and Mason Bullion Limited, respectively),
which are companies engaged in the provision of securities brokerage,
commodities brokerage, margin financing, corporate finance advisory
and other regulated activities in Hong Kong under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”), for a
consideration of approximately HK$415 million. The acquisition was
completed on 16 February 2016.
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On 15 February 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of Thomas
Securities Company Limited, a company engaged in securities
dealing. Following the acquisition, the Group provides securities
and commodities dealing, securities advising and corporate finance
services in Hong Kong under the SFO.

On 30 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the disposal of its subsidiaries, Mind Stone Investments
Ltd and Co-Lead Holdings Limited, for a total consideration of
HK$1,200 million. The disposals were approved by the Company’s
shareholders at a general meeting held on 11 July 2016 and completion
of the disposals took place on 25 July 2016. Following the completion
of the disposals, Mind Stone Investments Ltd and Co-Lead Holdings
Limited ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group.

On 30 September 2016, the Group entered into several agreements to
acquire 55.02% equity interest in a group of leading private assisted
reproductive service providers in Hong Kong focusing on the provision
of IVF services, for a total cash consideration of approximately HK$283
million. Following completion of the acquisition on 1 November 2016,
the IVF Group owned 100% equity interest in Reproductive HealthCare
Limited, 100% equity interest in Victory “Art” Laboratory Limited and
60% equity interest in Leader Enterprise Limited.

On 6 October 2016, the Group entered into certain agreements for the
acquisition of an interest in Hong Kong Mortgage Solutions Limited
(“HKMS?”), a company which is engaged in the origination of mortgage
loans and securitization business in Hong Kong. Completion took
place on 7 October 2016 and the Group became interested in 47%
of the issued share capital of HKMS and an aggregate of 51% of the
voting rights of HKMS through an arrangement with one of the other
shareholders of HKMS. The Group has paid HK$26.6 million and
intends to invest an additional HK$48.4 million into HKMS.

On 4 November 2016, the Group entered into an agreement for the
disposal of its remaining 55% equity interest in Willie Link Limited
for a cash consideration of HK$200 million to Best Mate Limited.
Willie Link Limited was principally engaged in investment holding of
approximately 20% equity interest in Freewill Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries, (collectively, the “Freewill Group”). Freewill Group holds
certain equity interests in the natural resources sector in the PRC.
The disposal was completed on 28 December 2016. This disposal,
when aggregated with the disposal completed on 30 March 2016 by
Willie Resources Incorporated in respect of its 45 ordinary shares
in the capital of Willie Link Limited to Apex Corporate Investments
Limited, resulted in Willie Link Limited ceasing to be a subsidiary of
the Company.
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On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into an investment
agreement with Golden Metro Investments Limited, Cosmicfield
Investments Limited, Shining Time Holdings Limited and the members
of the management team (which comprised Mr. Yip Shing Fung,
Mr. Ye Faduan, Mr. Ye Fachao, Mr. Lin Han and Ms. Gao Qin),
pursuant to which the Group shall make an investment in the amount
of RMB409 million and loan of RMB141 million (aggregate equivalent
to approximately HK$616 million). After a restructuring and upon
completion of the investment on 31 December 2016, the Group
indirectly holds 55% equity interest in Shining Time Holdings Limited,
which in turn indirectly wholly owns BT EEEFEEEGR AT
(“Ailyingdao Zhuhai Business Chain Limited”), which is the franchisor
of a leading mother-infant-children products business in Southern
China with a regional network of over 800 corporate and franchise
retail stores operating under the “E58” brand name, mainly in
Guangdong, Jiangsu and Zhejiang provinces.

On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into share purchase
agreements to acquire Victoria Fortress Investments Limited and
Ruby Success Limited, for a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$214 million. Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group holds
approximately 48.3% equity interest in DiagCor Technology Limited
(and approximately 42.9% equity interest upon completion of the
restructuring of the issued share capital of DiagCor Technology
Limited). DiagCor Technology Limited holds subsidiaries which are
engaged in the laboratory testing related business. DiagCor is a global
leader in flow-through hybridization technology, offering a range of
products, solutions and services related to RND and DNA analysis.
The acquisition of DiagCor Technology Limited and its subsidiaries will
represent the Group’s foray into the advanced molecular diagnostic
services sector to serve the growing ‘““mother-infant-children’’ clientele
in China. The acquisition was not completed at the date of this report.

USE OF PROCEEDS GENERATED FROM THE DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND SUBSCRIPTION

The net proceeds from the Company’s disposals of its subsidiaries in
June and November 2016 and the subscription of new shares under its
general mandate in October 2016, after deduction of related expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$1,199 million, HK$200 million and
approximately HK$727 million, respectively.
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As stated in the circular of the Company dated 23 June 2016, the net
proceeds after deducting expenses relating to the disposal of Mind
Stone Investments Ltd. and Co-Lead Holdings Limited, amounted
to approximately HK$1,199 million, which had been applied to the
general working capital of the Group and/or to finance the Group’s
investments in the financial services industry, in the following manner:

BMAQATEHHAE-ZE—R"E~AZT
= B2ZBEAAM - FTEREFEIR
4 £ Mind Stone Investments Ltd. &
Co-Lead Holdings Limited#y48E858 %
#)3£#91,199,000,00058 5t * B AER
EE-REEESR HBRFELERS

BRBITRZRE - ABRWT :

Planned use
of proceeds as
stated in the

Actual use of
proceeds from

circular to disposal to
31 December 31 December
2016 2016
BEE BEZT—RE
BE_F—R~& +RA=+-—-8
+-RA=+—H HE&EEMIE
FT g MR8 Bi& BRAR
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BB#ERT) (BB#ET)
(a) financing the Group’s investment in Shengang Securities
Company Limited 630 630
BANAEERPBRESERAARZKRE
(b) financing the additional working capital for the operations of
Mason Securities, Mason Futures and Mason Bullion 300 300
BNREEZ  REPERRGEXEETINEANELEES
(c) general working capital and may be reallocated to finance future
acquisition of new business (Note 1) 269 269

—REBESRAEHN D EBRBRA R EBWEE (AE1)

Note 1: HK$190 million was used to provide loan facilities to the Group’s

clients and HK$37 million was loaned to margin clients through
its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Mason Securities Limited.
The remaining proceeds of HK$42 million was used for general
working capital.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 22 September
2016, the Company issued a total of 3,072,880,000 new ordinary shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.24 per new share to Future Achiever
Limited (the “Subscription”). The reason for the Subscription was to
expand the Company’s capital base and funding sources in order to
implement the Group’s growth strategy. Future Achiever Limited is
indirectly wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Hui Wing Mau, who
is the chairman and executive director of Shimao Property Holdings
Limited (“Shimao”, together with its subsidiaries (the “Shimao Group”)),
and holds approximately 66.98% equity interest in Shimao. Shimao
Group is a leading group engaging in property development, property
investment and hotel operation in the the PRC. The subscription price
of HK$0.24 per new share represented (i) a discount of 15.8% to the
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closing price of HK$0.285 per share as quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 22 September 2016
being the date of the subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Future Achiever Limited (the “Subscription Agreement”);
and (ii) a discount of approximately 14.3% to the average of the closing
prices of HK$0.280 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the
last five consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date of the
Subscription Agreement. The completion of the Subscription took place
on 5 October 2016. The gross proceeds of the Subscription amounted
to HK$737 million and the net proceeds were approximately HK$727
million after deducting the relevant expenses incurred in relation to the
Subscription or approximately HK$0.2359 per new share, which had
been applied as follows:

EEENWED

(BOR=F—R"EAAZ=T+=HEIR
A E & Future Achiever Limited sl 3
REDER(RERZR D 2BH) T EBH
ERGERAT(BEZER ] TR
EEPR0.2858 THT:E15.8% ; R(i)&RD
BEIABHEOPIGRALEEERS
H 7£ 5 2 P A 3R S 13 W T B = 12 0.280
BITITEN14.3% - RBER=ZZ—X
F+AEBEREK - REFIBRELES
737,000,000 JT & P15 5018 F 88 (4240
FMREZEEIERM X&) 8 A727,000,00078
TTRERFRANB0.23598 T - AEM
T

Planned use
of proceeds as
stated in the

Actual use of
proceeds from

announcement Subscription to
to 31 December 31 December
2016 2016
NEFE BEZF-RF
BE_F—~& +-A=+—H
+Z-RA=+—H R ERIE
Fiis IRt 8 A& BERARE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BE%TT) (B&%T)
(@) to support the further development of the Group’s money
lending business and securities business and to fund the
investment in a company which is principally engaged in
provision of property mortgage services in Hong Kong market 165-215 167
ARXFAEEREXBRESEBE-—TRREUARIE—HEE
REBTSRBREFHERBRBEARANRE
(b) direct investment in the financial services industry and/or the
healthcare/medical services sector (Note 2) 300-350 283
HERENSBBRBTER RRE ' BERKITEMZ2)
(c) to finance the further development of the fund investment and
management business and asset management business of the
Group (Note 3) 210 11

AXEEESREHEEXBREEEEXRESPRERE

(Bt#£3)
Note 2: The Group applied HK$140 million to its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Mason Securities Limited to support the development
of the Group’s money lending business and securities business.
The Group also applied HK$38 million for its investment in its
indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary, which as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 7 October 2016 was
established to conduct the lending and financing services business
of the Group (of which the Company is indirectly interested in 70%
of its issued share capital and paid HK$26.6 million).
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Note 3: The Group entered into a subscription agreement to subscribe for

an investment in the Agate Healthcare Fund of HK$156 million and
applied HK$11 million towards the fund on 31 December 2016. The
Group entered into a subscription agreement with J6 Children’s
Fund in February 2017 with subscription amount of HK$57 million,
which was HK$5 million less than the original intended use of
proceeds of an amount of HK$62 million as disclosed in the
Company’s circular and prospectus dated 13 December 2016 and
13 January 2017 respectively.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 4 November
2016, after deducting related expenses, the net proceeds from the
disposal of Willie Resources Incorporated amounted to approximately
HK$200 million, which had been fully allocated to finance the Group’s
investments in the money lending business to provide the loan facilities
to its clients.

PROSPECTS

Despite the uncertainties in the financial market, the Company expect
Hong Kong’s role as a “super-connector” between China and the world
will be further strengthened. With the increasing two-way openness
of mainland’s financial industry and internationalization of the RMB,
Hong Kong will become a major overseas center for mainland people
to allocate their wealth through channels such as the Shanghai-Hong
Kong and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, thereby bringing
flourishing opportunities to the financial industry.

In the meantime, China’s healthcare and medical sector is expected
to grow substantially, driven by a few factors, including increase in
average medical expenditure, aging population, rise in consciousness
of environmental conditions and the implementation of the two child
policy. In 2015, this sector accounted for 6% of China’s GDP, and the
percentage is expected to grow to 10% by 2025. According to Chinese
government statistics, newborns in China are expected to increase
by 1-2 million per year, signaling an upcoming surge in demand for
mother-infant-children healthcare related services and products.

Realizing our vision to become a trusted health and wealth solution
partner to the Group’s valuable clientele while adhering to our
“Enterprise + Finance” growth strategy, the Company will continue
to explore and strengthen synergistic relationships amongst the listed
platform, the financial services sector, and the enterprise sector. On
the strength of its sizable capital base, as well as extensive capital
market and investment management experience, the Group plans to
execute an aggressive M&A strategy in both Financial and Enterprise
Segment in order to achieve fast and strong growth.
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For the Finance sector, the Company plans to establish a financial
platform with world-wide asset allocation capabilities through
acquiring corporations and forming business ventures in the US,
Europe, and Asia, to bridge the gap between the Chinese and the
global financial markets in the long term. In pursuance of its growth
strategy, the Company will continue to expand its existing financial
services business, including securities brokerage, securities margin
financing, leverage and acquisition financing and money lending,
and also plans to further develop its business into the provision of
asset and wealth management to compliment the securities and fund
management business, and direct investment business.

In addition, the Group is currently in discussions with other financial
institutions to source a wide range of mutual funds and other investment
products for its clients. Moreover, the Group plans to set up different
forms of private equity funds for its clients. The private equity funds
will initially focus on the theme of investing in asset-backed fixed
income products and target high net worth individuals and companies
that qualify as professional investors under the SFO.

For its Enterprise sector, the Company will focus on the provision
of services and products in connection to the mother-infant-children
demographic, in particular, the higher-end of the segment in the
greater China area. The segment is expected to benefit from the fast-
growing in vitro fertilization (IVF), noninvasive prenatal testing (NIPT),
Cancer Screening, Precision Medicine and IVD service sectors in
China. The Company will actively expand the business along the value
chain of medical services and the mother-infant-children industry,
so as to capitalize on the enormous potential within the industry in
Greater China and to equip Mason Financial to become the “Top Pick
in mother-infant-children industry”.

In addition, through its dual-expansion strategy, the Company will
be able to create synergies between these two sectors through its
extensive network of financial institutions and quality high net worth
client base in China. It has identified several synergistic business
opportunities among medical and healthcare companies on the
platform. The Company intends to bring tailored products and services
to the mother-infant-children industry chain and demographics and to
establish industry-specific private equity, in order to build a synergistic
mechanism where the financial and medical sector can complement
and empower each other. The mechanism will promote cooperation
among investees and provide funding for further acquisitions and
expansion.
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On the strength of its abundant capital, differentiated development
strategy, experienced management with global insight and outstanding
servicing team, the Group is confident of its future prospects and is
committed to building itself into a leading global financial conglomerate
with a global asset allocation capability.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 106 (2015: 14)
employees excluding directors. The Group endeavors to maintain its
employees’ remuneration in line with the market trend and to remain
competitive. Employees’ remuneration is determined in accordance
with the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies based on their
performance. The Group also provides comprehensive benefit
packages and career development opportunities for its employees,
including retirement benefits, medical benefits and internal and external
training programmes, tailored in accordance with individual needs.
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EEENWED

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS EARE
List of stocks in terms of market value as at 31 December 2016 —E—RNF+_BA=+—HHTEILE
H(Jﬁlzw

Percentage to

Number of  Proportion of total assets
shares shares held Investment ~ Market value ~ value of the
Name of stock listed on held as at as at cost as at asat  Groupasat
The Stock Exchange Brief description 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
of Hong Kong Stock Code  of the business 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
RZB-RE
RZB-7E  WIE-AF  RIB-xE  WIE-AE tZA=t-H
RERf LD tZR=t-B tZA=t-B fZA=t-B t+ZA=t-H Eﬁ%lé?
R ks XHEN FRRO%E  FRROLA  2RERA ZmE BB
HK$ HK$
i B
Kong Sun Holdings Limited 295 Investment in and operation of photovoltaic
power plants, properties investment,
manufacturing and sale of life-like plants. 101,880,213 0.68% 122,684,153 34,639,272 0.69%
TUERERAR EREREERE - BHERE
HERHERERY -
Hengtou Securities Co., 1476 Provision of financial products & services
Limited - H Shares to corporations, financial institutions,
government entities & individuals,
through brokerage & wealth management,
investment management, proprietary trading
& investment banking business. 40,376,000 896% 161,996,112 181,692,000 3.60%
fERRSARATHR FROLRHEER  REER
BHERARRERTEROLE -
TREE  DFERREARMER
ERREE
China Huarong Asset 2199 Provide financial asset management in China,
Management Co., Limited include distressed asset management,
financial services and asset management
and investment. 2,523,000 0.01% 7,874,631 7,039,170 0.14%
TREREEEERND ROERUGHEEEE (BRTREE
ERAT BB SRRBIREEERRRE -
Harbin Bank Co., Limited 6138 Provision of deposit services, loan services and
- H Shares payment and settlement services, as well as
other approved business. 120,403,000 3.98% 385,567,831 275,722,870 5.47%
REERTROER REFRERE - ERRERARRE
AR—HR % AREBEHENER o
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List of stocks in terms of market value as at 31 December 2015 —_E—RAF+_HA=+—H#HTEILE

BB
Percentage to
Number of  Proportion of total assets
shares shares Investment ~ Market value ~ value of the
Name of stock listed on held as at held as at cost as at asat  Groupasat
The Stock Exchange of Brief description 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Hong Kong Stock Code  of the business 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
H-2-1F
RZE-1f WF-2F RZZB-RF  MIE-RE tZAZT-H
tZR=t-B tZA=t-B fZA=t-B tZR=t-B {AREEE
WMLz RGEE  RBRE  EEN FERO%E  FRROLA  2RERA ZmE BEZAM
HK$ HK$
B AT
HengTen Networks Group 136 Investment and trading of securities, provision
Limited of finance, property investment and
manufacturing and sales of accessories for
photographic products. 1,326,384,000 1.80% 1,220,931,889 769,302,720 17.44%
EREAEEERAR RERREES - RUAME 9%
RE  HERHERTERES «
G-Resources Group Limited 1051 Exploration and mining, sale of gold and silver
products. 955,407,521 360% 143885329 175,794,984 3.99%
ERERERERAR BARGFR  HESRER -
C C Land Holdings Limited 1224 Property development and investment; and
treasury investments. 116,285,274 4.49% 168,676,026 281,410,363 6.38%
TRAERERERAR NERERRE S RABRE -
Hengtou Securities Co., 1476 Provision of financial products & services
Limited - H Shares to corporations, financial institutions,
government entities & individuals,
through brokerage & wealth management,
investment management, proprietary trading
& investment banking business. 40,376,000 8.9556% 161,996,112 282,632,000 6.41%
BREFRAERAT BRALRYNEEE REER -
—HR RERARRERTEROLE -
SRR  HNERREARY
SHERRIEE -
Harbin Bank Co., Limited Provision of deposit services, loan services and
- H Shares 6138 payment and settlement services, as well as
other approved business. 120,408,000 398% 385,567,831 291,375,260 6.61%
REERTROER RUFREYR  ERRBRARK
AR GERE  IREMSHENER o
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Significant stocks gains/(losses) for the year ended 31 December BZE-_E—AF+-_H=+—BHILEE
2016 WE (BE)EERE
Unrealised Dividend
Realised gains/(losses) received
gains/(losses) for the year for the year
for the year ended ended ended
Name of stock listed on The 31 December 31 December 31 December
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Stock Code 2016 2016 2016
BE-_Z—X% BE-Z—RF
t=A=+—-H +=B=+-H BZ-Z-<E
HFEEZEER EFE2RER t=A=t+—H
REER P L 2 R0 B8 IR A7 1555 Wz, () ki (FE) LEFEZEWRE
HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
HengTen Networks Group Limited 136 (7,727,500) - -
ERAGEEERRAR
Kong Sun Holdings Limited 295 - (30,564,064) -
STIEZERERAE
Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited 708 (20,864,193) - -
EAREEXEEERRAT
Carnival Group International Holdings
Limited 996 (12,591,659) - -
EFEERZEREBRAT
China Smarter Energy Group Holdings
Limited 1004 (7,072,974) - -
HEEEEREEZERER DA
C C Land Holdings Limited 1224 (15,792,833) - 6,379,895
FABHIER AR A A
Hengtou Securities Co., Limited
- H Shares 1476 - (109,683,260) 4,230,281
EBRESFROERDA—HR
China Huarong Asset Management Co.,
Limited 2799 229,805 (844,140) -
TEEREEEERMDERD R
Harbin Bank Co., Limited 6138 - (6,909,130) 13,558,633

REERITROABRLE

2016 Annual Report & £ i} &

MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED RE€ZBRAF 25



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED T

Significant stocks gains/(losses) for the year ended 31 December

BE-F-—AF+-A=+—HLEE

2015 Wi (BE)EERE
Unrealised Dividend
Realised gains/(losses) received
gains/(losses) for the year for the year
for the year ended ended ended
Name of stock listed on The 31 December 31 December 31 December
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Stock Code 2015 2015 2015
BEZ_Z-1%F BEZ-Z-1%F
+t=ZA=+—H +t=A=+—8H BE-Z-1F
HFEEZEER EFEZRER t=A=t+—H
REER P L 2 R0 B8 RS Wz, (E8) Wz, (E8) FEzERRE
HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
HengTen Networks Group Limited 136 - (451,629,169) -
ERAKREEARAF
China Soft Power Technology Holdings
Limited 139 36,128,014 - -
FEHREIRREBBRLAF
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited 279 25,300,849 - -
RRERERERAT
China Innovative Finance Group Limited 412 (59,415,943) - -
FEHEREBERLR
Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited 708 = 77,249,578 =
BAREEXEEERRATE
NetMind Financial Holdings Limited 985 72,077,707 - -
RELEEERRAR
China Smarter Energy Group
Holdings Limited 1004 44,817,175 - -
HTEEBRREEZERERA A
C C Land Holdings Limited 1224 - 112,734,337 161,849
FaEERERL A
Hengtou Securities Co., Limited
- H Shares 1476 - (102,935,831) -
ERESFBROERLA—HK
Harbin Bank Co., Limited 6138 - 129,379,148 13,739,924

REERITROARLE

The stock market in 2017 may continue to be extremely volatile and

uncertain, with higher-than-usual risks and a binary set of outcomes
that will have dramatically contrasting results.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ko Po Ming, aged 58, has over 33 years of extensive experience in
finance and investment banking business. Mr. Ko has been appointed
as the Joint Chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 8 September 2016.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ko was the Chief Executive Officer
of CMBC International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. From October 2012 to March
2015, Mr. Ko was a consultant of China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd., Hong Kong Branch and was responsible for the setting up of
CMBC International Holdings Limited. Prior to cofounding Goldbond
Capital Holdings Limited (“GCHL”) in 2003, he was the Head of Asian
Corporate Finance of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited where he
was in charge of the corporate finance business in Asia. GCHL was
acquired by Piper Jaffray Companies (NYSE: PJC) in 2007 and its name
was changed to Piper Jaffray Asia Holdings Limited (“PJA”). Since
then and until September 2012, Mr. Ko served as the chief executive
officer of PJA. Mr. Ko graduated from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1982 with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Ko had acted as independent non-executive directors of a number
of Hong Kong and Mainland China listed companies, including (i)
Nanjing Panda Electronics Company Limited (stock code: 553) between
1996 and 1999; (ii) Dazhong Transport (Group) Company Limited (SHA:
600611) between 1997 and 2003; (iii) Chinese Energy Holdings Limited
(formerly known as iMerchants Limited (stock code: 8009)) between
2000 and 2004; and (iv) Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group
Company Limited (stock code: 1065) between 2003 and 2009. Mr.
Ko was a Listing Committee member of the Main Board and Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange between May 2003 and June
2009. At present, Mr. Ko is a non-executive director of Globe Metals
and Mining Limited (ASX: GBE) and Petro-king Oilfield Services Ltd.
(stock code: 2178) respectively. He is also a trustee of St. Johnsbury
Academy, an independent day and boarding secondary school. St.
Johnsbury Academy is a non-profit corporation under section 501
(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in the United States of America.
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Mr. Chang Tat Joel, aged 48, has been appointed as an executive
Director, a member of the remuneration committee of the Company,
the Chief Operating Officer and the Authorised Representative of
the Company since 8 September 2016. Mr. Chang has considerable
strategic, financial and advisory experience. He was the co-founder
of AID Partners Capital Limited and a founder of Genius Link Assets
Management Limited, both are private equity investment companies.
He was an executive director and investment committee member
of AID Partners Capital Limited, and is responsible for its strategic
investment planning. Prior to founding AID Partners Capital Limited, he
was the chief investment officer of Investec Asia Limited, a managing
director of China Everbright Capital Limited and an executive director
of BNP Prime Peregrine Capital Limited. He is also a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Monash University
in 1990.

Mr. Chang is a non-executive director of AID Partners Technology
Holdings Limited (stock Code: 8088), an independent non-executive
director of Dragonite International Limited (stock code: 329), a non-
executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 295) and an
independent non-executive director of Hailiang International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2336). He was formerly an independent non-
executive director of Kingsoft Corporation Limited (stock code: 3888),
and was an executive director and the chief financial officer of Orange
Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
1132). He was an independent director of China Mobile Games and
Entertainment Group Limited, a company previously listed on NASDAQ.

Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela, aged 43, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since 26 April 2016. Ms. Lui is also
the chief financial officer of the Group. Ms. Lui has also been appointed
as the Company Secretary and an Authorised Representative of the
Company since 8 September 2016. She is responsible for overall
financial strategies, planning and management of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Lui had over 4 years of experience in
audits in an international certified public accounting firms, over 16
years of experience in accounts, finance, operations, compliance and
company secretarial duties in a listed securities firm and over 7 years
of experience in company secretarial duties in a listed electroplating
equipment designing and manufacturing company in Hong Kong.
She has over 20 years of experience in finance, accounting, and
management and company secretary as well as extensive experience in
management and operations of securities business. Ms. Lui graduated
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Azusa Pacific
University in California, USA and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is currently
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the HKICPA.
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Mr. Man Wai Chuen, aged 53, has been appointed as a Director of
the Company since July 2013. He has over 20 years of experience
in company secretarial and accounting fields. Mr. Man was formerly
an independent non-executive director of Skyway Securities Group
Limited (stock code: 1141) from November 2014 to November 2015
and China Optoelectronics Holding Group Company Limited (stock
code: 1332) from August 2015 to January 2016, both of which are listed
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Man holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and an associate member of the HKICPA.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph, aged 57, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director and the Joint Chairman of the Company, and is
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company since 26
April 2016. Mr. Tong has over 30 years of experience in the financial
services industry. He was an executive director of Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 86), from 4 December 2003 to 25 January 2016. During
this period, he held various positions including chief executive officer
of the Capital Markets and Institutional Brokerage department. He has
also previously held senior positions with a number of international
banks and financial institutions, including ABN AMRO Bank, CCIC
Finance Limited, Bain & Co. Securities Limited and Bali International
Finance Limited.

Mr. Tong was also an independent non-executive director of Carry
Wealth Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 643), from 11 July 2013 to 4 July 2016.
Mr. Tong is an independent director of Jih Sun Financial Holding
Co., Ltd. (and two of its subsidiaries), the shares of which are listed
on the Gre Tai Securities Market (GTSM) in Taiwan. Mr. Tong has a
Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, and is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol, aged 41, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company since 5 October 2016. Ms.
Hui has more than 18 years’ experience in property development,
and more than 10 years’ experience in management and strategic
planning of listed companies. Ms. Hui obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
in Commerce majoring in Accounting from Macquarie University in
Australia in 1997. She is also a Certified Practising Accountant in
Australia. Ms. Hui is currently a member of Beijing Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a council member
of Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and a member of
the Youth Committee of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese. Ms. Hui is currently the vice chairman of Shanghai Shimao
Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (SHA:
600823), and the vice chairman and president of Shimao International
Holdings Limited. Ms. Hui is also the sole director of Future Achiever
Limited and the daughter of Mr. Hui Wing Mau, the ultimate beneficial
owner of Future Achiever Limited, which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, aged 62, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since August 2015, and is the
chairman of the audit committee, a member of both the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. He graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in
accounting in October 1975 and was conferred an Honorary Fellow in
November 2002. Mr. Lam became a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in June 1983, a fellow member of
the Chartered Accountants of Australia and New Zealand in June 1999,
a fellow member of the HKICPA in June 1989 and a fellow member of
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in January
2015. Mr. Lam was previously a member of the Listing Committee and
the Financial Reporting Advisory Panel of the Stock Exchange from
1997 to 2003, a committee member of HKICPA from 1994 to 2009.
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Mr. Lam was a partner with PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong
from July 1993 to June 2013. He has extensive experience in finance
and accounting, auditing and business consultation. Since October
2013, Mr. Lam has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1349). From
June 2014 to September 2015, he served as an independent non-
executive director of Kate China Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8125). Since January 2015,
he has been serving as an independent non-executive director of
Spring Asset Management Limited (the units of Spring Real Estate
Investment Trust, which is managed by Spring Asset Management
Limited, is listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1426). He has
been serving as an independent non-executive director of Vital Mobile
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 6133) since September 2014, an independent non-executive
director of Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8271) since July 2015,
an independent non-executive director of COSCO Shipping Ports
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1199)
and an independent non-executive director of Shougang Concord
Century Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 103) since August 2015, an independent non-executive
director of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2689) since March 2016 and an
independent non-executive director of WWPKG Holdings Company
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8069)
since December 2016.

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

Biographies of Directors

EEHE

MEER—AA=FLtAE=ZE—=

NAETEERKEGTMEKIER
A FEREM s 85t - Bt REKR
HIHEELELR - A-ZE—=F1+
B ME4EEFELEEBRIEYESE
BOBRAB(—KRABERMEHHL
T RPARLE 1349 MBI FEHTE
E-BIE-NEAAEZZE-HFAN
B BEESHEFEL£ERERAA
(—XREEXFTETAT - BRIPARSE -
8125) B FHITEE - B=-F—H
F—f  HEAEREEEEARAT
(BEREX£EANEN  HBEREEE
BERATERE » REXFLET - B
R 1426) B EHITES - HE
—E-NENBEREABEIZERER
DREN—FKRBERXFFLEHHLAT » B
REE - 6133) MBI FHITES - B=
E-AFE+tAETERREBEBRASERE
RABN(—FIREIFLETHLR > K
BARSE 8271 B EHITES » I
BE-Z-—HFNAEFEHIREESROE
RAB(—XRBEXMLETHAE - B
BRIFE 1M EEREEEBEERA
A(—FZRBEIETHNAR » BRHOK
K103 B IHTEE - BE-F—
ANEZARBRETREAE(ER)BRA
A(—ZREBIETHNAT  BRHARK
9 2689)MNBUIHTEERBELE
—~"ETZAREEMHEFEERERA
A(—XREIFETHAT » BRHK
5% 8069) BN IEHITEE -

MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E{EZ2HRATF 31



Biographies of Directors

EEHE

Mr.Yuen Kwok On, aged 51, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since October 2015, and is
the chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of both the
audit committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Yuen graduated from the La Trobe University in Australia in July 1991
with a bachelor degree of economics. He obtained a master degree
of business administration from Hong Kong Baptist University in
December 1998. Mr. Yuen is a member of the CPA Australia and the
HKICPA since September 1994 and April 1995, respectively. He has
more than 22 years of working experience in the field of finance and
accounting. Mr. Yuen was the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited (“OSGH”) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1132). Prior to joining OSGH in October 1996,
Mr. Yuen had over 5 years of audit working experience in international
accounting firms. Mr. Yuen worked in OSGH for more than 16 years
and left OSGH in June 2013. He has extensive experience in financial
analysis, risk control and mergers and acquisitions, as well as in-depth
knowledge of operations of film distribution and exhibition business.
Since July 2013, Mr. Yuen has been serving as an independent non-
executive director of AID Partners Capital Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 8088).

Mr. Tian Ren Can, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, and is the member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 26 April 2016. Mr. Tian has more
than 20 years of working experience in the field of finance. Mr. Tian is
currently the chief executive officer of UBP Investments Management
(Shanghai) Limited. He was the chief executive officer of HFT
Investments Management Co., Ltd. from April 2003 to March 2015.
Before that, Mr. Tian worked for multi-national financial institutes. Mr.
Tian obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration awarded
jointly by Manchester Business School and University of Wales of the
United Kingdom. He obtained a Master Degree in Political Sciences
International Relations from Shanghai International Studies University.
Mr. Tian graduated from Shanghai Foreign Languages Institute with
a Bachelor Degree in French Language and French Literature. Since
June 2016, Mr. Tian has been serving as an executive director of
Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Ltd. (formerly known as Chun
Sing Engineering Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2277.
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The board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) submits
their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

At the beginning of the Year, the Group was principally engaged in
the business of investment in securities trading, money lending and
investment holding. Following the completion of the acquisition of the
financial services business in February 2016, the Group was, for the
main part of the year, principally engaged in the business of dealing in
securities, commodities broking, provision of bullion trading services,
provision of securities margin financing, provision of investment and
corporate finance advisory services, investment in securities trading,
money lending and investment holding.

In October 2016, the Group expanded its business into the healthcare
sector through the acquisitions of several companies engaged in the
provision of privately assisted reproductive services in Hong Kong.
Subsequently in November 2016, the Group further developed its
money lending business by acquiring a property mortgage loan and
securitization company in Hong Kong.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s business review and
prospects can be found in the “Chairman Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report while details
of the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

The nature of the Group’s financial business has low carbon emission
impact. The Group promotes environmental protection and encourages
its employees to recycle. It promotes the idea of “green office”
practices such as double-sided printing and copying, promoting the
use of recycled paper for printing.

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
complied with all applicable laws and regulations that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Group has continued to maintain good

relationships with its employees, customers, suppliers, service
providers and investors generally.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 85 to 87.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity from pages 90 to 91 and note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 223 and 224.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the Year are set out in notes 28 and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. As at 31 December 2016, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had outstanding share options
and none were issued.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Ko Po Ming (Joint Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
appointed with effect from 8 September 2016)
Chang Tat Joel (appointed with effect from 8 September 2016)
Lui Choi Yiu, Angela
(appointed with effect from 26 April 2016)
Man Wai Chuen
Zhang Yongdong
(resigned with effect from 26 April 2016)
Cheung Ka Yee
(resigned with effect from 26 April 2016)
Cheung Wing Ping (resigned with effect from 8 September 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Tong Tang, Joseph (Chairman, appointed with effect
from 26 April 2016 and re-designated as Joint Chairman
on 8 September 2016)
Hui Mei Mei, Carol (appointed with effect from 5 October 2016)
Xia Xiaoning (resigned with effect from 19 September 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Lam Yiu Kin
Yuen Kwok On
Tian Ren Can

(appointed with effect from 26 April 2016)
Antonio Maria Santos

(resigned with effect from 26 April 2016)

Pursuant to Article 96 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Ko Po
Ming, Mr. Chang Tat Joel and Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at that meeting.

Moreover, pursuant to Article 115 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Tong Tang, Joseph, Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela and Mr. Tian Ren Can
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at that meeting.

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company. The Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting do not have service contracts
which are not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES MBARIES

The names of Directors who have served on the Boards of the BE-S—RE+=-A=+—HILEE
Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2016, FH-EBE—AF+-HBA=+—RHEZ=Z

or during the period from 31 December 2016 to 30 March 2017, being —tE=ZA=1+H(AERZEETER
the date of the Report of Directors of this annual report, are set out EMBEE B REAQAFAMBLARIE
below: ESRBEWESRZENT ¢
Chan Ching Kit B IE £

Chan Kok Chung Johnny PRE R

Chan Wing Kei BROKE

Chang Tat Joel e Seic]

Cheung Ka Yee REE

Chong Ka Yee HEHE

Fan King Chi Kenneth SEAE

Fok Tsz Chun Kenny EFk

Gao Qin SE

Ho Wing Chiu Clement Al 7K B

Ho Chan Yuk Lin Anita AR EE

Kevin Phillip Kevin Phillip

Ko Po Ming ==t

Lai Kwai Chun LY ES )

Lam Po Mui EB1E

Lam Sze Wai Derek HEE

Lee Tai Hay Dominic Z KE&

Leung Po Tin REH

Lin John Sian-zu AR 20

Liu Jianyi 21518

Lui Choi Yiu Angela AL

Man Wai Chuen YEF

Nicole Ramroop Nicole Ramroop
Pun Hong Hai ERE

Robert James laia Il Robert James laia Il
Wong Chi Kin Kenny B

Wong Chi Kit Nelson 4=

Wong Hoi Ki =igH

Wong Shun Yun Fr-

Wong Ying Seung Asiong TR

Yang Haoying BER

Ye Faduan BE#®m

Yeung Shu Fan EEIE

Yip Shing Fung BEIRIE

Yuen Chi Fung REE

Zhang Shang KL

Zhang Yongdong JRKER
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2016:

Directors’ Report
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EENRORERARNZEZRRA

REZZB-R"E+ZA=+—H ' F2F
EERRSTHRABRA QBN HE AR
EE(ERREBSRPERG ([ #5RHA
EiRGIDEXVED) 2R~ HERD R
BEEPHEBERACERNTAARERSR
HERPIEIG2RIFE 2B CMARE
EHBITAZESETESRZ 2BRE
SAITHRETF DAMNSA QT RER
Fre sl XRWT :

RZB-ARE+ZA=+t—H  RERQ
AIEERNMEERD 2FREWNT ¢

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of the
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held Company
EARAFBET
EEna B EHEEE sl EE BRAZBMAOES LT
Tong Tang Joseph Interest of controlled corporation 3,842,524,965 20.84%
(Note 1)
EE ZEFEEER (Bftat1)
Ko Po Ming Beneficial owner 261,200,000 1.42%
S EREAA
Chang Tat Joel Interest of controlled corporation 199,740,000 1.08%
(Note 2)
ERizEE ZEEEEER (Btaz2)
Notes: MisE :
1. These shares are held by Grace Gorgeous Investment Holdings Ltd., 1. ZERMANEZREEIZERERE QT

40% of which is held by First Elite Ventures Limited, which is in turn
wholly-owned by Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph, who is a non-executive Director
and the Joint Chairman of the Company.

2. These Shares are held by True Elite Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Chang Tat Joel, who is an executive Director of the Company.

At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

No contract of significance has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder
as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the (“Listing Rules”) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the following interests and short positions of
5% or more of the issued share capital and underlying shares of the
Company (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

EXEH

RAFERS NN FEEMEE - HE
EAALQE - HERATIME LTS
BV MARAESNAEPEENEE
BEERERCBEREN -

REEARRREMNBLARALEERE
RERXSMERQARS EHRAT E
TRAUDFEENARAREKE R F
ZERBRRITLEREN o

TERRREEMALTHRERG RBERR
MZERRRE

RZE-—RE+ZA=1+—H  &x27F
REFERPERPIEIBHEAFEEZ
ERBEMEEUATALTQEFERQTE
ERRETHRAR)EEARQATCERITR
AREERDS%I U LEZERZR AR -

Long position A
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage
Name Nature of interest shares held of shareholding
al e BEME FHETERHEB BREMAOBSLL
Grace Gorgeous Investment  Beneficial interest (Note1) 3,842,524,965 20.84%
Holdings Limited
REREZERBRAT BRER (M)
Future Achiever Limited Beneficial interest 3,072,880,000 16.67%
B R
Zhang Haifeng Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,459,528,135 7.92%

RO SEEEERER (ME2)
Notes: st
1.  These shares are held by Grace Gorgeous Investment Holdings Ltd., 1. ZEROHBEZREZRER AT

40% of which is held by First Elite Ventures Limited, which is in turn
wholly-owned by Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph, who is a non-executive Director
and the Joint Chairman of the Company.

2. These shares are held by True Dynasty Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Joy Monitor Limited, which is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
Haifeng.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in this
report, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong to all staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income. Details of the retirement scheme are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentages to the Group’s revenue (including
revenue arising from provision of financial services, money lending and
investment holding segments but excluding securities trading segment)
attributable to its largest customer and five largest customers were
approximately 7.52% and 27.13% respectively.

As the Group had no significant purchases (including the provision of
financial services, money lending and investment holding segments, but
excluding securities trading segment) during the Year, the information
on major suppliers is not presented.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the Year did a Director,
an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any
of the Group’s five largest customers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the
fullest extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover for legal actions
brought against the Directors and directors of the subsidiaries of the
Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, no Director of
the Company is considered to have an interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, a continuing connected transaction undertaken
by the Group is included in the transactions set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to the requirements
of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of this transaction are
described as follows:

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 December
2016, Pioneer Leap Investment Limited (“Pioneer Leap”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an investment
agreement with Golden Metro Investments Limited (“Golden
Metro”), Cosmicfield Investments Limited (“Cosmicfield”), Shining
Time Holdings Limited (“Shining Time”) and their management team
(comprising Mr. Yip Shing Fung, Mr. Ye Faduan, Mr. Ye Fachao, Mr.
Lin Han and Ms. Gao Qin) in relation to the acquisition of 55% equity
interest in Shining Time, a company engaging in the mother-infant-
children products business in Southern China. At the same time,
Pioneer Leap entered into a loan agreement with Cosmicfield, to
extend part of the proceeds of the investment in a form of a loan of
RMB140,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$157,696,000) (the
“Loan”) to Cosmicfield and Cosmicfield, in turn lends to Golden Metro
and the burden of the Loan between Cosmicfield and Golden Metro
shall simultaneously be novated to Shining Time and be settled by the
allotment and issuance of certain Shining Time’s shares to Cosmicfield
by Shining Time. Upon completion of the acquisition on 31 December
2016, the provision of the Loan by Pioneer Leap to Cosmicfield (a
substantial shareholder of Shining Time) under the loan agreement
constituted a financial assistance and hence, a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. Since (i) each of
Cosmicfield and Golden Metro was regarded as a connected person
of the Company at the subsidiary level; (ii) the Board (including all the
independent non-executive directors) had approved the transaction
and (iii) the independent non-executive directors have confirmed that
the transaction was fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole,
the transaction contemplated under the loan agreement was subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but was exempted
from circular, independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transaction in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements and have confirmed that the continuing connected
transaction has been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and are in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

For the propose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditors
of the Company has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transaction abovementioned:

() was not approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

(i)  was not in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if
the transaction involve provision of goods and services by the
Group;

(iiiy was not entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transaction; and

(iv) has exceeded the caps stated in the relevant announcement.

Details of the related party transactions (which did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
discloseable under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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Rules and Regulations Risk

Hong Kong financial services industry in which the Group operates
is highly regulated. There are changes in rules and regulations from
time to time in relation to the regulatory regime for the financial
services industry, including but not limited to the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules and the Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs. Failure to comply
with applicable rules and regulations from time to time, might result
in fines, restrictions on the Group’s activities or even suspension or
revocation of some or all of the Group’s business licences.

Market Risk

The Group’s financial services related businesses are exposed to
market risk. The Hong Kong financial markets are directly affected
by, among others, the global and local political, economic and social
environments. Historically, global and local financial markets have
fluctuated considerably over time. Any sudden downturn in these
financial markets may adversely affect the market sentiment in general.
Further description of the market performance can be found in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this report under
the paragraph entitled “Market Review”.

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk
The Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016, were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and RMB. In view of the potential
RMB exchange rate fluctuations, our Group will engage in certain
hedging or other activities as appropriate, to mitigate its exposure to
the foreign exchange rate risk.

Liquidity Risk

As the Group’s financial services business is highly capital intensive,
the Group faces situations which may adversely affect its liquidity.
In order to finance the growth of its financial services business, the
Group requires substantial funding resources and a strong capital
base. The Company recently carried out a Rights Issue exercise which
successfully raised approximately HK$2.84 billion and in future it will
consider other fund raising activities, such as share placements, bank
borrowings and the issuance of convertible bonds, etc. to strengthen
the Group’s capital base and financial position.
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Investment Risk

The Group’s financial services related business is exposed to a
substantial amount of investment risk as this is an inherent risk of
the financial services industry. Even though, the Group has set up
very detailed analysis and approval process for each of its investment
decision, it is still subject to the risk of its investments not performing
according to its expectations.

Credit Risk

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations may be
affected by its ability to maintain and/or improve the quality of its
loan portfolio. Deterioration in the quality of its loan portfolio may
occur due to the general slowdown of the economy. Moreover, actual
or perceived deterioration of the creditworthiness of borrowers, a
slowdown of the economic growth, reduced profitability or cash flows
of corporate borrowers or the unemployment of individual borrowers,
may cause our asset quality to deteriorate and may lead to significant
increases in its allowance for impairment losses on loans.

Internal Control Risk

The internal control, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving an entity’s control
objective. The likelihood of achievement is affected by limitations
inherent to internal control. These include the realities that human
judgment in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns
in internal control can occur because of human failures such as
simple errors or mistakes. Although great emphasis was placed by the
Group on internal control measures to detect and deter employee’s
malpractices and misconducts, there is no assurance that all such
measures are effective.

Settlement Risks

There is a minimum margin deposit for opening of each futures contract
as required by the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “Futures
Exchange”). Clients of the Group are required to maintain such
minimum margin deposit with the Group at all times as determined
by the Futures Exchange. Although the Group is entitled to close out
the futures contract when a client is unable to meet his/her margin call,
in the event that the client’s margin deposit with the Group is unable
to cover the loss arising from closing out of the futures contract, the
Group would be exposed to the risk of not being able to recover such
shortfall from the clients, particularly in times of a volatile market.
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Financing Risk

The Group normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash deposits
as collateral for providing margin financing to its clients. Margin loan
provided to a client is required to be maintained within the margin
value of his pledged securities, which means the aggregate market
value of his pledged securities after discounts. In the event that a
client is unable to meet a margin call, the Group is entitled to dispose
of the pledged securities and use the sale proceeds thereof towards
repayment of the loan. However, there is a risk that the amount
recovered from the disposal of the pledged securities may fall short
of the outstanding amount of the loan. The Group would suffer a loss
if it fails to recover the shortfall from its clients.

Operational and Trading System Risk

The financial operation of the Group’s business is highly dependent
on the capability and reliability of the computer systems used. The
computer system used by the Group for its business may be vulnerable
to a number of disruptions such as computer viruses, hackers or other
disruptive actions by visitors or other internet users. Such disruptions
may cause data corruption and interruptions, delay or cessation in
the services provided through the Group’s securities trading facilities.
Inappropriate use of the internet by third parties may also jeopardise
the security of confidential information (such as client data or trading
records) stored in the computer systems of the Group and cause
losses to the Group.

Competitive Risk

In the financial services sector, the Group faces intense competition
from the new e-services that have emerged as a result of the
advancement in technology in recent years. The growing acceptance
of retail investors to these new emerging e-brokerage services have
also added to the competition faced by the traditional brokerage
companies. Together, these factors have put immense pressure on
traditional securities brokerage companies including the Group, to
lower their commission rates.
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The healthcare services industry is highly competitive. Even though the
Group’s healthcare services are highly specialized and skill-intensive
i.e. in the provision of IVF treatments which caters mainly to a niche
market segment and the Group strives to be the leading provider in
this premium medical services segment, it still faces competition from
other healthcare services providers and specialist healthcare solutions
providers in Hong Kong.

Dependency Risk

The Group’s specialized healthcare business is highly dependent on
its ability to attract and retain highly skilled and professional medical
specialists and embryologists in Hong Kong. Competition for such
skilled and qualified professionals in Hong Kong is intense as the
pool of these specialist doctors and registered medical practitioners
is small. The Group’s business and future growth expansion are
dependent on its ability to attract and retain these specialists and
medical practitioners to practice at its medical centers.

The IVF business is also dependent on the technological advancements
in the IVF treatment techniques, and the costs of embracing these
advancements will have an impact the Group’s future performance
and competitiveness.

The success of the Group’s healthcare services is also dependent to
a significant extent on the recognition of it brand and reputation as a
reliable and results-proven service provider. Any complaint or litigation
from its clients in relation to the quality or result of services provided
by the Group may adversely affect its reputation or image and may
in turn, materially and adversely affect the demand for its services.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate and effective risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control
the various types of risk it faces. This is supplemented by active
management involvement and effective internal controls in the best
interests of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set on in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general AATBHREERFTBEASLES—
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor IERER BB ESTMEXRER

of the Company. NAIRBR DB ZZHED o
On behalf of the Board RREEE

Mason Financial Holdings Limited REEEERAA

Mr. Ko Po Ming BEFERTHAES
Joint Chairman & Chief Executive Officer BERLE

30 March 2017 —E—tF=A=1+H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of the
Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and integrity, and to ensuring transparent and adequate
levels of disclosure. No corporate governance committee has been
established and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") under Appendix 14 of the Rules governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The Board will continue to review and recommend such
steps as appropriate in a timely manner in order to comply with the
requirements of the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”), the
Company complied with all of the code provisions set out in the CG
Code, save for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7
as noted under the various sections of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all of the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements as set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition
The Board comprises nine members as at the date of this report and
their positions are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ko Po Ming (Joint Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Chang Tat Joel

Lui Choi Yiu, Angela

Man Wai Chuen

Non-executive Directors
Tong Tang, Joseph (Joint Chairman)
Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Independent Non-executive Directors
Lam Yiu Kin

Yuen Kwok On

Tian Ren Can
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Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business strategy,
management planning and control of the Company. The management
is responsible for day-to-day management of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Directors have
accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to carry out their
duties in an efficient and effective manner. Details of the backgrounds
and qualifications of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors” on pages 27 to 32 of this annual report.
None of the members of the Board have, in any respect, relation to
each other in any circumstances.

All of the Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the
best interests of the Company and the shareholders of the Company.
Other than the statutory duties imposed on each of them, all of the
Directors have exercised due care in monitoring the corporate matters
of the Company and have provided grave concern, sufficient time and
attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The chairman is responsible for the management of the Board and
external corporate communication whereas the chief executive is
responsible for the day-to-day operation, among other matters, the
implementation of overall strategy and direction set by the Board.

Code provision A.2.1 states that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. From 1 January to 25 April 2016, there was
deviation from this code provision in that Mr. Zhang Yongdong held
both positions. From 26 April to 7 September 2016, the Company did
not have a chief executive officer following Mr. Zhang’s resignation.
From 8 September to 31 December 2016, Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph
(“Mr. Tong”) and Mr. Ko Po Ming (“Mr. Ko”) were appointed as Joint
Chairman of the Company and at the same time, Mr. Ko was also
appointed as the chief executive officer. The Board recognizes that
this constitutes a deviation from the code provision A.2.1 however, the
Board is of the view that the current leadership structure facilitates the
execution of the business strategies, decision-making and maximizes
the effectiveness of the Group’s operations. The Board believes that
the vesting of the chairman’s power to two persons on a joint basis and
the presence of three independent non-executive Directors provide
adequate independence to the Board.
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Furthermore, as the Group is in a transformation phase following the
completion of a series of transactions, the Board believes that the
Company will benefit from the joint leadership of both Mr. Tong and
Mr. Ko drawing on their combined expertise and experience. Mr.
Tong and Mr. Ko, each has over 30 years extensive experience in the
finance industry and the Board is of the view that Mr. Tong provides
the strategic direction of the Group at the macro level while Mr. Ko
manages the daily operation of the Group and provides strategic
direction to the Group from the business and operational perspective.
There is clear understanding and expectation by the Board and within
the Group on the roles and responsibilities of Mr. Tong and Mr. Ko. At
the management level, the members of the management team report
to Mr. Ko on the operational front. At the Board level, the other Board
members accept the joint leadership of Mr. Tong and Mr. Ko and the
other non-executive Directors may hold informal meetings with Mr.
Tong in his capacity as a non-executive Joint Chairman to facilitate
effective communication and contribution to the Board. Hence, the
Board considers that the roles and responsibilities of Mr. Tong and
Mr. Ko are clearly defined.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Directors, or between the Joint Chairman
(i.e. each of Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph and Mr. Ko Po Ming) and Mr.
Zhang Yongdong (who resigned with effect from 26 April 2016)).

Non-executive Directors

During the Year, Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph and Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol
were appointed as a non-executive Directors with no specific terms
of office. They will hold office until the next annual general meeting of
the Company at which they will be eligible for re-election. Thereafter,
they will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Articles or Association of the Company.
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Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed by reference
to their respective qualification and experience to ensure that they
are competent to perform their duties and to protect the interests
of the Shareholders. The independent non-executive Directors were
appointed for a specific term of 3 years by the Company and they
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board assessed and concluded that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent under the
definition of the Listing Rules.

Board Composition

The Board has established a set of Board Diversity Policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well
as achieving our business objectives and sustainable development.
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, required expertise,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The current Board consists
of a diverse mix of Board members appropriate to the requirement
of the business of the Company.

Attendance Records
The Board held 17 board meetings in 2016. Details of the attendance
of the Board members are as follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Ko Po Ming (appointed with

effect from 8 September 2016) 4/4
Chang Tat Joel (appointed with

effect from 8 September 2016) 4/4
Lui Choi Yiu, Angela (appointed with

effect from 26 April 2016) 9/10
Man Wai Chuen 16/17
Zhang Yongdong (resigned with

effect from 26 April 2016) 5/7
Cheung Ka Yee (resigned with

effect from 26 April 2016) 6/7
Cheung Wing Ping (resigned with

effect from 8 September 2016) 9/13
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Non-executive Directors

Tong Tang, Joseph (appointed with

effect from 26 April 2016) 10/10
Hui Mei Mei, Carol (appointed with

effect from 5 October 2016) 2/2
Xia Xiaoning (resigned with

effect from 19 September 2016) 9/13
Independent Non-executive Directors
Lam Yiu Kin 17/17
Yuen Kwok On 17/17
Tian Ren Can (appointed with

effect from 26 April 2016) 10/10
Antonio Maria Santos (resigned with

effect from 26 April 2016) 6/7

Save for regular board meetings held in 2016, meetings of the Directors
were held to discuss and transact other special businesses. The Board
members are provided with appropriate and sufficient information in a
timely manner to keep abreast of the Group’s latest developments. All
businesses transacted at the board meetings are properly documented
and recorded.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive and formal
induction to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of
(i) the business and operations of the Group; (ii) his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements; (iii) the corporate governance code of the Company
and (iv) the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses of the
Company whenever necessary. The Directors are committed to
complying with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’
training. All of the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided their training records for the Year to the Company. During the
Year, the Company has also provided various training to the Directors
such as refresher courses on the CG Code and Listing Rules and Risk
Management training.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Ko Po Ming

Chang Tat Joel

Lui Choi Yiu Angela
Man Wai Chuen
Zhang Yongdong
Cheung Ka Yee
Cheung Wing Ping

Non-executive Directors

Tong Tang, Joseph
Hui Mei Mei Carol
Xia Xiaoning

Independent Non-executive Directors

Lam Yiu Kin

Yuen Kwok On

Tian Ren Can
Antonio Maria Santos

Types of Trainings

> > >
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A:  attending seminars/courses/conferences in person or by teleconference
in relation to the responsibilities of directors’ of a listed company,

corporate governance and regulatory updates

B:  orientation of newly-appointed directors
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in January 2003 and written
terms of reference were formulated and were revised on 29 March
2012 and 18 December 2015 and the adopted terms of reference are
in compliance with the code provision in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among others, are:

Relationship with the Company’s auditor

(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

(o) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(c) to act as the key representative for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

(d) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor”
shall include any entity that is under common control, ownership
or management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable
and informed third party knowing all relevant information would
reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where
action or improvement is needed;
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Review of the Company’s financial information

(e)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them. In reviewing these
reports before submission to the Board, the Audit Committee
should focus particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i)  major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vij compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding (e) above: (i) members of the Audit Committee should
liaise with the Board and senior management and the Audit
Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditor; and (ii) the Audit Committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function
and compliance function or the auditor;

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems

(9)
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to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or by the Board
itself, to review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
the management to ensure that the management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;
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(i) to consider any findings of major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and the management’s response
to these findings;

() where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

(k) to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

() to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
the management’s response;

(m) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

(n) toreview arrangements that employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and the
Audit Committee is to ensure proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

(o) toreportto the Board on the matters in these Terms of Reference;
and

(p) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely:

Lam Yiu Kin (Chairman)

Yuen Kwok On
Tian Ren Can (appointed with effect from 26 April 2016)
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During the Year, the Audit Committee met three times with the external
auditor and/or representatives of the management of the Company.
The attendance records of each Audit Committee member in 2016
are set out below:
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Committee members Attendance
Lam Yiu Kin (Chairman) 3/3
Yuen Kwok On 3/3
Tian Ren Can

(appointed with effect from 26 April 2016) 2/2
Antonio Maria Santos

(resigned with effect from 26 April 2016) 11

The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 with the external auditors and reviewed the Company’s unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2016. The Audit
Committee also reviewed and discussed the internal control necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Audit Committee submitted its views and recommendations on
the Group’s financial statements to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed on 28 June 2005. The
Company formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee and the adopted terms of reference are in compliance with
the code provision in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others, are:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) toreview and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;
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() to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

() to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

(i)  when the occasion arises, to advise shareholders on how to vote
with respect to any service contracts of directors that require
shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules;
and

() to do any such things to enable the Remuneration Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, one executive Director
and one non-executive Director, namely:

Yuen Kwok On (Chairman) (independent non-executive director)
Lam Yiu Kin (independent non-executive director)
Tian Ren Can (independent non-executive director,

appointed with effect from 26 April 2016)
Chang Tat Joel (executive director, appointed with

effect from 8 September 2016)
Hui Mei Mei, Carol (non-executive director, appointed with effect from
5 October 2016)
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The Remuneration Committee held four meetings in 2016 to review
and assess the performance and remuneration of the directors and
to review the proposed remuneration packages of the new directors
and their terms of service, to make recommendations to the Board.
Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings
are set out below:
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Committee members Attendance
Yuen Kwok On (Chairman) 4/4
Lam Yiu Kin 4/4
Tian Ren Can (appointed with

effect from 26 April 2016) 2/2

Chang Tat Joel (appointed with
effect from 8 September 2016) 11
Hui Mei Mei, Carol (appointed with

effect from 5 October 2016) 0/0
Antonio Maria Santos (resigned with

effect from 26 April 2016) 2/2
Man Wai Chuen (resigned with

effect from 8 September 2016) 2/3

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was formed on 29 March 2012. The Company formulated
written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee and the
adopted terms of reference are in compliance with the code provision
in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee, among others, are:

(@) to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

(d) to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the
objectives; and make disclosure of its review results in the
Corporate Governance Report annually from year 2013 onwards;
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() to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors
in particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

() to consider other topics as defined by the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive
Directors, namely:

Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph (Chairman) (non-executive director,
appointed with effect from 26 April 2016)

Lam Yiu Kin (independent non-executive director)

Yuen Kwok On (independent non-executive director)

Tian Ren Can (independent non-executive director,
appointed with effect from 26 April 2016)

Hui Mei Mei, Carol (non-executive director,
appointed with effect from 5 October 2016)

The Nomination Committee held four meetings in 2016 to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, to make
recommendations to the Board on the new appointments and the re-
appointments of directors and to review the composition of the Board.
Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are
set out below:
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Committee members Attendance
Tong Tang, Joseph (Chairman,

appointed with effect from 26 April 2016) 2/2
Lam Yiu Kin 4/4
Yuen Kwok On 4/4
Tian Ren Can (appointed with effect

from 26 April 2016) 2/2
Hui Mei Mei, Carol (appointed with effect

from 5 October 2016) 0/0
Zhang Yongdong (Chairman, resigned with effect

from 26 April 2016) 0/2
Cheung Ka Yee (resigned with effect

from 26 April 2016) 2/2
Antonio Maria Santos (resigned with effect

from 26 April 2016) 2/2
Lui Choi Yiu, Angela (resigned with effect

from 5 October 2016) 2/2
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ACCOUNTABILITY

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements and believe that these statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs and of
its results. The responsibilities of the Directors and Auditor are set
out on pages 76 to 84 of this annual report. The Board has adopted
appropriate accounting policies and made proper estimates for the
preparation of financial statements. The Directors confirm that, to the
best of their knowledge, information and belief and having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cause significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing
the financial statements for the financial year of 2016.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed
by the external auditor. During the Year, the remuneration paid and
payable to the Company’s auditor for the provision of services as
follows:

Audit services 2 HBRTE
Non-audit services (including tax services and review

of interim report and financial information)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness at least annually through the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and
corporate governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal controls, and the resourcing
of the finance and internal audit functions.

The Group has defined and endorsed the risk management policy,
align risk management objectives and strategies of the organization,
ensuring necessary resources are allocated to risk management and
to assign accountabilities and responsibilities at appropriate level
within the organization. The Risk & Compliance Committee assists
the Board and the Audit Committee in the review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis. The directors through the Audit Committee are kept
regularly apprised of significant risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance.

Appropriate policies and procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that key risks are identified, assessed and
managed within the defined risk tolerance level. Through such a
systematic approach, assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained
in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements.

The Group’s risk governance structure adopts a “Three Lines of
Defense Model”, which entails the accountabilities and responsibilities
across the organization as depicted in the below illustration.
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Oversight: Board of Directors
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The Risk & Compliance Committee, which co-ordinates enterprise
risk management activities and reviews significant aspects of risk
management for the Group, reports to the senior management at
each regularly scheduled meeting including amongst other things,
significant risks of the Group and the appropriate mitigation and/
or transfer of identified risks. The operating units of the Group, as
risk owners, identify, analyze, prioritize and monitor their own risks,
and report such risk management activities to Risk & Compliance
Committee on a regular basis. Proper escalation mechanism with well-
defined threshold and tolerance level is communicated to risk owners.

The senior management of the Group, supported by the Risk &
Compliance Committee and Internal Audit, is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and for providing regular reports to the Board
and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of these systems.

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the
core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, the
respective operating units will review and assess the status of potential
risks which may impact on their ability to achieve their business
objectives. This review process includes assessment as to whether
the existing system of internal controls continues to remain relevant,
adequately addresses potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.
The results of these reviews are recorded in the operating units risk
registers for monitoring and incorporated into the Group’s consolidated
risk register for analysis of potential strategic implications and for
regular reporting to the senior management.

During 2016, the Board has engaged an external consultant to perform
a review services of the effectiveness of the systems of internal
controls of the Group’s brokerage business operations focusing
on operational and compliance controls as well as general controls
environment on its information systems. The assessment results and
proposed improvement opportunities were discussed and agreed with
management and were reported to the Audit Committee. The Company
considers the above-mentioned risk management and internal control
systems of the Group during the Year are effective and adequate.
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General Meetings

During the year 2016, the Company held three general meetings
(including the annual general meeting). Individual resolution has
been proposed by the Chairman in the general meetings for each
substantial issue. At these general meetings, the Chairman of the
Company and/or the members of the Board (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) were available to answer questions raised by
shareholders. The attendance of each Director at the general meetings
of the Company for the Year is set out below:
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Executive Directors Attendance
Ko Po Ming (appointed with effect

from 8 September 2016) 1/1
Chang Tat Joel (appointed with effect

from 8 September 2016) 1/1
Lui Choi Yiu Angela (appointed with effect

from 26 April 2016) 2/3
Man Wai Cheun 3/3
Zhang Yongdong (resigned with effect

from 26 April 2016) 0/0
Cheung Ka Yee (resigned with effect

from 26 April 2016) 0/0
Cheung Wing Ping (resigned with effect

from 8 September 2016) 2/2
Non-executive Directors
Tong Tang Joseph (appointed with effect

from 8 September 2016) 2/3
Hui Mei Mei Carol (appointed with effect

from 5 October 2016) 0/1
Xia Xiaoning (resigned with effect

from 19 September 2016) 1/2
Independent Non-executive Directors
Lam Yiu Kin 3/3
Yuen Kwok On 0/3
Tian Ren Can (appointed with effect

from 26 April 2016) 0/3
Antonio Maria Santos (resigned with effect

from 26 April 2016) 0/0
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Code provision A.6.7 states that the independent non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. However, during the Year,
two of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Yuen Kwok On
and Mr. Tian Ren Can, did not attend any of the general meetings held
by the Company due to their other business commitments. Mr. Lam
Yiu Kin, an independent non-executive director, however attended all
the general meetings of the Company held during the Year to represent
the non-executive directors in developing a balanced understanding
of the views of the shareholders at those general meetings.

All resolutions put forward at the general meetings of the Company
were voted by way of poll and the announcement on the poll vote
results was made by the Company after the general meetings in the
manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights - Enquiries

Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board or put forward proposals
relating to the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group
to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders’ enquiries
or proposals can be directed in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary at Units 4708-10, 47/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong or by email to info@masonhk.com.

Shareholders’ Rights - Meetings

Pursuant to Article 69 of the Articles of Association of the Company
and Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong), shareholder(s) of the Company holding not less than
5% of the total voting rights of the Company may request the Board
of Directors of the Company to convene a general meeting by way of
depositing a written request at the registered office of the Company
(Units 4708-10, 47/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong) or by email to info@masonhk.com. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the related requisition which must be authenticated
by the requisitionist(s).

Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s)
holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights or not less than
50 shareholders may propose any resolution at the annual general
meeting by way of depositing a written notice authenticated by the
requisitionist(s) at the registered office of the Company (Units 4708-10,
47/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) or by email
to info@masonhk.com not less than six weeks before the meeting. The
notice shall contain a description of the proposed resolution desired
to be put forward at the meeting, the reasons for such proposal and
any material interest of the proposing shareholder(s) in such proposal.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Mason Financial Holdings Limited (“Mason” or the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
securities brokerage, commodities brokerage, bullion trading services,
provision of securities margin financing, provision of investment and
corporate finance advisory services, investment in securities trading,
money lending and investment holding with dedication to provide
financial services with the highest quality to our clients. In order
to grasp the opportunity behind the new two-child policy of China,
Mason actively expanded its healthcare and medical business through
acquisitions and well prepared for its future development in healthcare
and the “mother-infant-children” related industries.

The Group endeavors to be an environment-friendly organization and
to fulfill its responsibilities to the environment and community, whilst
maintaining its position as a global service provider.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Mitigating the effect on the environment

As a financial company, its business bears low impact on carbon
emission. Throughout the year, the Group fully complied with all of
the relevant environmental laws and regulations. The Group promotes
environmental protection by introducing a number of measures to
enhance awareness of environmental protection among its employees,
encouraging them to develop environment-friendly working habits and
to take action in protecting the precious environment.

Although Mason’s business has no significant impact on the
environment, certain clinical waste are generated from the associated
healthcare operations and services, medical laboratory analysis and
medical and related research. The Group is fully aware of the risk of
pollution and potential health hazards that may have arisen from the
operation of clinical and scientific services. Although our laboratory
and medical waste is not significant, Mason has implemented proper
clinical waste management and mitigating measures in full accordance
with the Code of Practice imposed by the Environmental Protection
Department of Hong Kong and is in compliance with the legal
requirements of waste disposal. For example, clinic and laboratory
waste are segregated, packed and temporarily stored to be collected
by licensed medical waste collectors. All of the disposals are properly
recorded for future follow-up if necessary.

The Group reviews its environmental policy from time to time and will
consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in
the operation of the Group’s businesses to enhance environmental
sustainability.
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Use of Resources

The Group attaches great importance to efficient utilization of resources
by introducing various measures. It understands that the participation
of staff is the key to achieve such goals. As a part of such effort,
green leafy plants are used as one of the office decoration to provide
a green and lively working environment. The Group strives to build
up a working environment that emphasises the “Environmental 4Rs”
of Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace.

For the healthcare and medical sector, there are clear instructions
for staff to follow, so as to promote efficiency in utilising the raw
materials during the pharmaceutical process. Hence, medical waste
is reduced through careful and smart ways of handling of different
related resources.

The Group promotes the idea of “green office” by introducing more
paperless solutions in its daily operations to reduce the volume of paper
and printed materials being used. The Group introduces knowledge
on environmental protection to all employees and encourages them
to think before printing. For example, double-sided printing and
copying is implemented by encouraging employees to use paper
more efficiently through the reuse of single sided non-confidential print
out. On top of that, the Group actively promotes the use of email to
replace traditional mails. Email is used among staff whenever possible.
The Group has also replaced most fax machines with e-fax. All these
measures are geared at reducing paper consumption to help mitigate
the global greenhouse effect.

In addition, the Group also adopts electronic corporate communication,
and shareholders of the Company are encouraged to receive corporate
communication documents using electronic means through the
Company’s website.

The Group promotes energy saving awareness among its staff by
posting related reminders or messages through emails, calling their
attention to switch off all the lights, as well as computers and printers,
by the end of the work day. The Group encourages all of its employees
to set their computers to sleep mode automatically when left idle for a
certain period of time. Under these measures, it is believed that less
electricity will be consumed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In order to keep pace with the market trends, the Group regularly
upgrades its existing facilities such as replacing outdated computers,
phones and other electrical appliances to meet the needs of our
customers, as well as enhancing operational efficiency. The Group
adheres to environmental protection principles and waste reduction
principles for its upgrading processes, and reuses existing facilities
and materials wherever possible, so as to reduce waste. Meanwhile,
it also actively use eco-friendly equipment for any replacement.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Labour Rights

The Group pays special attention to its employees’ rights and strictly
complies with labour laws and other related regulations in Hong Kong.
Relevant terms of employment in accordance with the Employment
Ordinance are stated in its standard employment contract. Any
changes of employment terms or benefits will be notified and agreed
in writing to protect the lawful rights and interests of all employees.

The Group recognises that the most valuable asset is its employees
and hence it treats its employees fairly based on a series of
standardised internal policies and procedures in a proactive manner.
The Group updates and improves these policies and procedures
regularly by taking into consideration the health and well-being of its
employees. All employees are kept abreast of any updated policies
and practices through emails, and details are also available from the
Human Resources Department.

In respect of the Group’s hiring process, objective basis for judgement
during interviews is detailed in the interview assessment form, which
contains key qualities and requirements to allow the hiring manager to
comprehensively assess the suitability of the candidate and to avoid
risks of discrimination or bias.

Apart from the usual job advertisements, job openings will also be
offered to all qualified employees with good work records, so as to
promote career advancement among employees as well. Consistent
criteria will be applied for assessing both internal and external
candidates regardless of age, sex, race, national origin or physical
disabilities to ensure fair judgment and avoid any risk of favoritism
or discrimination.

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

RiIR - HERERKRE

ARTRETSBE  SETHARESR
Rt PINERIBIRNER - FHANH
fhE:R  UWREFEFNERLARSE
EWE - EARBEPEERFRER
AR BEYRE - B REMERER
BRERBMME - BURDRE - Hit
B - BEEGRERERRRRE

TEfEFnss e E Bt

SENET

AEBESRIBEEETHER - BEET
BEREBENMEMERAE - BBER
RGP B RMER IR FII R E R ERE
EREES - BEGRIBEFOREE
EAEL SEBAMBEETALEIEH
EHERLREETHNEEES ©

AEBRBINEIREEEENEE -
Rt EER—RIFEECHAIBBERMN
BFEUABRBREBNSAQFHEEMQ
BT -REEHEHNTEELBRM
BF ITHETINRENMBHUZRE
W o fTEE T#W BB E 7 E 4 BE
BRMEELHWEMESN - ta i
ANERARPI AR B HAATER ©

FARAEENERER  EAFERSD
ARSI R EABRE T RENTEH
MER  HPESkAREREE2E
AERBEANEEETB#RER SRR
EERHERERENER -

BRTRMGEENEEES  tE8ER
BURHGHAENSRHELEAERY
TFRHEMET - UBES THIRRE
B o ERTIEEF - i B M IR IRE A
ERA-BNERE  ERER 4R &
& BEIRESRER - UERFRAED
D B9 ) B 30 0 G B AR AR AL SR AR
KRR -

MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ERE€ZBRATF 69



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

The Group has established a sound performance appraisal system
and promotion mechanism, under which outstanding employees
will be recognised through various means such as remuneration,
bonus, incentives and other benefits, as well as promotion, so as to
recognise their contribution and encourage them to keep up their good
performance. Under such system of recognition, annual performance
appraisals are used as a channel for evaluating employees’ capability
and potential to take up more responsibilities in a higher position. The
evaluation of individual’s work performance will be agreed among
managers and their subordinates. Employees are encouraged to
discuss their progress towards their career goals, and objectives set
for the forthcoming period to optimise their potential and development.
All employees are able to get a fair promotions through satisfactory
performance, together with recommendations from their direct
managers. The appraisal will also be a channel for considering the
needs of training and compensation review.

The Group has set up a well-developed job grading system to
differentiate the levels of employees, as well as establishing a fair
compensation program for each particular level of position. The Group
endeavors to offer its employees competitive remuneration which are
in line with the market trends. In order to understand the market pay
structure, salary benchmarking exercise is conducted each year by
the Human Resources Department. A number of reliable and reputable
salary surveys are selected from professional bodies and recruitment
agencies to provide up-to-date salary data for our the annual review
of salary and reward system.

The Group’s management attaches great importance to the needs and
opinions of its employees. There are different means for the employees
to communicate with the management, by which a good relation can be
maintained between the management and employees. The Group has
established an open door policy which promotes open dialogues with
line mangers and the senior management. Employees are encouraged
to consult with their direct managers for any work-related matters.
Under our well-developed escalation procedures, in cases of disputes
or disagreements between employees and their direct managers, the
Head of HR will be involved and the matters will be escalated to the
Executive Committee for decision when necessary.
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With the belief that a harmonious workplace and the sense of
belonging among employees are essential for the development
of the Group, it actively promotes team building development by
encouraging employees to participate in various charity and social
activities. During the year, the Group has held various employee
activities, such as Christmas party, reunion dinners, management and
department gatherings and Annual Dinner to enhance team spirit and
strengthen relationship between employees and their connection with
the Company. The Group attempts to meet its employees’ needs in
all aspects, so as to cultivate loyalty and dedication.

Occupational Health and Safety

As the proverb saying goes, “Prevention is better than cure”, the
Group takes into consideration every precaution to establish a healthy
and safe working environment for its employees. The Group strictly
complies with the rules and guidelines stipulated by the Labour
Department and other related laws to create and maintain a healthy
and safe workplace for our employees. Reviews will be conducted
with immediate follow-up and improvement whenever necessary. For
our laboratories, safety guidelines are in place as well.

The Group ensures that its employees are able to conduct their daily
work in a comfortable environment by accommodating their requests
whenever possible, and installing or replacing office equipments
whenever there is a need. Employees are required to participate in the
annual fire evacuation drill and safety talks organised by the property
management of the office premises. Through these efforts, employees
are adequately knowledgeable of the office’s evacuation procedures.

During the office renovation, the Company took every possible safety
measure for its employees, e.g. use of renovation materials and
products that fulfill the safety standard without harmful effects to
humans.

Development and Training

The Group recognises that the continuous development of its
employees is the key to its success. Each new employee will undergo
a formal induction to welcome and prepare him/her for his/her new
role and responsibilities. Employees are encouraged to participate in
appropriate in-house and external trainings for their skills improvement
or enhancement. Eligible employees will be offered financial assistance
for qualified training programs to support their personal growth and
career advancement.
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The Human Resources Department and Compliance Department will
provide assistance in coordinating internal trainings organised by the
Group.

The Group adopted a systematic performance-based appraisals
system, of which employees’ performance is measured against the
preset objectives and key performance indicators. Managers are
responsible for closely monitoring and coaching their subordinates
throughout the year, while the Human Resources Department will assist
in identifying the proper job-related trainings for areas that require
enhancement or improvement. This will ensure that the performance
of its employees can meet the job requirements. Furthermore, suitable
and up-to-date trainings will be offered to the employees to enhance
their knowledge and skills for performance upgrading. Sponsorship
in post-graduate courses locally and abroad is even offered for our
laboratory staff. They are also encouraged and sponsored to attend
local and overseas scientific conferences and seminars.

The trainings provided by the Group cover a wide scope, from general
financial knowledge to leadership, management and communication
skills. For example, in-house training for CPT fulfilment or rules
updates are conducted by the Compliance Department regularly and
are available to all employees. Latest market knowledge and updates
will also be addressed to all employees by means of seminars or
internal circulation of informational documents. In realising that the
Group’s strategy is to serve the Asian and the Greater China region,
the Mandarin language is an inevitably important business language,
therefore the Human Resources Department has organised Mandarin
training sessions for the Group’s senior executives.

Labour Standards

The Group not only strictly complies with labour legislations in
Hong Kong, but also implements specific measures to ensure equal
opportunities in employment. We respect the rights and interests of
every employee, and strictly prohibit the employment of minors under
the age of 18. Organizations that are found to be engaging child labour
or forced labour will be reported to the management to terminate the
corresponding business dealings. There is a comprehensive internal
monitoring system to prevent the Group from forcing employees to
work by way of violence or illegal restriction of personal freedom.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

As part of its commitment to environmental and corporate responsibility,
the Group attaches great importance to supplier management and
monitoring by formulating internal procedures and guidelines for
managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. It
undertakes regular reviews on its supply chain to ensure that its
partners will not have significant impact on the environment and
society. When selecting suppliers, all potential suppliers must be
reviewed on environmental and corporate management, and only
those fulfilling certain standards will be adopted as our suppliers.
For example, the Group only purchases electrical equipment from
suppliers with energy-saving labels.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing quality and customer-centred
medical and healthcare services, as well as financial services.
We continue to cultivate a corporate culture which emphasises
the provision of fair and just services for its customers. For the
medical and healthcare sector, the companies acquired in 2016 are
all well established and are leading private assisted reproductive
service providers in Hong Kong. They have sound management and
quality monitoring in different stages of processes with full statutory
compliance, so as to ensure that all products and services are strictly
safe, without any hazards or risks to human.

For the financial sector, the Group strives to expand its product
mix to meet the needs of customers with high-quality services. The
Group has set up internal control procedures to protect the Group, its
customers and employees from financial loss arising from theft, fraud,
and other dishonest acts, professional misconduct or omissions. All
of its services are in strict accordance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations, as well as customer requirements.

The Group’s complaint handling policy is strictly in accordance with
regulatory standards to ensure that customers’ opinions are heard and
responded in a timely manner. Complaint officers are in place to be a
channel for customers to reach the Group with any issues they may
have encountered. All customers’ complaints will be considered, with
corresponding follow-up procedures being conducted in accordance
with internal procedures and guidelines. Relevant investigation will be
taken and settlement may be made if appropriate, and improvement
will be made whenever necessary. The Group believes that complaints
are a valuable opportunity for it to obtain feedback from the community
and customers, so as to identify the need for service and policy
improvement.
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Anti-corruption

The Group holds itself to the highest level of integrity and emphasises
ethical standards upon its businesses. Therefore, it formulates a set of
policy guidelines and codes of conduct for the employees, under which
any kinds of bribery and corruption practices are strictly forbidden.
There is also a comprehensive system for declaration of interests,
as well as a sound reporting mechanism for any suspicious activity.

The current policy adopted by the Group regarding anti-corruption
is incorporated into the internal Code of Conduct for staff, including
general framework of anti-bribery laws, rules and regulations in Hong
Kong. The Group and each of its member companies strictly prohibit
staff to solicit and accept advantages without prior approval by the
Group, and actively encourage staff to avoid situations which may
constitute bribery, so as to prevent any kinds of corruption at the
very beginning.

The Group also constantly reminds all its employees of the importance
of complying with the Code of Conduct. Each employee is required to
sign an annual declaration form of his/her compliance with the Code of
Conduct. In addition to the declaration, written records of all personal
benefits received by employees and relevant management approval
are kept for compliance with the internal policies.

On the road to fight against bribery and corruption, nothing is better
than education. Therefore, emphasis is also placed on different kinds
of trainings and education. For example, a continuous professional
training on anti-corruption was organised for the employees on 30
November 2016.

Contribution to society

The Group’s success comes from the society, and its philosophy is
to contribute back into the society through available resources and
efforts. Employees are encouraged to volunteer at different charity
organizations to express their concerns for specific issues and to
support for these organizations. For instance, the Group actively
participates in the Flag Selling Day and the Dress Casual Day organised
by the Community Chest by encouraging its employees to participate
in these meaningful charity activities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

At the Group, the focus is on the outcomes of each of its corporate social
responsibility programs. It has set up some metrics such as “dollars
contributed”, “employees engaged”, so that the effectiveness of these
programs can be measured as a reference for future engagement or
improvement, e.g. the number of employees attended was one of the
measuring metrics for the Flag Selling Day organised by Community
Chest; the amount of donation funds was another measuring metrics
used for Dress Casual day event organised by Community Chest and
the charity event of Women’s Foundation’s Gala Dinner.

As learning modestly means possible improvement ahead, the Group
constantly encourages its employees at all levels to continually
learn from each other. Every year, it delegates relevant employees
to attend various corporate social responsibility conferences in
Hong Kong, so as to promote knowledge and best practices of its
employees. Furthermore, the Company maintains an open channel of
communication with its stakeholders and communities to understand
their motivations, goals, and needs through continuous conversation
and social media polling, so that the Group’s contributions in corporate
social responsibility activities will truly meet the needs.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BN R

MAZARS

To the members of
Mason Financial Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mason
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 222, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter

Significant business combinations
Refer to note 30(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Group acquired
respective equity interests in (i)
Mason Securities Limited, Mason
Futures Limited and Mason Bullion
Limited (collectively referred to
as “Mason Financial Group”); (i)
Reproductive HealthCare Limited,
Victory “Art” Laboratory Limited and
Leader Enterprise Limited (collectively
referred to as “Jubilant Link Group”);
and (jii) Shining Time Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Shining Time Group”)
at total cash considerations of
HK$1,156.1 million. The acquisitions
constituted business combinations
for accounting purposes.

The accounting for business
combinations is an area of focus
due to the significance of the
transactions and the judgements
involved, including the identification
and valuation of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Any error made in
the identification and/or valuation of
these assets and liabilities may have a
significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Management appointed valuation
specialists to estimate the acquisition-
date value of intangible assets and
other net assets acquired amounting
to HK$781.7 million and HK$74.3
million respectively and recognised
goodwill amounting to HK$542.9
million at the dates of acquisitions.
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How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our key procedures included:

a) Evaluating the valuation
specialists’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

b) Reviewing

liabilities assumed;

c) Assessing

specialists

the acquisition
value of

assets) and liabilities;

d) Challenging the

reasonableness of key
based
on our knowledge and
the
businesses and markets;

assumptions
understanding of

and

e) Reconciling input data to
supporting evidence, such
as approved budgets

evaluating the

reasonableness of the

and

budgets.
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the
appropriateness of the
bases in the identification
of assets acquired and

the
appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies
used by the valuation
and
management to estimate
date
identifiable
assets (including intangible
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matter

Impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets

Refer to notes 15, 16 and 30(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group has recognised goodwill
of HK$542.9 million and intangible
assets of HK$781.7 million arising
from the acquisitions of Mason
Financial Group, Jubilant Link Group
and Shining Time Group during the
year.

Management has performed
impairment tests with reference to
the reports issued by the valuation
specialists and concluded that there
is no impairment loss on goodwill
and intangible assets except that
impairment losses of HK$67.5
million and HK$1.2 million on
goodwill and intangible assets of
Mason Financial Group respectively
have been recognised during the
year. This conclusion was based on
the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash generating
units (“CGUs”) using the value-in-
use (“VIU calculation”) model or the
assets-based approach that required
significant judgements with respect
to the inputs to the valuation models.

How our audit addressed

the key audit matter

Our key procedures included:

d)

Evaluating the valuation
specialists’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

Assessing the
appropriateness

of the valuation
methodologies, including
the VIU calculations

and the assets-based
approach, used by the
valuation specialists and
management to estimate
the recoverable amount
of the CGUs;

Challenging the reasonableness
of key assumptions based
on our knowledge and
understanding of the
businesses and markets;

Reconciling input data to
supporting evidence, such
as approved budgets
and evaluating the
reasonableness of the
budgets; and

Evaluating the sensitivity
of the impairment tests to
changes in key assumptions.
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Key Audit Matter

Recoverability assessment of loans

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

receivables and trade and accounts receivables

Refer to notes 22 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of the Group’s Our key procedures included:

loans receivables and trade and
accounts receivables amounted
to HK$910.5 million and HK$648.4
million (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$100.5 million) at 31
December 2016 respectively.

Given that the recoverability
assessment of these receivables
required significant judgements based
on a number of factors including the
debtors’ current creditworthiness,
past collection history, subsequent
settlement and ageing analysis and
the value of any collateral assets/

guarantees obtained, it is an area of b)

focus.
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Evaluating the Group’s
credit risk policies and
testing the associated
processes used by
management to assess
credit exposures, assign
internal credit ratings and
report to the appropriate
level of governance to
ensure they worked as
designed;

Evaluating management’s
recoverability assessment;
and

Challenging the
reasonableness of key
assumptions made by
management in the
recoverability assessment.

MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ERE€ZBRA® 79

Independent Auditor’s Report
BWILZ BN E

EEER
WAl BR IE BR 88
HBESNEER EiEE
EWRES E5REM
FEY 0 1B Z R B4 4 5F 1%
St a IR E M
20R23 °
RZZE—XRE+=H EENHERER
=+—HB 2 &858 8#F:
WEKER BZK
HihEWFRIBZERE a) FfE BE
{E4 B3%910,500,000 EHNEER
# 7T} 648,400,000 s B R N ¥
BT (HBRRREE EEETE
100,500,000/875) ° EERkE -
EITASE
FAFEREA
ZEEIZERWFIEZ HIERERR
A E R A B R % TR
B (BEEEANES I @38 & HY
AIEERR RBEER SRR B 3R
8% ~ BRRIER © BRI URREE
DT AR PES FESR it & T
KEEEEROE 1€ ;
B) AEBETEKX
Hgh o HESEE - b) HEBEEN
A [E] Ug 1 5
& & 17 ¢
&g, &
c) EREERE
AT B Y
4 R ETAE
KR RR
HEEM -



Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matter

Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group acquired a number of
available-for-sale financial assets
during the year. The carrying
amount of the Group’s available-for-
sale financial assets amounted to
HK$665.5 million (net of impairment
loss of HK$50.9 million) at 31
December 2016, which are stated at
cost less impairment losses. Given
that the recoverability assessment of
financial assets required significant
judgements based on a number of
factors including macro-economic
and market environment and the
investees’ financial status, it is an
area of focus.

An impairment loss of HK$125.9
million has been recognised to profit
or loss during the year.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our key procedures included:

Performing a review
on the latest financial
information of the
investee companies;

Evaluating management’s
recoverability
assessment; and

Challenging the
reasonableness of key
assumptions made
by management in
the recoverability
assessment.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s 2016 annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 March 2017

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Wai Man
Practising Certificate Number: P02487
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEXEHREE

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hfF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
s T#ExT FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREETR
Revenue PN 5 66,501 166,517
Other income HAhUA 6 4,314 3,605
Employee benefits expenses EERFIZH 8&9 (65,837) (15,524)
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEEHH 15 (14,850) -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERRETE
equipment 14 (3,955) (440)
Write off of/Loss on disposal of sy HEWE BMERR
property, plant and equipment BEE 14 (5,232) (1,659)
Provision for allowance for doubtful RIREBETIR B
debts, net 23(d) (98,355) (26,725)
Gain on disposal of interests in S BB A RS 2 WS
subsidiaries 31 357,006 156,926
Gain on disposal of interests in an HEBE N TES 2 &
associate = 323,767
Gain (Loss) arising from changes in GRENTRIRESBEEZ
shareholding in associates Wi (B518) 3,233 (163,534)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHEMBEE>
financial assets, net B8R 58 = (4,210)
Net fair value loss on financial assets FEBEEHKEEEZ AT E
held for trading EBFE (689,657) (91,386)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At & E E 2 FE
financial assets Eiig 19(e) (125,916) -
Impairment loss on goodwill and BMEREFEEZRE
intangible assets B8 15 & 16 (68,695) -
Other operating expenses Hitt & (113,610) (35,020)
Finance costs LSS #:N 8 (13,838) (2,782)
Share of results of associates BB E N T2 %5 18 (23,945) (136,140)
Share of results of a joint venture BiE—REERRIZEE - 68,929
(Loss) Profit before taxation PR EL e (&518)iEF 8 (792,836) 242,324
Income tax credit (expense) 8RR () 11 2,340 (263)
(Loss) Profit for the year from FRHERELEBERE
continuing operations (B518) i F (790,496) 242,061
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS IR
Loss for the year from discontinued FREIEEEKTE
operations 518 = (673)
(Loss) Profit for the year FRN(EE)ER (790,496) 241,388
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEXEHREE

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—FE-RE —Z2-HF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
s T#ExT FHBT
Other comprehensive (loss) income: H{th 2 & (E#E)ITN :
Items that are reclassified or may be = E#5Ea B % AJEE
reclassified subsequently to profit or B S HEEERZ
loss EH
Net fair value gain on available-for-sale At HEMKEEAFEZ
financial assets Wi R 5 = 533,444
Derecognition of available-for-sale HE R E 0
financial assets revaluation reserve EERFARILER
upon disposal of available-for-sale AHEMKERE
financial assets BA#E - (155,241)
Derecognition of available-for-sale HEMB AR R LR
financial assets revaluation reserve AHHENKEEE M.
upon disposal of subsidiaries #1E 31 (9,587) (397,500)
Derecognition of available-for-sale HE—XEE N aRKLE
financial assets revaluation reserve ERAHHETBEE
upon disposal of an associate BhHE - 4,595
Derecognition of foreign currency HE B A B
translation reserve upon disposal of  #& IF TR SN
subsidiaries ER#E 31 (2,788) 8,716
Derecognition of capital reserve upon &K B A TR 4L IETEFE
disposal of subsidiaries EXRFEE 31 (10,075) -
Share of other comprehensive income ME{fEE AT 2HEMEHE
(loss) of associates WA (E518) 18 9,906 (3,173)
Share of other comprehensive income fE{t—RE& ATl 2 Hfth
of a joint venture ZEEA - 5,401
Other comprehensive loss for the FREMEE
year jrtic| (12,544) (3,758)
Total comprehensive (loss) income FR£mE(EE)WA
for the year o (803,040) 237,630
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MIaE FET FET
(Loss) Profit attributable to: (BR)EMRAE :
Equity holders of the Company AARERFEA
- Continuing operations —ERE T (472,022) 357,821
- Discontinued operations — R PR T - (673)
(472,022) 357,148
Non-controlling interests IEIERR R 17
- Continuing operations —ERE T (318,474) (115,760)
(Loss) Profit for the year FRN(SBE)ER (790,496) 241,388
Total comprehensive (loss) income 2 (B8 ) W48 %E
attributable to: RE :
Equity holders of the Company AARIRERTEA
- Continuing operations — SRR ER (490,756) 354,063
- Discontinued operations — R IE R T - (673)
(490,756) 353,390
Non-controlling interests IR 17
— Continuing operations —BEREETR (312,284) (115,760)
Total comprehensive (loss) income FR2HE(EHE)WNELE
for the year (803,040) 237,630
(adjusted)
(4 2)
(Loss) Earnings per share B (EE) B
Basic and diluted HEARR#E 13
- Continuing operations —HEREER HK(2.65) cents  HK2.18 cents
(2.65) # 1Ll 2.18781l
- Discontinued operations — R IE R T HK(0.01) cents
- (0.01) 34
— Continuing and discontinued —EHERKIEREEK HK(2.65) cents HK2.17 cents

operations

(2.65) #E 1l 217784l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ra M EHIR R R

At 31 December 2016 R=Z—~FE+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hfF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MiEE FET FHBT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BMERRE 14 36,241 1,869
Intangible assets BmEEE 15 773,306 -
Gooduwill (EES 16 475,398 -
Interests in associates REE N Rl 2R 18 = 485,872
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEMKEE 19 665,461 90,000
Non-current deposits paid and ENFEREBZEER
prepayments FARIE 7,051 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of RBBHBLAREHS
subsidiaries ®E - 223,556
Deposit paid for acquisition of available-Fi IR BB At HEB IS EE
for-sale financial assets g2k - 63,472
Deferred tax assets EIERIEE &= 27 306 =
1,957,763 864,769
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 220,101 -
Financial assets at fair value through ZAFEFTABZRZZ
profit or loss BB E 21 499,093 2,898,407
Loans receivables FEWER 22 910,510 155,968
Trade and other receivables B2 HEMERSIE 23 781,032 45,038
Pledged bank deposits 2IRARITER 24 22,359 -
Bank balances and cash RITERRES 24 651,419 444,684
3,084,514 3,544,097
Current liabilities A R=Li
Trade and other payables B NEMENSTIE 25 1,006,361 36,718
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEMER 26 300,000 296,143
Tax payables FER R R 5,632 781
1,311,993 333,642
Net current assets FRBEE 1,772,521 3,210,455
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERRHAR 3,730,284 4,075,224
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Interest-bearing borrowings STEMER 26 20,000 20,000
Deferred tax liabilities IEIEFIEE & 27 157,206 —
177,206 20,000
NET ASSETS FEE 3,553,078 4,055,224
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e S O

At 31 December 2016 R=Z—~F+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—$-x% —T-IF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MIaE FET FHBT
Capital and reserves EREFEE

Share capital [N 28 3,277,443 2,550,372
Reserves B (21,002) 476,092

Equity attributable to equity holders of ZKA BHERFIFHE AFEML
the Company R 3,256,441 3,026,464
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRE RS 17 296,637 1,028,760
TOTAL EQUITY B 3,553,078 4,055,224

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 HEEER -_Z—tF=A=+AHltE

March 2017 and signed on its behalf by RIBETE  UHTIHIRKRES
Ko Po Ming Lui Choi Yiu, Angela
=4 BERk
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERSBR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=—E—AF+_A=1—HILEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RLRERIFAAEE
Reserves
%
Available-
for-sale
financial Foreign
assets currency Accumulated Non-
Share Capital  revaluation translation profits Total controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve (losses) ~ reserves  Sub-total interests Total
AftLeE
HBEE M ZiEN
Ra  ERGE  EfERE  EXRRE (B8)  RESE A FERER a5t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn TiEn ThEn T TEn TiEn TEn T
(note 29(a)  (note 29(0))  (note 29(c))
(EF20)  (WERoop)  (HY&F29(c))
At 1 January 2015 R=5-1E-B-A 2,400,372 10,075 21,694 (921 142,738 165,230 2,565,602 - 2,565,602
Profit (Loss) for the year EREA5R) - - - - %748 %BTM48  3B7M48  (115760) 241,388
Other comprehensive income (loss) A 2EUAER)
Items that have been reclassified or may be  EEHFAEREATHESFE
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss FEnoEE
Net fair value gain on available-for-sale Rt ERREELTE NG
financial assets FE = = 533,444 - - 533,444 533,444 - 533,444
Derecognition of available-for-sale financial ~ HETEEEHFEERAL
assets revaluation reserve upon disposal of B IMHLESKEE
available-for-sale financial assets E4 = - (155241) = - (155241 (155,241) - (185241)
Derecognition of available-for-sale financial ~ HE-FHBARKAL
assets revaluation reserve upon disposal of B IHLESKEE
a subsidiary EfifE - - (397,500) - - (397,500)  (397,500) - (397,500
Derecognition of available-for-sale financial ~ HE-FEEARBA L
assets revaluation reserve upon disposal of BRI HERKEE
an associate Biifife - - 459 - - 459 4595 - 4595
Derecognition of foreign currency translation (K&~ FHBATEA LB
reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary NEERRE - - - 8,716 - 8,716 8,716 - 8,716
Share of other comprehensive loss of NG ]
associates iE = = (715) (2458) - (3.173) (3.173) - (3173
Share of other comprehensive income (oss) of  Efi—FARAREM2E
ajoint venture WA () = - 7,989 (2,589) - 5401 5,401 - 5401
Other comprehensive (loss) income EREH2AE(EER)
for the year B - - (7,428) 3,670 - (3,758) (3,758) - (3,758)
Total comprehensive (loss) income EREA(HEIUA
for the year a5 - - (7,428) 3,670 357,148 363,390 363,390 (115,760) 237,630
Transactions with equity holders HEEZHENLRS
Contributions and distributions BRI
Issue of share capital BiTRA 150,000 - - - - - 150,000 - 150,000
Changes in ownership interests Vit 2]
Capital injections from non-controlling SRR
interests HE - - - - (42,528) (42,528) (42,528) 282,528 240,000
Deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries ~ BELENRBATER - - - - - - - 861,992 861,992
150,000 - - - (42,528) (42,528) 107472 1144520 1,251,992
At 31 December 2015 RZE-15+-A=1-A 2,550,372 10,075 14,266 (5,607) 457,358 476,092 3,026,464 1,028,760 4,055,224
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERSBR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE—ZE—AF+-A=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KARERREAER
Reserves
Eid
Available-
for-sale
financial Foreign
assets  currency Accumulated Non-
Share Capital ~ revaluation translation profits Total controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve (osses) ~ reserves  Sub-total interests Total
iE
HhEE e BT
BE  ERRE  ERBE  ERER (FR)  BROE M EkER &t
Note HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
iFd ThL ThL ThL TEL TEL TEL TEL S S
(note 29(a))  (note 29(b))  (note 29(c)
(Makofe)  (WaRom)  (HsE29(c))
At 1 January 2016 RZF-nE-A-A 2,550,372 10,075 14,266 (6,607) 457,358 476092 3,026,464 1,028,760 4,055,224
Loss forte year g - - - - Um0 @0 (184 (1e0496)
Other comprehensive (loss) income Ef2E(ERMA
Items that are reclassified or may be reclassified  DEH SRR A THENTEEE
subsequently to proft or loss #258
Derecogniton of avallable-for-sale financial assets X EMBATBA L BT HER
revaluation reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries AR E(E(E 3 - - (9587) - - 057 (957 - (9,587)
Derecogntion of foreign currency translation HERBARRALEDNEES
reserve upon disposal of subsiclaries fiE 3 - - - (2,788) - (2,788) (2788) - (2788)
Derecogniton of capital reserve upon disposal of ~ HERBATERLEIER
subsidiaries fl Rl - (10,075) - - - (10,075) (10,075) - (10,075)
Share of other comprehensive (loss) income of EitBENTEN
associates 2R (HR)MA 18 - - (4679) 8,305 - 3716 3,716 6,190 9,906
Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year ~ ER A 2E(FE)HA - (10,075) (14,266 5,607 - (18734 (18,734) 6,190 (12,544)
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year &R 2 (FE)HAAE - (10,075) (14,266 5607  (472022)  (490,756)  (A90,7B6)  (312,284)  (803,040)
Transactions with equity holders BEEHEAZRS
Contributions and distrbutions HRAR
Issue of share capital BIRA 2% 21,01 - - - - -1 -1
Changes in ownership inferests fEEES
Deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries BELENBLTER (FEHAL
witht loss of control =) 31 - - - - 95 95 o5 14913 15908
Partial disposal of nterests in a subsidiary without S HENBARER (FERKA
[oss of control ) kil - - - - (7,333) (7,333) (1333 207,338 200,000
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries HENBATER 3 - - - - - - - (0359500 (995,950)
Capital njection from non-controlling interests FERERTE - - - - - - - 11,400 11,400
Non-controling inerests arising from acaquisifion of ~ WAEEMBAREE 22k
subsidares B N8 - - - - - : - MM 284
Total transactions with equity holders HBREHAAZRHEE 121,01 - - - (6,338) (6,3%8) 720783 (419839 300,894
At 31 December 2016 RZF-RETZAZ1-H 3,217,443 - - - (21,002) (21,002) 3,256,441 296,637 3,553,078
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —Z2-0F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g T#ET FERT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
(Loss) Profit before taxation FREAT (B4R ) a Al (792,836) 241,651
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHEHE 15 14,850 -
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BMENZE
equipment weE 3,955 440
Write off of/Loss on disposal of property, s, HEME  BER
plant and equipment Rz EE 5,232 1,659
Provision for allowance for doubtful debts,  FRBERE &R
net 5 23(d) 98,355 26,725
Write off of intangible assets B E =M 3 -
Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries HEKB A TR 2 K 31 (357,006) (156,963)
Gain on disposal of interests in an associate HERZ N R 2 kE - (323,767)
(Gain) Loss arising from changes in BENRRESBEEZ
shareholding in associates (Wz) E5E 18 (3,233) 163,534
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHBENKEES
financial assets, net 185 - 4,210
Net fair value loss on financial assets held FEBEKEE 2 AFE
for trading B8 F8E 689,657 91,386
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AL ENKEE ZRE
financial assets EE 19(e) 125,916 -
Impairment loss on goodwill and intangible BEERELEE ZRE
assets BB 15 & 16 68,695 -
Interest income, other than from loans FMEWA (FEIERBEEKR
receivables BERE) (2,551) (1,249)
Finance costs R E AN 13,838 2,829
Share of results of associates (L E N T 2 %EE 18 23,945 136,140
Share of results of a joint venture Eih—REE AT ZEE - (68,929)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
Inventories FE (480) -
Financial assets at fair value through WANFETABR 2%
profit or loss & 135,188 (2,519,194)
Loans receivables ERER (1,006,913) 137,680
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEWFIE (125,942) (43,731)
Trade and other payables B S R HMEMNTIR (9,438) 28,600
Cash used in operations KREfARE (1,118,765) (2,278,979)
Tax paid 2AIHIE (817) -
Interest received, other than from loans S RAE (REFEREEW
receivables BEXE) 2,551 1,249
Net cash used in operating activities REEFAREFH (1,117,031) (2,277,730)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEBRERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
—F—REF —E-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BfEE T#ET FHEIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB - RERRE 14 (7,561) (3,486)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BE ML S
assets EE (577,988) (250,000)
Purchase of investment properties IBEREYE = (51,308)
Dividend received from an associate BH—XEEQATREZRE - 1,341,199
Subscription of share capital in associates ~ FREEEEE D T R4 - (121,000)
Repayment of promissory note received BERHEBE ARIRG
from disposal of share of associate Bz & H - 259,862
Repayment of three-month zero coupon BiE B BOEE QR RS
note received from buy-back of share of WEHZ=AZE
associate Fi5 - 509,991
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries &K B A RIR SR A FLE 31 1,398,447 376,400
Net cash (outflow) inflow from acquisition of WEEIIEB AR E 30(a)&
subsidiaries CRE)RAFEE (b) (341,744) 339
Balancing amount paid for acquisition of TR EERE C 1S RREE
yacht - (39,702)
Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries HiUKEEHI BN FIE H1Re - (223,556)
Deposits paid for acquisition of available-  FUKEB A HER K EE
for-sale financial assets [SERNE & - (63,472)
Capital injections from non-controlling FEERERITE
interests = 240,000
Net cash from investing activities BEEBREREFH 471,154 1,975,267
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —Z2-0F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g FERT FERT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Issue of share capital BT 28 727,071 150,000
Issue of convertible bonds, included in BOUBRRES GTALE
disposal of subsidiaries M~ E]) 176,000 =
Issue of notes payables BITENZE 300,000 -
New bank loans raised MEERTER 1,040,000 315,343
New other loans raised HihEEERK 350,000 -
Repayment of bank loans EIZRITER (1,561,143) (76)
Repayment of convertible bonds, included {EEARES GFALE
in disposal of subsidiaries MEAR) (45,000) -
Repayment of other loans BEHMER (350,000) -
Proceeds from partial disposal of interests H &85 KB TEZS TS
in a subsidiary without loss of control MIE(FEHELEGIE) 31 200,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-  HER{HEHENEEERS
sale financial assets ;IE = 108,388
Capital injections from non-controlling FEERERTE
interests 27,308 -
Interest paid 2R (11,624) (2,829)
Net cash from financing activities MERSMEREFHR 852,612 570,826
Net increase in cash and cash RERREEEZIEM
equivalents B 206,735 268,363
Cash and cash equivalents at the ERPVZHERRE
beginning of the reporting period ZEH 444,684 176,321
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ZHRPEEAZHREER
of the reporting period, represented HE%EE » 18R1T
by bank balances and cash HBRERE 651,419 444,684
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Mason Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information of the annual report for year 2016. The principal
activities of the Group are described in notes 5 and 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”), and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2015 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective from the current year.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments include changes in the following five areas:
(1) materiality; (2) disaggregation and subtotals; (3) structure of
notes; (4) disclosure of accounting policies; (5) presentation of
items of other comprehensive income arising from investments
accounted for using equity method.
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EBIMRLZARLT - HRH
EEBBERZFARIT(HR
i) b o ARBZEMPEER
FEEEMBWHINR - —RE
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MzE5 R 7 °

FTEERER
RRERE

R BHRREREBETEQ
S(EBEHMASDEAMNE
B BHREEL ([ EEBMBHRELE
B (BEFEERNEBIHER
HER - HBEFEN(EBES
ZRADRBBIREBAIEHE
RIEREB A RAROIRE - NS
BHRRTF B EE EmARA
(TEmRBDEVERKERE -

FEEUMBHRRBBR_Z-AF
FRAEMBHRAFASTERE -
MEERFR  HRAUTEREE
BRAERAFEERBHT&E
7] BB MRS RIBRSN ©

Rl KRBT B RUBREE
A
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e

BEIEETIREZERNES :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKASs 16 and 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 both establish the principle for the basis
of depreciation and amortisation as being the expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset.
The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that the use of revenue-
based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is
not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than
the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The amendments to HKAS 38 clarify that revenue is generally
presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible
asset. This presumption, however, can be rebutted in certain
limited circumstances.

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011): Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to
account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011):
Investment Entities — Applying the Consolidation Exception

The amendments:

M

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

introduce relief to permit a non-investment entity investor,
that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is
an investment entity, to retain the fair value through profit or
loss measurement applied by the associate or joint venture
to its interests in its subsidiaries.

amend HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 respectively so
that the exemption from applying the equity method and
preparing consolidated financial statements as set out in
paragraph 17 of HKAS 28 (2011) and paragraph 4(a) of
HKFRS 10 is available to an entity that is a subsidiary of an
investment entity which measures all of its subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS
10.

amend HKFRS 10 to clarify that only subsidiaries of an
investment entity that are not themselves an investment
entity and whose main purpose and activities are providing
services that relate to the investment entity’s investment
activities are consolidated by the investment entity.

amend HKFRS 12 to clarify that the relevant disclosure
requirements therein apply to an investment entity.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments add new guidance on how to account for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a
business. The amendments specify that the acquirer of an interest
in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a business, as
defined in HKFRS 3, shall apply all of the principles on business
combinations accounting in HKFRS 3 and other HKFRSs except
for those principles that conflict with the guidance in HKFRS 11.
In addition, the acquirer shall disclose the information required by
HKFRS 3 and other HKFRSs in relation to business combinations.

Annual Improvements Project — 2012-2014 Cycle

1)  HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations: Changes in Methods of Disposal

These amendments clarify the accounting for a change in an
entity’s disposal plan from a plan to sell to a plan to distribute
a dividend in kind to its shareholders (or vice versa). Such
a reclassification shall not be treated as a change to a
plan of sale (or distribution to owners) and accounted for
as such. Consequently, such a change in classification is
considered as a continuation of the original plan of disposal
and the entity will not follow the accounting for a change
to the plan. Besides, to address the lack of guidance in
circumstances when an asset no longer meets the criteria
for held for distribution to owners, the amendments clarify
that an entity should cease to apply held-for-distribution
accounting in the same way as it ceases to apply the held-
for-sale accounting when the asset no longer meets the
held-for-sale criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Cont’d)

2)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

a)

b)

Servicing contracts

These amendments clarify what kind of servicing
contracts may constitute continuing involvements for
the purposes of applying the disclosure requirements
for transferred financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety.

Applicability of the Amendments to HKFRS 7
concerning Offsetting to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements

These amendments also clarify that the additional
disclosure required by the amendments to HKFRS 7
concerning offsetting is not specifically required for
all interim periods.

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits: Discount rate: regional market
issue

The amendment clarifies that the depth of the market for
high quality corporate bonds used to determine the discount
rate for post-employment benefit obligations should be
assessed at a currency level and not at country level.

The adoptions of the above new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant
to the Group and effective during the current year did not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and certain
available-for-sale financial assets, which are measured at fair
value as explained in the principal accounting policies set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The financial
statements of its subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
year as that of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from equity
holders of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets
in event of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value
or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
This choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to the equity holders of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)
Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis
as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the former
subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary
are accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or
others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on
the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively,
with the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its
acquisition-date fair value (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior
to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interests
were disposed of.

FTEEFRBRA)

EBAo(H)

BRESFIAEED BN ERERE
BEARRREMSEEREERE
R SRRt - A AR AFES
FERERBERVBL AREBIE
EFENCHRISELLFFE - 5
BEERTBREISZMELEE -
HttE R FERER I IRE AP
EH(MBEH) 5 —BEBHHRSE
HARENEETE o

HAREREESHPERZNE
BRIAREZHFELEZEERA
& AISARARKEZERKERS
ZAFEFELERERSH P
CEEZEREZBIAR -NHEE
RAFTENHAR ZIRARELF
EEBK TENARTHHE L
HERAE - StEMBRAESRN
EHE ] (RNTBE AW R Bt
—F)RSEERKBANERR
ZEBERBRZBEIIEREEZH

o

TRERAFEHNBRABZIAR
BLFEZBRESTTREBIUAR
WARHARELE - DEDHES
ZHEARBEFERRERS AHE
Fitg  HREESETREZEAA
IR - D EREEHEBEZHANRE
EREEREBRERTE - 8.
ZBERERARER o

IS Gt D PEERIER » ANEE L
ARSI E S RAER IR
R (IARERSEHEER)D
FEHEHE  FEENEES (W
B)HEBRBRPER o fid HERK
Wi S - BB EMEER
SRR ZER BB 6
HRBERBAELENSEEND
HEBHE(WHERFEEHE)

MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EE&2ER2AF 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying
amount of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is an arrangement of
which two or more parties have joint control. Joint control is a
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The Group
reassesses whether it has joint control of an arrangement and
whether the type of joint arrangement in which it is involved has
changed, if facts and circumstances change.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The Group’s investment in associates or joint venture is accounted
for under the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses when the Group’s share of losses of the investee equals
or exceeds the carrying amount of its interests in the investee,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates or joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a joint
venture is measured as the excess of the cost of investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired associate or joint venture.
Such goodwill is included in interests in associates or joint
venture. On the other hand, any excess of the Group’s share
of its net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of investment is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as an income.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method. Where
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis and depreciated separately:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Furniture and fixtures 3 - 5 years
Computer and office equipment 3 years
Medical equipment 3 -7 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses. Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated lives are as follows:

Trademarks 10 years
Customer and franchisee relationships 5 years
Computer software and systems 3 - 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are review annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised if their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful life are tested for impairment at least annually.

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
and only when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

108 MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED R{E&£ZHFRLF

FTEEFERA)

BILEE

REECD WBNETEERKAH
ERFTBE (NG TERFRS
BR)RBEFBESIR - ABEE
BERmENFEXREEREER
REAX °

ERAERAERFERNETLEESE
HEREEMAEAFRUERE
BEZENR - LTEASHERK
BREEBHEAERBRBETHE
W HEHEASSOT -

[l 1045
EFBESTEEEBE 5%
BT R RS 3 - 5%

BENBBER S EEEFRE

BT EENERERSD TR
E o AIFETHEE - AEEESE
S HEEERSH TERENEL
EENEASHETER » UEE
ERBRRREAREITZEE
ERBRAERNIDE - MREE
BRUAEFEENEASHREER
By - BIfESTEERSS - Wik L
ERASHARNELEERE - £
RESTRENELEEZLEF
ET—IRRERR -

@I A
AR AL TERR

EBRAEERATEESHNKRRZET
WL BREERMBREESEZ
R5 B2 BEERR -

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &



2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Recognition and derecognition (Cont’d)

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the
Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial asset and
either (a) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or financial
liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial assets or financial liabilities.

1)  Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets or financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, and financial
assets or financial liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at fair value, with
any resulting gain and loss recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and
is included in revenue in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Classification and measurement (Cont’d)

1)  Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Cont’d)

Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified as held
for trading if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
(iii) derivatives that are not financial guarantee contracts or
not designated and effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are designated at
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
only if (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on a different basis; or (ii) they are part of a group of
financial assets and/or financial liabilities that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) they contain embedded derivatives that would need
to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

2)

3)

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including loans receivables, trade
and other receivables and bank balances and cash are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and
are not held for trading. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
over the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in
value recognised as a separate component of equity until
the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or
until the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
4)  Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings. All financial
liabilities, except for financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

5)  Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period respectively. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability respectively, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

6) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer of the contract to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder of the contract for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not measured
at fair value through profit or loss, are carried at the higher
of (i) the amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assesses whether
there is objective evidence that financial assets, other than those
at fair value through profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment
loss of financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Such impairment
loss is reversed in subsequent periods through profit or loss
when an increase in the assets’ recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any previously recognised impairment loss in profit or loss,
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition of
impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of impairment
loss of available-for-sale debt instruments is reversed through
profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
shall not be reversed.

FTEEFRBRA)

SRTHR(E)
BIREEERE

REFHEER - FAEEFERE
BEEEBETRMBEERAYF
B ABRBZZMBEERI) HE
AR o AR AR B EE
B R 1R J5 1% & AR I {E S 1R B 7%
BERBEERENRTE 2 M5 REK
REnBREME ZZHETE o fd
RERRERRETSMEREZ
B UHEETRESEEEM -
ZREBEITREBERIBERRS
Bo o HZEERBEREERZ
SREE TS BEHERRZRET
FER 2 A o

A HEENBEELHRRE @ &
BERACHBRASEERR S
H)EER A FENEFERE LA
RIBHER R EBENSEHE
wEHOBEBRIMEEN D EH
BBt ABEN T HHEREAT
AREBENAZRRERE -
AHEERA T ARERRERE
REA A FEBMAERERS N E
R o MRERRESEREERE
MAABECEN UWHEBITAZ
DNFERN - MAUHHEEBTA
AR E RS IR R B R E B R m R o

BERAIIRN AT HEENKEE 2
HERE - TRMBEERAIER
BB H5 B & & Bl 35 B 3R R
AT RRRENEREME 2=
TR - ARERERSETRE -

MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EE&2ERAE 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R MR
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=—F—~F+=-A=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair
value at the date derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently measured at their fair value at the end of reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active market or
are determined using valuation techniques, including discounted

cash flow model and options pricing model as appropriate.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivative when their characteristics and risks are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably and on the following bases:

Net income from the sale of investments at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised on the transaction date when the

relevant sale and purchase contract is entered into.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Net income from trading of securities and options and
commodities contracts are recognised on the transaction date
when the relevant sale and purchase contract is entered into.

Medical consultation and laboratory services income is recognised
when services are rendered.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Foreign currencies translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in the currency of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the
Company’s functional currency, and rounded to the nearest
thousands unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in
profit or loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or losses
are also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies translation (Cont’d)

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency
(“foreign operations”) are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

° Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented and, where applicable, goodwill and fair value
adjustments on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation which are to
be treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation,
are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period.

o Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rate.

o All resulting exchange differences arising from the above
translation and exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a
foreign operation are recognised as a separate component
of equity.

o On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
a disposal involving the loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest is no
longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation that is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the separate component of equity is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies translation (Cont’d)

° On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation which does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is re-
attributed to the non-controlling interests in that foreign
operation and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

o On all other partial disposals, which includes partial disposal
of associates or joint ventures that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount of exchange
differences recognised in the separate component of equity
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, other costs that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, is calculated
using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period of the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there is
any indication that its property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In addition,
the Group tests its intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets that are not yet available for use
for impairment by estimating their recoverable amount on an
annual basis and whenever there is an indication that those
assets may be impaired. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in
profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of the
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting policy
for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the
temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

As lessee

Rentals payable/receivable under operating leases are charged/
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant leases.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement scheme and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution scheme

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independent administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), the employees of the Group’s
entities established in the PRC are required to participate
in defined contribution retirement plans organised by local
governments. Contributions to those plans are expensed as
incurred and other than these monthly contributions, the Group
has no further obligation for the payment of retirement benefits
to its employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)
Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods. The obligation is
calculated using the projected unit credit method and discounted
to its present value and after deducting the fair value of any
related assets, including those retirement scheme benefit.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for
the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, any deferred
tax arising from initial recognition of goodwill; or other asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
recovered or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and
the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can
be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person or aclose member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the holding company of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Related parties (Cont’d)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third-party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(viiy A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a holding company of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the holding company of the Group.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Related parties (Cont’d)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision makers for the purpose of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of services, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ_-Z—

AETZRA=T-RLEE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which the

Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Disclosure Initiativel"

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses!"

2014-2016 Cycle?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Revenue from Contracts with
CustomersF

Financial Instrumentst!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contractst

Leases™

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venturel’!

0 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

or 2018 where applicable

@l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

“ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

5] The effective date of the amendments which was originally intended

to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016 has been deferred/removed
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs (Cont’d)

The Company is in the process of making an assessment on the
impact of HKFRS 9 (2014) and HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on
the statement of financial position, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will
not significantly change. The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating leases. As at the end of the
reporting period, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$115,626,000 (see note 39). Accordingly, the
Group expects the new standard to have a significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The new standard
is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January
2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

The adoption of other new/revised HKFRSs is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of the relevant
assets of similar nature and functions. The estimated useful
lives could be different as a result of technical innovations
which could affect the related depreciation charges included
in profit or loss.

(b) Intangible assets and amortisation

The management determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible assets.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite, based on the expected usage and
technical obsolescence from the changes in the market
demands or services output from the assets. Intangible
assets are not amortised when their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support the indefinite useful life assessment. The Group
may need to amortise intangible assets in future periods
or recognise impairment losses on intangible assets if
events and circumstances indicate that the useful life is
not indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised over the expected useful economic lives and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assets may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ_-Z—

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(c)

@

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

Impairment of non-current assets, excluding intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives and goodwill

Non-current assets excluding intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and goodwill are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation/amortisation, where appropriate,
and impairment losses. These carrying amounts are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the non-current asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In estimating the recoverable amounts
of the non-current assets, various assumptions, including
future cash flows to be associated with the non-current
assets and discount rates, are made. If future events do not
correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts
will need to be revised, and this may have an impact on the
Group’s results of operations or financial position.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

Determining whether intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives of the Group are impaired requires an estimation of
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been
allocated, which is the higher of the related fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. The calculations require
the management to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the recoverable amounts.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)
(e) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value-
in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Details of the estimates used to calculate the recoverable
amount are given in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

()  Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the condition of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for inventories that are identified as obsolete,
slow-moving or no longer recoverable or suitable for use
in production. The Group carries out the inventory review
on a product-by-product basis and makes allowances by
reference to the latest market prices and current market
conditions.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

@
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Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of
the Group is based on the evaluation by management
of the collectability of loans receivables, trade and other
receivables. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including assessing the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. If the financial
conditions of these debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowance will be required.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investments in subsidiaries
and associates have suffered any impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in
determining whether amounts due from these entities and
available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost less
impairment are impaired. Details of the approach are stated
in the respective accounting policies.

The assessment requires an estimation of future cash
flows, including expected dividends from the assets and
the selection of appropriate discount rates. Future changes
in financial performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause the
adjustments of their carrying amounts.

TEERAF RAE(HE)

At PR RN EERIR(F)

@)

(h)

RIZRRIE

AEBZRRRBEBETD
EREEEHRERER 2T
WEIZEFMG o FFEZSE
W 2 R R B IR (B
FEEERABRNEERR
KB EEMRRER) BFAFH K
BHE - HEZEERAZ
BBMRR B SHEBEKEE
NiEES - RIZARTIRERIMEE -

RER W E R E

AEBREBETERES36
KEFIEAMBLAR - B
ERNTFZREEARE I
BREREBETELFEIEZ
EolBERWZERARAZRK
BREAARBBETEZT
HEENKEEERRE
FEF RN EREETBUR -

ZBF L AMETEEZ KRR
BeErnB(BEEIRE)R
ZARERREK - 250 F
RRFBRERMR 28
SRBRBEBBMT - U
APHBHIREE -
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5. REVENUE 5.

Revenue recognised from the principal activities of the Group
during the year including trading of investments, provision of
financing services, provision of financial brokerage and related
services, provision of medical consultation and laboratory
services and investment holding is as follows:

L'ON

FEBRAFEREE 2 ETEZXK
(BHEEERE  EHBERS
RESMELKHMAERERYE - =
HEFRLZARBRERBURRE
ER)PrEZRZBWANT

2016 2015
—E—RE —Z-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations BEREER
Brokerage commission income from: RLEMEBARE :
- securities dealing -BEEE 18,485 -
- underwriting and placing commission — S REERESWA
income 7,608 -
Financial advisory fee income B ISR B WA 100 -
Margin facility and loan facility handling HFERERERERREFESE
fee income N 4,760 -
Medical consultation and laboratory BEZHARERZERBEWA
services income 23,651 =
(Loss) Gain from the sale of financial HERAFEFABRZZ
assets at fair value through profit or BB EE (5i8)kE BEE"
loss, net* (74,535) 133,393
Dividend income from financial assets at ZFATE(EFAERZHKEE
fair value through profit or loss REU A 31,874 15,604
Interest income from: FMEWARE :
- margin financing - FEmE 33,014 -
- financial assets at fair value through —EBAFEFABREZ
profit or loss MBEE 982 1,247
- loans receivables —EWRER 20,562 16,273
66,501 166,517
Discontinued operations BIEREER
Rental income HEWA = 193
66,501 166,710
* Represented the proceeds from the sale of financial assets * EBHERAFEFABRZ M

at fair value through profit or loss of HK$312,996,000 (2015:
HK$1,567,789,000) less relevant costs and carrying value of the
financial assets sold of HK$387,531,000 (2015: HK$1,434,396,000).
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EE P18 IE312,996,00078 7T
(ZZF—FHF : 1,567,789,000/&
T)BHEBRARE HENKE
EWERME{E387,531,00058 T (=
FE—F4:1,434,396,000;8 ) °
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hithla AN

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TF#ExT FET

Interest income from financial institutions & B £ B B R B A 1,569 2

Interest income from promissory notes 3R B &N EIEMFI S WA - 1,355

Management and handling fee income  BERFEEBWA 2,727 -

Corporate guarantee fee RNARRE - 139

Commission income HEWA = 1,691

Others Hib 18 418

4,314 3,605

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. SEHEH
The directors have been identified as the chief operating decision EZATEREREE  ENAEAE
makers to evaluate the performance of operating segments and ERERDTNAIRRZH - &
to allocate resources to those segments based on the Group’s EEBIBRBERDMEL D IH
internal reporting in respect of these segments. The directors ER - EEZRHREERE Rt
consider trading of investments, provision of financing services, RERY - REESBELREER
provision of financial brokerage and related services, provision %o RUEBERERZERLE &
of medical and laboratory services, franchisor of mother-infant- BEEMBTEERRREERT
children products and investment holding are the Group’s major AEBEEXEBEDE - pIWFEEE
operating segments. Segment results represent the profit earned BEBRD RN ENRELENES
or loss incurred by each segment. B
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:

Continuing operations

Trading of investments : Purchase and sale of securities

Provision of financing : Provision of loan financing services
services

Provision of financial : Dealing in securities, provision
brokerage and related of securities, commodities and
services bullion brokerage services and

financial advisory services

Provision of medical : Provision of medical consultation
and laboratory and laboratory services relating to
services assisted reproductive technology

Franchisor of mother-  : Franchising retail stores operating
infant-children and managing mother-infant-
products children products

Investment holding . Holding investments for dividend

and investment income and
capital appreciation
Discontinued operations
Property investment : Holding properties for rental and
capital appreciation
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. DEER(E)
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) PTWARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBRKE D EE D W
results by operating segments: ARFEELHEFNNOT -
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
i B BrEess
Provision ~ Provision  Franchisor
of financial ~ of medical  of mother-
Provision  brokerage and infant-
Trading of of financing and related  laboratory ~ children  Investment Property
investments ~services  semices  sewices products holding Unallocated  Sub-total  investment Total

RiteH  RUER &

Rt BKR  REME  EE

BRAE  HERE  HRRR B HHESR  REER A0 RE it
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000
Tén  TEn  TEr  TEx TR T TEn TEn T TR

b

Bo

Year ended 31 December 2016~ HE-F-7k
t2R=t-RLEE
Segment revenue LEloN (#1,829) 23,362 61,167 23,651 - 149 - 66,501 - 66,501

(Loss) Proft for the year before ST &EZ

following tems: R (BE)EA 131834 1938 (145269 6513 - (33 pA05) 1549 - 1549
Wite off of property, plantand ~ KiE#E » BERRE

equipment - - (5,282) - - - - (5,23) - (5,232)
Gain on disposal of interestsn -~~~ HEHEAFEE 2UE

subsidiaries - - - - - 357,006 - 37,006 - 37,006
(Gain arsing from changes in BElIRRRaEL UG

shareholding in associates - - - - - 3,233 - 3,233 - 3,233
Impaiment loss on avallable-for-sale TIfE Y EHHEE ZHERE

financial assets - - - - - (125916) - (125916) - (125916)
Impaiment loss on goodwiland ~ HEREWEE LHESE

intangible assets - - (68,695) - - - - (68,6%) - (68,6%)
Finance costs HERA - 2214) (2426) - - 9,19 - (13839 - (1389
Share of results of associates ElEBENT 2 - - - - - (894 - (394 - (894
(Loss) Proft before taxation GElE] (731,834) o4 (221639) 6,513 - t4eu (3408 (792,83) - (1928%)
Income tax credit (expense) FEsaS(ER) - 10 2,758 (428) - - - 2340 - 2,340
Segment results DEE: | (731,834) 9734 (218880) 6,085 - MT8M (3405 (79049%) - (19049%)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. SEHER(E
(a) Segment revenue and results (Cont’d) (a) DTMAREE(E)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REEERE RifgER
Provision  Provision  Franchisor
of financial ~ of medical ~ of mother-
Provision  brokerage and infant-
Trading of ~ of financing ~ and related  laboratory ~ chidren  Investment Property
investments ~ services  services  services  products holding ~ Unallocated ~ Sub-fofal  investment Total
ftsd 58

Bt BQR REBRR  EER
RRRE HARD RBER EIERE AHMEER REER A%B o IERE Eal
HKS00O  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
fin  fén TR TEm TR R TE fEn TR TEn

Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ-%-1%
TZRZT-ALEE
Segment revenue VLN 150,244 16,273 - - - - - 166,517 193 166,710

Proft (Loss) for the year before  R3FA TR EZ EAERI (B

follwing e g a0 ) - - - U ey 1w 63 %
Loss on disposal of property, plant  £E41% + BRERREEE

and equipment - - - - - - (1,659) (1,659) - (1,659)
Gain on disposal of interests in ~ HERBATRE 24

subsidiaries - - - - - 156,926 - 156,926 3 156,963
Gain on disposal of interestsinan  HEREATRER2UE

associate - - - - - 323,767 - 323,767 - 323,167
Loss arising from changes in BN ARRRDEL 2BE

shareholding in associates - - - - - (163,534 - (16353 - (16353
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HE T HEEKER Y

financial assets, net ke - - - - - (4210) - {4210 - (4210)
Finance costs HERA (1,782) - - - - (1,000 - (78 1/ I—EY
Share of results of associates LN EE - - - - - (13,140) - (13,140 - (1%,
Share of results of a joint venture S A2 AT 225 - - - - - 68,929 - 68929 - 68929
Poft Losg beore taafon~~ BEATATI(EE) 578 B9 - - - MR (66 20 673 2450
Income tax expense FeRES - - - - - (263) - (263) - (26)
Segment results EE+ | 25,758 (5,937) - - - 258,704 (36,464) 242,061 (673 241,388
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(a)

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There was no inter-
segment revenue in both years.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation/amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
results represent the results achieved by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs including
directors’ emoluments. This is the measurement method
reported to the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

R I ERR MR

ANETZA=T-RLEE

7. SHER(HE)

(a)

Pl L ONSE S G-

ERAAZ5 D MBAERE
SIEREFHWA o LR E
FEBEDBEWA -

BWARFAXERZERED
BEEZWARRBXHZS
DEELCEENE HH
FEENRAXERIBEERZ
AR DE -

XD BOSHABEREFZS
B R SRR M SR 2 AT s AN SR [ A
RANSHBE - - 28
REESEBOMIEHNE
BORNBRESENESHE
ZHRREFBRAK) - LIIHD
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moERKERREZ2HRM
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. DEER(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) "HEERERE
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating rEENEEREBREE
segments is set out below. DEDMAT o

Provision  Provision  Franchisor
of financial  of medical of mother-

Provision  brokerage and infant-
Trading of ~ of financing  and related  [aboratory children  Investment
investments services services services  products holding Total
Rt

Rt SRELR R#ERR 8%k
BRAE  HERR  EBRB  R9ERE  NEEEE  REER i
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T T T T T Tin T

At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZRZ1-H

Assets before following items: FHUTLEEE 40205 900861 664813 23556 1026875 959828 4210148
Goodwil g - - %57 13296 265515 - 48
Seqment assets HiEE 482205 900861 691400 418842 1292300 959828 4745546
Unallocated assets RIWEE 296,731
Total assets BEE 508211
Liabilities &

Seqment liabilties P - 02314 (M220  (@21)  (1067846) (28199  (1,483,649)
Unallocated fiabifties FIREE (5,950)
Total liabiftes L (1,4689,199)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. DEER(EF
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) b) PHBEEREE(E)

Provision Provision  Franchisor
of financial ~ of medical  of mother-

Provision  brokerage and infant-
Trading of ~ of financing ~ and related ~ laboratory chidren  Investment
investments services services senvices  products holding Total
it

Bt SMAER RMERR 8EEER
RERE  RERER MBRE RRERR AHEER  REER it
HKB000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin

At 31 December 2015 RIE-RETZR=1-H

Assets 1

Seqment assets AR 3003703 156,83 = = - BT 3694276
Interests in associates REENT2ER - - - = B VA X 1)
Unallocated assets FoMEE 208718
Total assets BEE 4,408,666
Liabilties S

Segment liabiites P (330273) (532) = = = (2781 (35359
Unallocated liabilties FOHER (30)
Total liabities e (353,642)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o Segment assets include mainly all tangible assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interests in associates,
available-for-sale financial assets, deferred tax
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, inventories, loans receivables, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash. All assets are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

° Segment liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing borrowings, tax payables and deferred
tax liabilities. All liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. DEER(E)
(c) Other segment information (c) HftpIEHR
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
HREERE BEEEXE
Provision  Provision  Franchisor
of financial ~ of medical ~ of mother-
Provision  brokerage and infant-
Trading of of financing and related  laboratory ~ children  Investment Property
investments ~ services  sewices  sewices  products holding Unallocated ~ Sub-total  investment Total
Rt

Rt SHERR RUBER SREEm
BRAE  HERE  RERR RBERR GBS REER AR RE it
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000
Tén  fEn  TEn 0 T TR fén TR TEm T TR

an

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE_F-7k

t2RET-ALEE

Addiions of specied non-curent AT B EE"

assets” - - 211,660 388,573 14,110 - 868 12375811 - 137580
Amortisation of intangble assets B AR = - (14850) - - - - (1480 - (14850
Depreciaton of propery, plant and 41 + BERREHE

equpment - N - Y -
Interest income included in revenue 3 AWAREHUAR

and other income FIEWA 835 20,562 34478 - - 251 1 56,127 - 56,127
Provision for allowance for doubtiul  REBEHEFE

lebts, net - - (98,354) ) - - - (98,355) - (98,355)
Net fair value loss on financial assets #/kEESKEEZ

held for trading LYEEETS (689,657) - - - - - - (96T - (68968
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. DEHER(E
(c) Other segment information (Cont’d) (c) HfbpITERI(E)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FEIEEE friesh
Provision  Provision  Franchisor
of financial ~ of medical ~ of mother-
Provision  brokerage and infant-
Trading of ~ of financing ~ and related  laboratory ~ chidren  Investment Property
investments ~ services  services  services  products holding ~ Unallocated ~ Sub-fofal  investment Total
it

Rt SEELR RUBRR 8BEER
RRRE HARD RBER EIERE AMESR  REER AOB o IERE g
HKS00O  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS00D  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000
fin  fén TR TEm TR TEr  fE fEn TEn TEn

Vearended 31 December 2015 BZ-E-1%

Additions of specied non-curent  EHEEFEHEE

assets” - 570 - - - 2,050 782 3,402 53,196 57,198
Depreciation of property, plantand  41% + BERR&ERE
equipment - (59) - - - 200 (156) ) 9 (440)
Interest income included in revenue  tABAR AL
and other income FIEWA 1,249 16,273 - - - 1,35 - 18,877 - 18,877
Provision for allowance for doubtful & 3T EEE
et et - ) ; . . - NP X
Net fair value loss on financial assets #/kEEHBER
held for g 1PEEETE 91389 ; ; ; ; - - e - e
* Including additions of property, plant and equipment, * BEEEIEBRENEB QTR
intangible assets and goodwill directly or through acquisition BYX  BERRZE BFEE
of subsidiaries. k&g -
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers by locations of operations
and non-current assets (excluding financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) by locations of assets (“Specified
non-current assets”):

7.

DERER ()

(d)

HEER

TREBIAEBREBNVE
B RENBEEZBAR
REENBE S ZRBE
E(TERERMIARELER
BEE) ([BEHFRBEE])
2T

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RBNBERZHE EEFRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE ZE-Lf ZE-RE ZEF-If
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER FTERT FERT FTER
Continuing operations BEREER
Hong Kong BB 66,501 166,517 516,969 487,741
PRC HE - - 775,027 -
66,501 166,517 1,291,996 487,741
Discontinued operations BIEREER
Hong Kong BB - 193 - -
Total st 66,501 166,710 1,291,996 487,741
Information about major customers (e) FEEFZER

During the year, no revenue from a single customer of
the Group accounted for over 10% of total revenue of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2015, included
in the revenue arising from provision of financing services
and property investment segments of HK$16,466,000 were
revenue arose from interest income from customers A, B, C
and D of HK$2,110,000, HK$1,926,000, HK$1,732,000 and
HK$1,095,000 respectively, which contributed individually
10% or more of revenue.

rXEER BEE-FF
K EMEAEEAKRZEN
10% UL -BEZEZZFE—1
FE+-A=+—HLEE
RESHBRERNERED
ERE A K U 2% A 16,466,000
BT MEBEFA-B-C
KDHWABEWA: 2585
2,110,0003% Jt ~ 1,926,000
# T~ 1,732,000 8 T &
1,095,000t * FEFWA
1E10%E L E -
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8. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. %A (EHE)EF
This is stated after charging: KMBRTHIER :
2016 2015
—E—RE —Z2-EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Finance costs L& R A
Interest on bank and other borrowings  $R{TREfM{ESR > FE 13,838 2,782
Other items HiIER
Staff costs (excluding directors’ EIRAKN(FBIEESEHMH)
emoluments)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EMREVAZ
kind 53,908 7,782
Severance payments ERE - 3,826
Contributions to defined contribution TEEEHEICERRETEIHR
retirement schemes 1,485 224
55,393 11,832
Auditor’s remuneration (including other R E € (RIEEMEHE
audit fee, primarily in respect A(EEHHE A B %R
of audits of financial statements of RETEE))
subsidiaries) 2,910 1,258
Write off of intangible assets B EEME 3 -
Operating lease payments on equipment 2 &L BHNE A 19 72
Operating lease payments on premises BFZEEHENER 20,489 10,081
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ_-Z—

R I ERR MR

ANETZA=T-RLEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEMg
The emoluments received or receivable by the Company’s AATESEWHERZEHE M
directors are as follows: T =
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE_F—A"FE+H=+—HL
£E
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits retirement
fees in kind schemes Total
HE > E THMNK
LR REYAZE BASEMER ast
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TiEx TiEx FTiEx FiEx
Executive directors BITES
Chang Tat Joel (appointed on EREH(R=B—RE
8 September 2016) ABNH #;1 ) - 1,884 6 1,890
Cheung Ka Yee (resigned on  REE(R=T—
26 April 2016) IEH_JM BT) - - - -
Cheung Wing Ping (resigned R&F(R=Z—~F
on 8 September 2016) ABNH ﬁﬂi) 165 - - 165
Ko Po Ming (appointed on SERH(R=Z—XE
8 September 2016) ABNEB #2&) - 5,876 6 5,882
Lui Choi Yiu Angela (appointed Bk (R=B— <&
on 26 April 2016) MAZ+BEZE) 163 898 13 1,074
Man Wai Chuen YEE 240 - - 240
Zhang Yongdong (resigned on /KR (RZZ—RE
26 April 2016) WA=+ BHEE) 77 - 4 81
Non-executive directors EHTES
Hui Mei Mei, Carol (appointed :FE&(R=F—~F
on 5 October 2016) +ARREZMA) 57 - - 57
Tong Tang, Joseph (appointed & (R=Z—RF
on 26 April 2016) MAZ+ABEZMF) 163 - - 163
Xia Xiaoning (resigned on BEBEE(R-B—RE
19 September 2016) AATHAAEE) 172 - - 172
Independent non-executive BiIFHITES
directors
Antonio Maria Santos HERE(R=ZE—~E
(resigned on 26 April 2016) T A =+ ABHE) 77 - - 77
Lam Yiu Kin MEER 240 - - 240
Tian Ren Can (appointed on  B{ZIE(R=ZB— <&
26 April 2016) MAZ+ABEZEMA) 163 - - 163
Yuen Kwok On =ER 240 - - 240
1,757 8,658 29 10,444
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d) 9. EEME(E
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_Z—HF+-HA=+—HIL
FE
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits ~ Severance retirement
fees inkind  payments* schemes Total
e 2R TR
EEhd ENFR EHE RIGHEIMN @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TR TR

Executive directors WITES
Chuang Yueheng, Henry HRE(N-E-1F

(resigned on 1 August 2015)  \A—REHE) - 180 390 2 572
Cheung Ka Yee RERE - 376 198 11 585
Cheung Wing Ping REF - 526 99 12 637
Man Wai Chuen XER - 714 317 12 1,043
Zhang Yongdong (appointed on  RAR(RZZE-HF

1 August 2015) NE—REZ{) - 100 - 5 105
Non-executive directors FHITES
Xia Xiaoning (appointed on EBRE(R=2-1%

1 August 2015) NB—BEZE) 100 - - - 100

Independent non-executive ~ BIFHITESE

directors
Antonio Maria Santos HEE 240 - - - 240
Frank H. Miu (resigned on BHE(N-_2-1F

16 October 2015) +A+AB8HT) 190 - - - 190
Lam Yiu Kin (appointed on HES(R=_E-1F

1 August 2015) NE—-REZE) 100 - - - 100
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond BER(R-E-RE

(resigned on 1 August 2015)  \B—BEHE) 70 - - - 70
Yuen Kwok On (appointed on ~ REZ(RZE-hE

16 October 2015) T A+ BEZRE) 50 - - - 50

750 1,896 1,004 42 3,692
* Severance payments paid for resignation as employees of the - XNAARRFRMBARBFEREZ
subsidiaries of the Company. ERHE -
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2015, there
was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration, except for Chuang Yueheng, Henry,
Cheung Ka Yee, Cheung Wing Ping and Man Wai Chuen waived
emoluments of HK$1,080,000, HK$227,000, HK$318,000 and
HK$432,000 respectively. In addition, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any directors as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year included three (2015: four) directors, details of whose
remunerations are in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the remunerations of the remaining two
(2015: one) highest paid individuals, who are not a director of
the Company, for the year are as follows:

10.

EEME (A

BE-Z—R"E+-A=+—HL
FTEMBREENEIRNERERNE
ZH - BE-FE-HF+=A=
T—HLEFE  BRERAE - RE
& REFRNEFIRHREMNS
1,080,000 Jt ~ 227,00058 T »
318,000 Jt % 432,000 T 5 -
BEAMESHEREDERERS
ZHE o kA BEZE—RERCZ
E-—RF+ZA=1+—HILEE -
AEEHREQEMESZHFEE N
S| HEMAREBRIEARMAZ
SEMNEBSBEBEE -

AEREHAL

FR - AEERERESFALERE
=F(ZE—HF  mB)EE K
E2HFMAFRRRGE M ERKMT
Fo9-FR HTWME(ZZE—H
F:—B)BRSHFALTCGERLTE
B)ZEHEMOT

2016 2015

ZE—RE —E-hF

HK$°000 HK$’000

TH&T FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - BEEIREYWHZ 2,534 1,259
Contributions to defined contribution TEEMEFTCRINGTEIHR

retirement schemes 26 10

2,560 1,269

The above two (2075: one) highest paid individuals fell within the
band of HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000.
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11. TAXATION 11. BHilH
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% FR - BERMNERRAEEREE
(2015: 16.5%) on the Group’s estimated assessable profit arising B2 AT ERBERIL16.5% (=
from Hong Kong during the year. FE—FAF 16.5%) 2B REH B
& o
2016 2015
—F-RE —E-hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBFEH
Current year provision REEERE 610 263
Over provision in prior year BEAEFEBLERE (30) -
580 263
Deferred taxation IEFERIE
Reversal of taxable temporary differences, FEFRT B A1t Z 283 E 2
net (note 27) e (Krat27) (2,920) -
Tax (credit) expense for the year FABRBIER)FEX (2,340) 263
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11. TAXATION (Cont’d) 11. BIE(E)
Reconciliation of income tax (credit) expense SR (R ) EER
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ExT FET
(Loss) Profit before taxation BRELAT (518 ) Al (792,836) 241,651
Income tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5% 3%16.5% (=T —HF :
(2015: 16.5%) 16.5%) ZERAMETFEZ
FRrigHi (130,818) 39,872
Non-deductible expenses a1 164,191 43,977
Tax exempt revenue WIAF R U = (66,945) (82,141)
Unrecognised tax losses RIERBIERE 8 27,728 23,511
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax B/RiBEKRER 2 HIEBEHE
losses (87) (35,936)
Effect of share of results of associates  JE{fHE AR %XE 2 & 3,951 22,463
Effect of share of results of a joint venture FE{f—REE R EEE 2 HE - (11,373)
Overprovision of previous year BEFEERERE (30) -
Others Hith (330) (110)
Tax (credit) expense for the year FAFECGER)AX (2,340) 263
12. DIVIDEND 12. 2
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment AABESTEBRTMEFE 2
of a dividend for both years. RE o
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13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BR(EE)EHR
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share is based BREXRER)BANIIRERAERR
on (loss) profit attributable to equity holders of the Company and AEREEAEGER)EIR
the weighted average number ordinary shares in issue during CRTEER ZMEFHIEETEN
the year as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ExT FET
(Loss) Profit attributable to equity KNRIEZEERE AEM
holders of the Company (5187
Continuing operations HERE T (472,022) 357,821
Discontinued operations BRI TS - (673)
(472,022) 357,148
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
No. of shares No. of shares
’000 000
(adjusted)
B 8B RHEE
B F A%
(#EFZ)
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of A 2R S 1T
the reporting period ZERR 16,971,564 15,590,815
Effect of shares issued during the year FREEITRMNDZE 816,116 851,147
Weighted average number of EER 2 MEF I8
ordinary shares for basic (loss) (BERER(EE)
earnings per share ERAmME) 17,787,680 16,441,962
The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares for both AATAMEFELRETHES
years. Accordingly, the diluted (loss) earnings per share was same B oAl RMEFEz2SRKRE
as the basic (loss) earnings per share for both years. BEB)BAEERER(BER)AZ
AR o
The basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share for current and ER-ZE-—tF-A4ER2HBR
prior reporting periods have been adjusted as a result of rights ARBIT(HRGEEUHBERERW T
issue and bonus issue effected in February 2017 as set out in 41(a)) » BEAIRBEEHRBBER
note 41(a) to the consolidated financial statements. EXREE (BB BFICKHAE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - BERH
Computer
Leasehold Furniture and office Medical Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
£l
AENERE  BARRE  BLERG BER RE CEl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tin T Tin Tin Tin

Reconciliation of carrying amount FABHE-HE

- year ended 31 December 2015 ZE-RE
TZR=t-ALEE
At the beginning of the reporting period A2 1] 275 2 355 - - 657
Additions hE 1,808 617 1,066 - - 3,486
Disposals HE (1,327) (48) (284) - - (1,659)
Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries & - LEHBAR (86) - (89) - - (175)
Depreciation i (171) (61) (208) - - (440)
At the end of the reporting period REFHLER 494 535 840 - - 1,869

Reconciliation of carrying amount  BRE{E# -
- year ended 31 December 2016 BEZE-nE

tZAZ+-ALEE
At the beginning of the reporting period R2#RE4] 494 535 840 - - 1,869
Additions hE 4,808 914 1,689 150 - 7,561
Additions - acquisition of subsidiaries  FE - WEHKBAT

(note 30(2)&(b) (H3306)/b) 18,707 5,657 6,853 2,430 2,351 35,098

Wrte off s (4,381) (189) (662) - - (5232)
Depreciation & (1,061) (463) (2,186) (045) - (3,955)
At the end of the reporting period ~ RERELER 18,567 6,454 6,534 2,335 2,351 36,241
At January 2016 R=E-7%-5
Cost FiR 573 583 916 - - 2,072
Accumulated depreciation Zithe 79) 48) (76) - - (203)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 494 535 840 = = 1,869
At 31 December 2016 RIE-NE

+ZRA=1-8
Cost A 19,707 6,965 8,593 2,580 2,351 40,19
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (1,140) (511) (2,059) (245) - (3,955)
Net carrying amount FHERE 18,567 6,454 6,534 2,395 2,351 36,241
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. EEEE
Licenses Customer Computer
Brand  and trading and franchisee software
names rights ~ Trademarks relationships  and systems Total
R
mEER  MERAEE BE  BERRG EREEREM CEl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tin Tin Tin Tén Tén

Reconciliation of carrying amount  REE 2 HK-
- year ended 31 December 2016 BEZE-1E
+ZR=t-ALEE
At the beginning of the reporting period 24 - - - - - S
Additions - acquisition of subsidiaries  FE - KA

(note 30(z)&(b) (B30 K (b) 640,811 21,774 145 94,042 32,596 789,368
Write off sk - - - = () ()
Amortisation B - - - (13,846) (1,004) (14,850)
Impairment loss BEEE - - - (1,200) - (1,209)
At the end of the reporting period A2 BEILER 640,811 21,774 145 78,987 31,589 773,306
At 1 January 2016 R=F-~E-B-B
Cost A - - - - - -
Accumulated amortisation 25l - - - - - -
At 31 December 2016 RIE-RE

+zAz+-8
Cost R 640,811 21,774 145 94,042 32,586 789,358
Accumulated amortisation and ZHEERHESR
impairment losses - - - (15,055) (997) (16,052)
640,811 21,774 145 78,987 31,589 773,306
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

Brand names

Brand names represented the trading names of the medical
and laboratory business and the franchisor of mother-infant-
children products business, which were acquired by the Group
as a result of business combinations during the year. As at the
dates of acquisitions, these intangible assets were valued based
on an income-based approach by an independent professional
valuer, Avista Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”). Key valuation
assumptions and estimations used in the valuation included
discount rate, indefinite useful life of the brand names, royalty
rate, etc. Estimated future economic benefits attributed to the
brand names were discounted at a rate which reflected the
business risks in relation to the business operated under the
brand names. The brand names were estimated as having
indefinite useful life and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses as the directors of the Company
consider that there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time
over which the brand names can be used to generate economic
benefits to the Group.

Licenses and trading rights

Licenses and trading rights comprise the rights to trade on or
through the Stock Exchange and Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited, which were acquired by the Group as a result of business
combination and acquisition of assets during the year. At the
dates of acquisitions, these intangible assets were valued based
on a market-based approach by an independent professional
valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma”) or the directors of
the Company. The market-based approach values an intangible
asset by comparison of the prices at which other similar intangible
assets or interests changed hands in arm’s length transactions.
The directors of the Company determined that the licenses
and trading rights have indefinite useful life and subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses because
the directors of the Company consider that there is no foreseeable
limit on the period of time over which the licenses and trading
rights can be used to generate economic benefits to the Group.

15.

RVEEEH

fm e B 18

mEEREREREREXK 2B
XEBRESEEEREBEITEE
B ZERFHAEERFARE
BaptmUEE - RIEBEH - &
ERVEEDRBUANEABILE
EAEMERTEEABRAT
(M@ EE - HERERZ
FRMEERRRMEAEERRE -
g BB ERERFHRENB
Z o mEBE 2B RREERN =
DEREERERBEBEERE 2
EBEER PR FREER - @
LR HEEEREAFY - BH
BREBABIZTRERSEE
RAERTESERS  mEEBEATR
REBTREBNZNHEA - I
EARRRS -

R B A

RERREEREENNEBE
RERBMERGHAERARARSE 2
RN DHAKERFAEEES
HREBEEMWE - RIEH
B ZEENEEDREBETSER
B ERMEEMESBEERFEER
RA(EE VAR AESME -
MEEEBLEBRAFREHNEF
Z HAE R & E RS 2 EE
FHEELEE - AR ESEEE
REEERARERERFY - B
HERBARRTRERBETE
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W WEATFERRS) o
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the intangible assets were
tested for impairment. Certain intangible assets are part of cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) and the details of the impairment tests
are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

16. GOODWILL

The amounts of goodwill capitalised by the Group and recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position arising from
the acquisition of subsidiaries are as follows:

15.

16.

BREEEH

A

REFMEER - BEEEETR
BEAR - BETEFVEERREEE
BEu((REELEENM D z2—8D
HERH 2 FIFRENGE WBER
RMIEE16 °

mE

HAEEE AL AR E AR
RPEIANEE(BERENBELR
EE)ZBBEOT

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET-AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FET
Reconciliation of carrying amount BREE 2 HER

At the beginning of the reporting period A 2 REI%) = -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30(a)) W BE [T 8 & &) (H1a£30(a)) 542,884 -
Impairment losses WEEE (67,486) -
At the end of the reporting period RERPEEH 475,398 -

At 31 December wR+ZA=+—H
Cost 2% 542,884 =
Accumulated impairment losses REPREEE (67,486) -
Net carrying amount BREEFH 475,398 -

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisitions
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled workforce.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. None of the goodwill recognised is expected
to be deductible for income tax purposes.
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16. GOODWILL (Cont’d) 16. HHE(4F)
The carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets was HMERBFEE 2 REEBERBEER
allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to the nature MEIREAEECHAINESE
of business as follows for impairment test: EENLUETRIERR
2016
—F-RE
Intangible Intangible
assets with assets
indefinite with finite
Goodwill useful life useful life

BREREH AREREH
g MELEE MEREE

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#RT Ti#T T#T
Financial brokerage and related SRR L R EREIRE
services
- Securities "% 26,587 10,550 68,875
- Commodities —&m - 3,517 9
- Bullion -BE2E - - 64
Medical and laboratory services BRENEBRERE 183,296 201,900 -
Franchisor of mother-infant-children R EERISTELRE
products 265,515 438,911 41,773
475,398 654,878 110,721
Goodwill associated with the above businesses arose when the B EMERBERNEERERSH
business combinations were completed, details of which are set TEREBEL  HEBRIRGESH
out in note 30(a) to the consolidated financial statements. K HEEI0(a) °
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ_-Z—

AETZRA=T-RLEE

GOODWILL (Cont’d)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of commodities brokerage
and related services is fair value less cost of disposal, which is
determined by the assets-based approach. The marketability
discount rate of 16.11% has been adopted to account for the
lower marketability and cost of disposal in arriving at the fair
value of the CGU. The directors intend to cease the business
of the CGU of bullion brokerage and related services and the
recoverable amount is fair value less cost of disposal, which
approximates the carrying amount of tangible assets of the CGU.
The fair value measurements of both CGUs are at Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs of securities brokerage and
related services, medical and laboratory services and franchisor
of mother-infant-children products has been determined by the
value-in-use calculation. Cash flow projections are based on
financial budgets approved by the board of directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 3% long-term growth rate. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGUs, and determined that the
goodwill associated with the CGUs of securities, commodities
and bullion brokerage and related services were impaired by
approximately HK$50,692,000, HK$16,554,000 and HK$240,000
respectively and the customer relationship included in intangible
assets associated with the CGU of commodities brokerage
and related services was impaired by HK$1,209,000 in light of
keen competition in the market of the provision of the financial
brokerage and related services in Hong Kong and the continuous
reduction in the customer portfolio maintained by the CGUs. The
recoverable amount of the CGUs of securities and commodities
brokerage and related services is approximately HK$697,600,000
and HK$21,003,000 respectively. The recoverable amount of the
CGU of bullion brokerage and related services is insignificant.
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3 o
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ERBURSEEERFITEED
ZEEELBENZAEIKRESECE
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RERMEER  AEEFER
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URBEEREESEEEVERS
2 75 58 {8 450,692,000 7T
16,554,000 Jt % 240,0005% 7T -
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16. GOODWILL (Cont’d) 16. HE (&)
The recoverable amount of the CGUs of medical and laboratory RECHABEFTENEERERE
business and the franchisor of mother-infant-children products ¥BURBEEERBTEERZ
based on value-in-use calculations exceeded their carrying REeELEN 2 T REFIERBRK
amount. Accordingly, the related goodwill and intangible assets ZIREME - Bt > EEFERER
were not impaired for the year (2015: N/A). EERFERMEREE(=ZE—ZEF:
THEA) °
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as FRAEESERMRAZEERSEN
follows: T
Securities Medical Franchisor
brokerage and of mother-
and related laboratory  infant-children
services services products
BHLLER BER BEBER
HEER® ERTRE RirEE
Gross profit margin ER= nfa  40% - 92% 16%
i A
Average growth rate PR & 30% 10% 23%
Long-term growth rate REBRE 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate BRI = 20% 15% 20%
Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based EEEBREBEBIRAREERTS
on past performance and its expectation of market development. BRETCHEEERNER - Az
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks REABAERRY RMEERE
relating to the relevant CGUs. EEXBNZBERRE
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16. GOODWILL (Cont’d) 16. ™8 (&)
Sensitivity of key assumptions FERRZHBBE
The management identified the following key assumptions in EEERIATEERR » EBE
which a reasonably possible change on an individual basis would B s 2 ERBBEREM
cause any or additional impairment loss. o RESNREETIE o
Reasonable possible changes that individually cause additional BEREYEIMREFENSE AR
impairment loss: 28 :
Increase of
Decrease impairment
W BB N
HK$’000
FERT
CGU: Securities brokerage and related R&EL B : BERKL
services RAE R
Growth rate R &R 1% 13,577
CGU: Medical and laboratory services IR&E4 B BER
BERERS
Growth rate R &R 1% 8,345
CGU: Franchisor of mother-infant- HeESEEN B82S
children products EmEER
Growth rate 18R & 1% 13,648
17. SUBSIDIARIES 17. MB QA
Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company RATHBREFE
In the opinion of the directors, a complete list of the particulars of BEERR  HRAZEZIIMEHE
all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the table NEZHFBHEERTR » TR
below lists the principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting EE2IRERPEEAHAEEE
period which materially affect the result or assets of the Group. BEIEEREAFEZTENEL

a [
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nVT
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=-Z—

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company (Cont’d)

Particulars of issued

17. B R (4)

RRFMEARFE(HE)

Place of incorporation/ and paid up ordinary
Name of subsidiaries type of legal entity share capital Ownership interests Principal activities
GauATR LV BRTRAR
MEBARER EEEREA LERAZRE ERRE IEXH
Held by Held Group’s
the bya effective
Company  subsidiary ~ interest*
BARE HMWERE FEEER
#E #E Flzt*
% % %
Enerchine Investment Management Hong Kong/ 1,000,000 shares - 100 100 Provision of securities
Limited (“Enerchine”) Limited liability of HK$1,000,000 advisory and asset
company with no par value management
services
BEREERERAA(AZE)  HB/BRLA 1,000,000% 1,000,000 RUBSEEREEE
BTEEENRG B
Jubilant Link Limited British Virgin Islands/ 20,000 shares = 55.02 55.02 Investment holding
(“Jubilant Link”) Limited liability of US$1 each
company
REERAR(RED ABRZEE/BRAR  20,000RFHR1ZTH RERR
g
Hong Kong Mortgage Solutions ~ Hong Kong/ 500 shares - 47 32.90 Investment holding
Limited (“HKMS”) Limited liability of HK$75,000,000 (note)
company with no par value ()
EERBERRRERAR &8/ BRAR 500875,000,000% 7T REZR
([EARE]) ERENRG
Leader Enterprise Limited Hong Kong/ 10,000 shares = 60 33.01 Provision of medical
(“Leader”) Limited liability of HK$10,000 consultation services
company with no par value and laboratory
services relating to
assisted reproductive
technologies
FHEEERAR(EE ) EE/BRLA 10,000%10,000387% REUERERRERE
ERENRS B ERIEEN
ERZRE
Mason Administrative Services Hong Kong/ 1 share of HK$1 - 100 100 Provision of
Limited Limited liability with no par value administrative
company services
RERBARAF &8/ BRAA 1R1BTEEEN RIETHRS
i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company (Cont’d)

Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation/ and paid up ordinary

Name of subsidiaries type of legal entity share capital
A S BETRAR

(i} NGRS EERRE LERAZFHE

Mason Bullion Limited (formerly ~ Hong Kong/ 1,000,000 shares
known as GuocoCapital Bullion  Limited liability of HK$1,000,000
Limited, “Mason Bullion”) company with no par value

RESEERAA(GIBEALESE BE/BRLA 1,000,0004 1,000,000
FERRE [REEZF)) BT EEENRG

Mason Capital Investments British Virgin Islands/ 38,000,000 shares
Limited (“MCIL”) Limited liability of HK$1 each

company

REETREARLA KBRLZES/ERAT 38,000,000
(RiEE%E]) sRIBTHRG

Mason Capital Strategic British Virgin Islands/ 1 share of US$1
Holdings Limited Limited liability
(“Mason Capital Strategic”) company

REEARKERERAR ABRZEE/BRAR 1R1ETHRG
(REEARE])

Mason Financial Services Group ~ Cayman Islands/Limited 1 share of US$1
Limited liability company

REEREBERAT HERS/ BRAT 1R1Z TR

Mason Futures Limited (formerly ~ Hong Kong/Limited 100,000 shares
known as GuocoCapital Futures  liability company of HK$10,000,000
Limited, “Mason Futures”) with no par value

RENEERAA(IBRELEL BE/BRLA 100,000%10,000,000
HEERLA  [REHE)) BT EEENRG
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17. BN R (%)

RRFMWEARFE(HE)

Ownership interests

Held by
the
Company
BARE]
#E

%

100

AERE
Held

by a
subsidiary
BB A A
#E

%

100

70

100

Group’s
effective
interest
2rEEHER
Fllz*

%

100

70

100

100

Principal activities

IEXH

Provision of bullion
trading services

REECBEERS

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Provision of
commodities
brokerage services

RUBRELRY
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17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company (Cont’d)

Place of incorporation/
type of legal entity
ALt
HTERE

Name of subsidiaries

MBLARER

al

Mason Resources Finance Limited Hong Kong/Limited

liability company
REERBBERLA &8/ BRAA
Mason Securities Limited (formerly Hong Kong/Limited

known as GuocoCapital Limited, liability company
“Mason Securities”)

RERSERLA(IHSETEL
B [REEF])

BB/ ARAF

Nice Hill International Limited British Virgin Islands/
Limited liability
company

AERLHE/ARALT

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

Particulars of issued
and paid up ordinary
share capital
BRTRAR
LERAZFE

10,000 shares
of HK$10,000
with no par value
10,000810,0008 ¢
ERENRS

5,120,000 shares
of HK$512,000,000
with no par value

5,120,000
512,000,000 7C
REENRY

35,256,411 shares
of US$1 each

35,256,411
el Byl

MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EE&#ZHBRAH 159

17. BN R (4)

RRTMEARFE(HE)

Ownership interests Principal activities

AERE IEXH
Held by Held Group’s
the bya effective
Company  subsidiary interest!
BERE HNELE AEEER
#E #E Fla
% % %
- 100 100 Provision of financing
services
RUMERS
- 100 100 Dealing in securities,
provision of
securities margin
financing and
provision of
investment corporate
finance advisory
services
BERS  REESH
REENRRARE
EERWERERY
- 100 100 Trading of investments

BR&

]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company (Cont’d)

Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation/ and paid up ordinary

Name of subsidiaries type of legal entity share capital
ALt BRTRAR
WEBAREE HTERE LERAZRHE

Pioneer Leap Investment Limited  Independent State of 1 share of US$1
(“Pioneer Leap”) Samoa/Limited liability
company

BRREARAR(#R]) BEL/ BRAH 1R X THR G

Reproductive HealthCare Limited ~ Hong Kong/Limited 10,000 shares

(“RHL”) liability company of HK$10,000
with no par value
&#/BRLA 10,000%10,000/& 7%
ERENRS
Thomas Global Financial Services Hong Kong/Limited 7,500,000 shares
Limited (formerly known as liability company of HK$7,500,000
Thomas Securities Company with no par value
Limited, “Thomas Global”)
RERBBRBERAR(IEAEN BR/ BRLT 7,500,0007,500,000
EFERAE - ([RERK)) BTEEENRG
Shining Time Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ 10,000 shares
(“Shining Time”) Limited liability of US$1 each
company
SEERARAR (5] ABAZBE/BRAR  10000RER1ELH
i
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17. BN R (%)

RRFMWEARFE(HE)

Ownership interests Principal activities
AERE IEXH
Held by Held Group’s
the bya effective

Company  subsidiary interest!
BERE HNELE AEEER
#E #E Fla*

% % %

- 100 100 Investment holding

REZR

- 100 55.02 Provision of medical
consultation services

REUERERRS

- 100 100 Provision of brokerage
services

RUELRE

- 55 55 Investment Holding

REZR
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17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company (Cont’d)

Name of subsidiaries

MBLARER

al

Victory “Art” Laboratory Limited
(“Victory”)

BHEsERRERAR (BN

Zhuhai Aiyingdao Business Chain
Limited*

KENEREHERRERAT

Aiyingdao Wuhan Supply Chain
Management Limited*

HEEBRSHEEERERAT

Place of incorporation/

type of legal entity
EMALHE
ETEREN

Hong Kong/Limited
liability company

&#/BRLA

PRC/Limited liability
company

hE/BRAA

PRC/Limited liability
company

hE/BRAA

Particulars of issued
and paid up ordinary
share capital
BRTRAR
LERAZFE

10,000 shares
of HK$10,000
with no par value

10,000%%10,0007% 7T
EHENRS

Paid-up capital
of Renminbi
(“RMB”) 6,650,000
BARRAARY
TARED
6,650,0007C

Paid-up capital
of RMB1,000,000

BRRRFARE
1,000,0007

Principal subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2016

RBEZF-AE+RZt-ALEECHEZTERBAR

Co-lead Holdings Limited
(“Co-Lead”)

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

British Virgin Islands/

Limited liability
company

AERLHE/ARAT

5,653 shares

of US$1 each

5,653 B R 1= T H

3
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17. BN R (4)

RRTMEARFE(HE)

Ownership interests Principal activities

AERE IEXH

Held by Held Group’s
the bya effective
Company  subsidiary interest!
BERE HNELE AEEER
#E #E Fla*
% % %

- 100 55.02 Provision of laboratory

services relating to
assisted reproductive
technologies
RAULEB & R TR
WERZRS

- 100 55 Franchisor of mother-
infant-children
products

BEEEMETER

- 100 55 Franchisor of mother-
infant-children
products

BEEERRTERR

- 52.69 52.69 Investment holding

REZR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company (Cont’d)

Name of subsidiaries

MBLARER

al

High Rhine Limited

Pearl Decade Limited

Rawcliffe International Limited

Willie Link Limited (“Willie Link”)

Place of incorporation/
type of legal entity
ALt
HTERE

British Virgin Islands/
Limited liability
company

ABRLHE/ARAT

British Virgin Islands/
Limited liability
company

AERLHE/ARAT

British Virgin Islands/
Limited liability
company

AERLHE/ARLF

British Virgin Islands/
Limited liability
company

AERLHE/ARAT

162 MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED R{E&£ZHFERLF

Particulars of issued
and paid up ordinary
share capital
BRTRAR
LERAZFE

100 shares
of US$1 each

1008
BRIZRHRG

9,615,387 shares
of US$1 each

9,615,387
BRIZTHRG

35,256,411 shares
of US$1 each

35,256,411 1%
BRIXTHRS

100 shares
of US$1 each

1008
BRIZRHRG

17. BN R (%)

RRFMWEARFE(HE)

Ownership interests

Held by
the
Company
BARE]
#E

%

AERE
Held

by a
subsidiary
BB A A
#E

%

100

100

100

100

Group’s
effective
interest
2rEEHER
Fllz*

%

52.69

100

100

100

Principal activities

IEXH

Trading of investments

BR&

]

Trading of investments

BR&

]

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company (Cont’d)

*

English name for identification purpose only

L Excluding the interests that are attributable to non-controlling
interests

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the reporting period, or at any time during the year.

Note:

Although MCIL’s equity interests in HKMS is 47%, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group has 51% voting power of HKMS at the meetings of
shareholders and has obtained control over HKMS, details of which are
set out in note 30(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually material
NCI

The following table shows the information relating to the non-
wholly owned subsidiaries, MCIL and its subsidiaries (“MCIL
Group”), Jubilant Link and its subsidiaries (“Jubilant Link Group”),
Co-Lead and its subsidiaries (“Co-Lead Group”) and Shining Time
and its subsidiaries (“Shining Time Group”), that have material
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) during the year. The summarised
financial information of each of material NCI for the period from
the later of the beginning of the reporting period and the date of
acquisition to the earlier of the date of disposal and the end of
the reporting period represents amounts before inter-company
eliminations and excluding the related goodwill.

17. B R (4)

RRFMEARFE(HE)

T EEEBRIZERER N ED

LBFERBAREEREBRSP

BMEMNBLAARERPLEERARE
AT BB E A R EEE
MIaE -
HARCELIANRBEBERBEZRES
47%  EBERE > AEERBRRAE
FHEEEBIRIBNS1%IRER » Y
ERRBITHEEGE > BEFEBER
FRE M ERERMEEI0(D) ©

BREEEAFEREZZHEA
AMBEER

TRINFREEEARFERES
(TFEREZ D2 ERBA
ARGEAREMBAR(HEBIR
FEXREH])  MREREMNE AT
(Rl fESEE]) ~ Co-LeadRHE
B 2 B (45 #8[ Co-Lead 3 ) LA
REBRENBAR (LR 2EE
B zEEER - FERFERE
w=E SR REWEE A P ERE
EREZHECHHEERMPLEEAH
BEREE WK ERBES RIKH
AIZEXE » TEEEEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 17. BN R (%)
Financial information of subsidiaries with individually material EREEERFEREZZHE LR
NCI (Cont’d) R B ER ()
Jubilant Shining
MCIL Link Time Co-Lead
Group Group Group Group
Co-Lead
REEAEE fREEE RR&ER &8
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FiExT FET FET FET
At 31 December 2016 RZFE—"E+-HA=+—H
Proportion of NCI's FERER AR 2
ownership interests 30% 44.98% 45% *46.93% - 47.31%
Non-current assets FRBEE 74,926 205,073 509,512 -
Current assets RBEE 3,347 30,473 517,363 -
Current liabilities RBeE (631) (12,200) (563,881) -
Non-current liabilities FREEE = (33,314) (112,469) =
Total equity MRES 77,642 190,032 350,525 -
NCI of subsidiaries of within HHEEEAKBLATZ
the respective groups R ER 39,709 4,244 = -
Carrying amount of NCI FIERER CIREE 51,089 87,812 157,736 =
Co-Lead Group
Co-Lead%E
HK$°000
FTiERr
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-AF+=-A=+—H
Proportion of NCI’s AR B R 2 tE Bl
ownership interests 46.93%
Non-current assets FREEE 90,000
Current assets REEE 2,427,051
Current liabilities REEE (324,975)
Total equity s 2,192,076
Carrying amount of NCI FERERZEREE 1,028,760
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=—F—~F+=-A=1+—HLFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 17. MBLR (&

BREREAFEREZZHEA

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually material

NCI (Cont’d) R B ER (4
Jubilant Shining
MCIL Link Time Co-Lead
Group Group Group Group
Co-Lead
REEAEE fREEE RR&ER £
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FiExT FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December HZE_ZE—AE
2016 +ZA=+—HLEE
Proportion of NCI's TR ER AR 2 L
ownership interests 30% 44.98% 45% *46.93% - 47.31%
Revenue 3 - 23,651 - (598,883)
Expenses 53 (100) (18,164) - (82,297)
(Loss) Profit and total (BB aFKREE
comprehensive (loss) (B518) AL
income (100) 5,487 - (681,180)
Attributable to: LUT A
- Equity holders of the -HEEBEZRESEA
respective groups (67) 4,843 - (681,180)
- NCI of subsidiaries - EEEERRBEARZ
within the respective FERES
groups (33) 644 - -
(Loss) Profit and total FEREREMN
comprehensive (loss) (BR)ENREE
income attributable to NCI  (%518) Ut A28 (53) 2,825 - (321,501)
Net cash inflow (outflow) THZRERESHRA
from ()5
Operating activities ReEE 25 7,147 - 5,642
Investing activities REZE = (151) - -
Financing activities MEEE - - S (5,573)
Total cash inflows BERAEE 25 6,996 = 69

Dividend paid to NCI

XN FHEREDZRE

2016 Annual Report % £ 3] %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually material
NCI (Cont’d)

17. BN R (%)

BREREAFEREZZHEA
RAIMBER (HF)

Co-Lead Group
Co-Lead5 8

HK$'000
TART
Year ended 31 December HEZZE-HF+ZA=1+—H
2015 IEFRE
Proportion of NCI’s FERERFEREZLH
ownership interests 27.01% - 46.93%
Revenue g 143,617
Expenses X (240,845)
Loss and total BERZEEELRE
comprehensive loss (97,228)
Loss and total FEREGRABERZEEE
comprehensive loss M
attributable to NCI (115,760)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from T & ERE () RATE
Operating activities REEE (2,520,005)
Investing activities REEE 2,011,377
Financing activities BE L 510,074
Total cash inflows BERAEE 1,446
Dividend paid to NCI TRFHERERZZRE -
* Upon completion of share subscription of Co-Lead in 2016, the * RZE—RNFEHCo-Lead I IR

equity interests in Co-Lead held by the Group changed from
53.07% to 52.69%. Details are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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A3RHE% - AEE ¥ Co-Lead
IR REF53.07% 2 F 552.69% °
BRFFRRREEMBHRME
310
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. BE& N TEHE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiExT FB T
Unlisted shares JEEHEH
Share of net assets EBLEEFEE - 485,872

As at 31 December 2015, interests in associates of HK$485,872,000
represented 21.33% equity interests in Freewill Holdings
Limited (“Freewill”), a company incorporated in the Republic of
the Marshall Islands with limited liability. The principal activity
of Freewill and its subsidiaries (together “Freewill Group”) is
investment holding. During the year, Freewill issued 35,400,000
ordinary shares to several investors, which reduced the Group’s
interests in Freewill from 21.33% to 20.01%, resulting in a gain of
HK$3,233,000 arising from changes in shareholding of associates
recognised in profit or loss. The associates were disposed of
upon the disposal of the Group’s subsidiary, Willie Link, as
mentioned in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The associates operated principally in Hong Kong and were
accounted for using equity method in the consolidated financial
statements until the disposal.

R-ZE-HF+=ZA=+—8 "
AR N\ T 2 #E22485,872,00078
Jti§ R Freewill Holdings Limited
([Freewill]: " XHRERBHE
HANRAZFMAL2ERLT) 2
21.33% MR #E  Freewill R B A
T(E B Freewill EE ) 2 T E%
BHBREZER - RFERA » Freewill
M| # F % & & % 17 35,400,000 A%
ZER - BAREERFreewil HY#E
#=£21.33% F 2 £20.01% & &
BEEATREEBHEE 2 NS
3,233,000/ THRIERATER ° Al
MERE MR IRRMI 1Al » B
ARREEREEKE LD T Willie
LInkEREE °

HERNRAETERBBEERY -
BERGEUBHRRPEAEREAN
iR HEEHERL -
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

Financial information of individually material associates

Summarised financial information of each of the material
associates of the Group for the period from the beginning of
the reporting period to the date of disposal is set out below,
which represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and adjusted
by the Group for equity accounting purposes including any
differences in accounting policies and fair value adjustments.

18.

g N ()

BRI EARBE QT zHBEER

REBMEBERBE QTN 2B
EHERMZUBERBMERIIN
TX  NEBREARREEEH
BHRELARR 2P BRERAIIE
B WRAREBUERSAER
AEEEENBREERQTESR

o

Freewill Group

Freewill &£ &
2016 2015
ZE—RE —Z2-EHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAT
At 31 December W+=ZH=+—H
Gross amounts fEEE
Non-current assets ERBEE - 2,528,851
Current assets REBEE - 147,542
Current liabilities REEE = (398,513)
- 2,277,880
Group’s ownership interest REBZFIEE - 21.33%
Group’s share of equity of associates AEBELBE N RER - 485,872
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R ISR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 18. BiENGIHERE(E)
Financial information of individually material associates ERIEXREE QR 2HEER (E)
(Cont’d)
Freewill Group
Freewill£E
From
1 January Year ended
2016 to date 31 December
of disposal 2015
Bz
—F—RE —Z2-EHF
—A—H +=—B=+—H
ZHERH EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#ExT FExT
Gross amounts #EEE
Revenue Uz 151,555 8
Loss B8 (111,694) (420,383)
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEm A 49,365 20,260
Total comprehensive loss ZHEBBHAE (62,329) (400,123)
Group’s ownership interests REBZFIEE *20.01% - 21.33% *21.33% - 34.70%
Group’s share of loss of associates  ANEBE(LHEL A RRER (23,945) (113,362)
Group’s share of other comprehensive Zx& B fE(§H& A 7]
income of associates Hiap2mUWB A 9,906 4,611
Dividend received from associates BHE A RREZRE - -
* Upon completion of share subscriptions of Freewill, the equity * ASE R Freewil R RE® - R
interests in Freewill Group changed from 21.33% to 20.01% (2015: Freewill 52 @ < B #£ HH 21.33%
34.7% to 21.33%). BEAR2001% (= E—HF:

34.7% % E 521.33%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

19. AIMEHEMBEE

2016 2015
—F—RE —E-HF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M &E T#xT FHET
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEHHRE  URAEAE

Equity securities RAES (@) 630,525 90,000
Debt instrument (=0 =t (b) 74,926 -
Private funds REES (c) 10,935 =
d) 716,386 90,000
Impairment losses WEEE (e) (50,925) -
665,461 90,000

Notes: FiEE -

(@ Asat31December 2016, the unlisted investment of HK$630,525,000
represented 15% equity interests in EBELERHERLT
(Shengang Securities Company Limited*, “Shengang”), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability. Shengang is principally
engaged in securities related business with full licences approved
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission in the PRC. In light
of the adverse change of foreign currency in which the investment
is denominated, an impairment loss of HK$50,925,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2016.

As at 31 December 2015, unlisted investments of HK$90,000,000
represented 4.27% equity interests in Joint Global Limited (“Joint
Global”), a company incorporated in the Republic of the Marshall
Islands with limited liability. The principal activity of Joint Global
is investment holding. The investment has generated substantial
losses in 2016 and the directors are of the opinion that the
probability to recover fully the investment would be remote. An
impairment loss of HK$74,991,000 has been recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2016. The Group has
disposed of its investment in Joint Global upon the disposal of
subsidiaries as mentioned in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

*

English name for identification purpose only
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RZEBE-AF+=ZA=+—-8"
¥ EH % ¥E630,525,00078 Tig
REBEEROBRITH
Bl —ERTEFMKLIZE
PFROTE)Z15% IR - RBERE
BHEAELSEEEEEESHE
RENEIMEBETERER S
HEBEK HE—E—RE+Z
A=+—HILFEHRE » ERE
ErtEME 2T FELE - 2RE
= A 2R {E E51850,925,00058
5T o

R=-ZE-HF+=-A=+—8H "
3k £ ™ % 90,000,0008 T ¥
M Joint Global Limited ([ Joint
Global|l' —XRERBEHESE L
MEBEFZEMEI2ERLAT) 2
4.27% PR FE ° Joint GlobalzZz =
EEBAREER - R=F—
NEE ZRECELERESE
BEERHBHROREN T
MEEN BEZE—RE+=
A=+—BIEEHE R
@A ERIR{EE1874,991,0008
T o ANERE M ISR ERMEES1FT
o AEBEC R HEKE QTR
HEH M Joint Globalfyi&& -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—A"FE+-A=1+—HIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(b)

2016 Annual Report & £ 3} &

In October 2016, the Group acquired a subsidiary, HKMS, which
has available-for-sale financial assets with carrying amount of
HK$74,926,000 (see note 30(b)). In April 2016, HKMS entered into a
junior facility agreement with a third-party, pursuant to which HKMS
agrees to grant a loan with the principal amount of HK$75 million.
The borrower applies all money borrowed under the facility towards
origination and funding of mortgage loans, purchase of mortgage
insurance and payment of related fees and expenses. The borrower
intends to securitise (subject to the prior written consent of the
Group) or the private sales of the asset-back collateral pool, in each
case repay all loans under the agreement. The loan facility was
drawdown in October 2016, which is unsecured and repayable 18
months from the first day from the loan being made. The aggregate
interest on the loan should be an amount equal to any amounts
held by the borrower after paying off the senior loan lenders and
any expenses less USD1,500 (equivalent to HK$12,000). In the
opinion of the directors, the financial assets are not with fixed or
determinable payments and have been classified as available-for-
sale financial assets.

Included in the private funds was fund contribution of US$1,400,000
(equivalent to HK$10,897,000) to Agate-JT Healthcare Fund L.P.
(“Agate Fund”). In December 2016, Mason Capital Strategic, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a subscription
agreement with Agate Fund to subscribe limited partnership interest
at a total contribution commitment of US$20,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$156,000,000), which represented 20% of total capital of
Agate Fund. At the end of the reporting period, Mason Capital
Strategic has paid US$1,400,000 (equivalent to HK$10,897,000)
as the paid-up capital of Agate Fund, which represented 7%
of total contribution commitment. The fund is established for
achieving capital appreciation through making equity investments
in and dispositions of, mainly Israeli and Israeli-related healthcare
technologies companies. Agate Fund is not treated as an associate
because the Group did not have the right to exercise significant
influence over Agate Fund.

The directors are of the opinion that as the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates for the unlisted investments is
significant and the probability of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, these investments are stated at cost less any impairment
loss.

19. AIEHEMBEE(H)

BEE

(b)

()

RZE—XRE+H  AEERE
MWEAREBRB ZATE
B BREE74,926,00058 T 2 Al 4
HEMKEE(RKE30(D)) °
RIZE—ARENA » HARBHE
FEZATNNBRRENE - B
It EBRBEERREANSEHE
75,000,000/ THE R  EFRA
REBBERREHRZEER - BE
RBRBEZMHEEEAREX
EHBE MBI BERNEI
B o fERARBER(ERNER
RAZEES)NABHEEE
XENERRL  AMEABRT
BRBHEEEEZTER - X
BMER=-Z—E+ AR &
KEWAEHERE BiE181E A
AEE - ERARNEELS -2
ERNERANEBTSRERERA
BRIEEMRBEREMBEAZDR
1,500 T (#HE 712,000 7t)
ZFIE c BERA  UKREEY
EEEHAEEHE > AC28E
B HHEMKEE -

REESEELS FAgate-JT
Healthcare Fund L.P. ([Agate
Fundl) B & £ 3% 1,400,000
7T (¥ % 7 10,897,00038 7T ) °
—_E-XRE+ZH FKEHE
2EMBLARRGEENKIE
Agate Fundz] M 28815 LARR A
& 44 §820,000,000 % T (HHZ
156,000,000 7t ) ({hAgate
Fund& R 4EZEM20%) REHR
EBER  NERYLER B
EEARKIEE X 141,400,000
7T (8% 710,897,00058 7T ) 1EH
Agate FundzB®EXR » (hF
HMHBEBENTY% c RAUZES
DAEBFERUEIIRIUAES
HEBERERERNT A RETRE
REREBEEBRLATERERY
B - AAREEEEE Agate Fund
TEERFES > HAgate Fund
THRBEE QT o

EERH  BHRFELEHREZMG
FFREATESERBEAN B
ZEEASHEGETERELESE
FHEMEERARFEAFE 8
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

() Movements in the provision for impairment loss are as follows:

19. AIEHEMBEE(HF)

MiEE - (&)

(e) BERERBEZHNOT :

2016 2015
ZE-RE —E-fEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At the beginning of the reporting period 2R Hi%] - 14,751
Impairment loss recognised ERREERE 125,916 -
Derecognition upon disposal of REENBARKILER

subsidiaries (74,991) (1,520)

Reversal of provision for impairment loss R E&[EIFF _E  #%2& B3 BB E S
upon redemption of unlisted investment 18#{#& - (13,231)
At the end of the reporting period R2RPEER 50,925 -

20. INVENTORIES 20. FE&

2016 2015
—F—AF —E—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Merchandise for resale EHEE M 214,051 -
Consumables SHIER 6,050 -
220,101 -

All inventories are stated at cost at the end of the reporting period.
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 21. BATEFNERZZMBEE

OR LOSS
Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: RAFEFABRZUBEEZD
W
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#ET FTERT
Investments held for trading HIEEERE
Equity securities - listed in Hong Kong  BAF% -REB LD 499,093 2,866,198
Bonds - listed overseas B - g™ - 32,209
499,093 2,898,407
The fair values of listed equity securities and listed bonds are FHRAZRSER EHEH 2N FE
based on quoted market prices in active markets. BN EBEMEFRmEE
22. LOANS RECEIVABLES 22. EWER
Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to repayment BTFERAZERRERFERE
schedules. = o
2016 2015
—NE —E-hfF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
s F#ExT FTERT
Short term loans receivables FEBE B &R
From third parties REE=H (a) 910,510 30,000
From an associate REBE QT (b) - 125,968
910,510 155,968
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22. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Notes:

(@)

At the end of the reporting period, loans receivables (i) include
an aggregate amount of HK$838,084,000 and HK$64,098,000
(2015: HK$NIl and HK$Nil), which is collateralised by securities of
companies listed on the Stock Exchange and secured by corporate/
personal guarantee provided by equity holders of the borrowers
and secured by personal guarantee respectively and the remaining
balances are unsecured; (ii) carry variable and fixed interest rates
and have effective interest rates ranging from around 8.5% to
22% per annum (2015: from around 5% to 24% per annum); (iii)
are within the respective maturity dates.

The aggregate fair values of the collateralised securities of
companies listed on the Stock Exchange are HK$868,352,000
(2015: HK$NiIl) and are readily convertible into cash as at the end
of the reporting period.

The directors assessed the collectability of loans receivables at the
end of the reporting period individually with reference to borrowers’
past settlement history and current creditworthiness. No loans
receivables were determined to be impaired as a result of the
assessment for both years. In the opinion of the directors, there
was no indication of deterioration in the collectability of the loans
receivables of HK$910,510,000 (2015: HK$155,968,000) and thus
no allowance for doubtful debts was considered necessary.

No loans receivables were past due but not impaired as at 31
December 2016 and 2015. Loans receivables that were neither
past due nor impaired related to several borrowers for whom there
was no history of default.

As at 31 December 2015, the loan receivable due from an associate
was unsecured, interest-bearing at fixed rate of 1% per month and
repayable within two months from drawdown date. The amount
was fully settled in January 2016.
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22, EWER(E
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RERBLEER > BRER()
4% 4 £ %8838,084,0008 7T &
64,098,0008 T( =B — A& :
ZEIRZERT) DoBAR
R ETRARNBSHEREA
ERHZEBEEARMEND
¥/ BAAERURMEAERE
B BRTESREER S ()EH
FEREEFEZ;TE » SEEF
RN FHESBEERE(=ZFE—F
FFHRNFHSEZ24E) ;
(ifAEBEEZPER -

RERPLEER » REXRFFLET
DNEAEEREFZAFEBES
868,352,000/ 8 T (= FE—FHF :
FEr) AN ERAERE -

EENERBEEESEERA
ZBABERCENEAEE @
B A B E R Z AT E AR R o
BILE  EEREZMEEE
HERWNERHRERE - EER
A FEUWEF910,510,0005% 7T
(ZZFE—FF : 155,968,000/ )
2 WYL EIAR S 3 SR B R &R
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B=+-B  WESBMAE KA
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. ESRHMEWIIE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
{hE=a T#xT FET
Trade receivables from: WA TARESFIE
— third parties — =7 56,336 -
— former subsidiaries of — M A AR
non-controlling interests ERZAIMB AT
of a subsidiary 105,931 -
@) 162,267 -
Accounts receivables from third BIRERSREMm
parties arising from provision RLRBEEN
of securities and commodities FEWRE=FRM
brokerage services:
- custodian clients —-tEEF (b) 14,977 =
- margin clients -HFREF (b) 569,255 -
- clearing houses and brokers —FERRELRL (b) 2,462 -
748,961 -
Allowance for doubtful debts REREBE (d) (100,517) -
© 648,444 -
Deposits and prepayments FERRENRK 31,293 4,893
Other receivables H b FEUER X (e) 90,098 15,145
